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We Do It Right
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BOR - P RBESREBLERE -

TAEBRROTEEZE  RAOBEBRFRSEE  REKA/EE
MPBERREE S EBEMA 2R EERR -

We Do It Right is a principle that extends beyond our core business and
embraces the initiatives we undertake on behalf of our staff, the community
and the environment. We believe this is fundamental to our success and
helps us win the trust of our stakeholders.

In this annual report we describe the progress we have made during the
year, using iconic representations of timeless design classics. These symbols
stand for the care and quality that go into all of our world-class buildings and
the unparalleled value brought to our shareholders, tenants and customers.

As we enter an exciting new phase in our business expansion, we will
continue to maintain our high standards in order to become the most
admired and leading national commercial property developer in Hong Kong
and mainland China.
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HANG LUNG GROUP LIMITED

Hang Lung Group Limited (stock code: 00010) is one of the most established listed companies in
Hong Kong with more than 50 years of experience in the property development market. Through
Hang Lung Properties Limited (stock code: 00101), we have built a leading reputation as a
top-tier property developer in Hong Kong and on the Mainland, with a recognized commitment
to quality.

Hang Lung Group’s businesses in Hong Kong include property development for sale and lease.
Our substantial portfolio encompasses well-planned large-scale commercial, office and residential
developments in prominent locations.

We made our first investment on the Mainland in the early 1990s as the foremost step in our
future business expansion. Adhering to the strategy of developing prime sites in major cities, our
portfolio of investment properties currently comprises two large-scale developments in Shanghai
— the commercial, office and residential complex Grand Gateway 66, and the commercial and
office complex Plaza 66. Together with our prime landmark complexes of Parc 66 in Jinan, as
well as Palace 66 and Forum 66 in Shenyang, we are vigorously building on our successes to
develop similar properties in major cities including Wuxi, Tianjin, Dalian, Kunming and Wuhan.

We will continue not only to expand our horizons on the Mainland, but also to invest in our
portfolio in Hong Kong, as we aim to become the most admired and leading national commercial
property developer of the highest quality in the market.
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RESULTS
HZE+-HA=1—HBI-E For the year ended December 31
B EETHE in HK$ Million
(BREEFH) (unless otherwise stated) 2013 2012
L Turnover
MERE Property leasing 7,216 6,711
BB Hong Kong 3,232 3,185
R B A Mainland China 3,984 3,526
MEEE Property sales 2,518 1,275
=2 CE Total turnover 9,734 7,986
B R B4 AR Net profit attributable to shareholders 4,557 5,262
BE Dividends 1,079 1,066
BRERER Shareholders’ equity 70,572 65,224
grRER Per share data
A7 Earnings $3.38 $3.90
i) Dividends
A HA Interim $0.19 $0.19
R ER Final $0.61 $0.60
4Bt Total $0.80 $0.79
IR R i Shareholders’ equity $52.3 $48.3
BEFE Net assets $101.0 $96.0
g 3u e Financial ratio
K B L& Payout ratio 24% 20%
FEEARELL R (M:F1)  Net debt to equity ratio (Note 1) 3.9% 0%
BIEARELL & Debt to equity ratio 33.0% 29.0%
UNDERLYING RESULTS
HE+-A=1+—HBL-E For the year ended December 31
NEEBEETHE in HK$ Million
(BEEFH) (unless otherwise stated) 2013 2012
BREEEEARLAF (H:32) Underlying net profit attributable to shareholders (Note 2) 3,071 3,564
SREFR (FfE3) Earnings per share (Note 3) $2.27 $2.64
TRELLZ (Mi5E3) Payout ratio (Note 3) 35% 30%
BEE - Notes:

LFEEERTEALEMCEENRRE RRTHE
oo IR BB RIS K FEIE AR o

2. RN ASEEERENER  SMBREEE
AL B B HIRR B R BB & 5T E R 405 (IR E
M) 2 ¥ 8 ZEAREREMERBERTEREY
ERFEZEHWMBRAETEH IR MR R
RBEEHR AR

3. BRFETRBEBREGERGAME -

4  jErEmMAE AR HANG LUNG GROUP LIMITED

1. Net debt represents bank loans and other borrowings less cash and deposits with banks.
Equity comprises shareholders’ equity and non-controlling interests.

2. To facilitate better understanding of the Group’s operational results, the underlying net
profit attributable to shareholders is presented by excluding the effect of adopting Hong
Kong Accounting Standard 40, Investment Property which requires changes in fair value
of investment properties and investment properties under development, net of related
deferred tax and non-controlling interests be accounted for in profit or loss.

3. The relevant calculations are based on the underlying net profit attributable to
shareholders.

2013 &3k ANNUAL REPORT
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SUSTAINABLE RENTAL TURNOVER AND PROFIT GROWTH

HEWA BREEEXREF

Rental Turnover Rental Underlying Profit per Share
#§8 Overall .

. _ o .

BEEE +8% i +13%
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Hong Kong Dividends per Share
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= o
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— 4,000 BHETT — 10
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— 3,000 e
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— 1,000 e
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2010"  2011"

2009/ 2010/ 7= 12/ 2012 2013
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TR ABRKRIENER - BREMFEALRESBIA AR RFEFEBHANAZTRERAT_A=+—08  UWHBHAH_T——F
12% 5% 10% —A—HZ+=—A=+—HB1t+=EA
Growth % would be 12% for overall and 10% for The financial period represented 12-month period covering from January 1, 2011 to
Hong Kong if excluding the discontinued operations December 31, 2011 due to the change of financial year end date from June 30 to December 31

" BERNASTHIEMRFE T Z2——F+tA-BE_F——F+_A=+—BINEANBRSRZ KBRS

Financial year ended June 30 Final dividend for the six-month financial period from July 1, 2011 to December 31, 2011
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Since the 1990s, we have been branching out into mainland China with world-class commercial
complexes in key cities. With the opening of Riverside 66 in Tianjin in 2014, we are poised to
celebrate yet another milestone in our development on the Mainland.

BEELS « XiZ
RIVERSIDE 66, TIANJIN
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Chairman’s Letter to Shareholders
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Ronnie C. Chan

Chairman
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RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

For the year ended December 31, 2013, turnover increased 22% to
HK$9,734 million. Net profit attributable to shareholders decreased
13% to HK$4,557 million as there were fewer disposals of non-core
investment properties compared to the year before. Consequently,
earnings per share also fell 13% to HK$3.38.

When excluding all effects of revaluation gain, the underlying net
profit attributable to shareholders was 14% lower at HK$3,071 million.
Underlying earnings per share retreated similarly to HK$2.27.

The Board recommends a final dividend of HK$0.61 per share.
If approved by shareholders, total dividends per share for the year
ended December 31, 2013 will be HK$0.80, an increase of 1.3%
compared to the previous year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Real estate everywhere, especially the residential segment, is to a good
extent affected by government policies. There are many reasons and
they are all understandable. Just to name a few: home ownership is a
cornerstone to social stability. For most people, a dwelling unit is the
biggest investment in his or her life and the mortgage is the greatest
debt burden. As a result, home purchase is very significant to most
citizens. Whether one owns or rents, housing is a basic necessity
of life and the government is expected to ensure its steady supply.
In many places such as mainland China and Hong Kong, land supply
is controlled by the government. Building construction is a complicated
process involving big dollars. Its quality control is critical in the sense
that a house should be safe and should last for at least decades. Being
a major part of any economy, the knock-on effect of house building is
critical to its overall health.
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Grand Gateway 66 in Shanghai has been part of the Group’s foothold since the early 2000s
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No wonder every government carefully watches our industry, and
property companies are very sensitive to government policies. In both
mainland China and Hong Kong, the two markets where we play, there
is a new administration of late. From what we can tell, they differ from
their respective predecessors in one critical respect: they both provide
active leadership which means many new policies. Some of them will
inevitably affect our industry. In this sense, it is a brave new world that
developers must now face.

On the Mainland, | have never seen such serious efforts to curb
corruption. And in Hong Kong, the present government is doing its
best to reverse years of inaction on the part of the last administration.
It strives to supply land on the one hand, and on the other, employs
administrative measures to check demand. In both places, such new
policies are hurting our business. But since they are the right things to
do, we fully support them.

Everywhere we go on the Mainland, anti-corruption and anti-opulence
measures targeting civil servants are affecting the sales of certain luxury
goods. Previously a good portion — although to be sure not all — of the
purchases of high-end products for gifting and expensive services was
no doubt related to government officials. These purchases are now
seriously curtailed.

Some have asked for my opinion on when these policies will be relaxed.
My answer has always been: | hope they never will. As many other parts
of the world have shown, economies built upon improper spending such
as that relating to corruption cannot last. They are merely sowing the
seeds of their own demise. It is much better that a country like China
with myriads of legitimate and vibrant economic activities should sooner
rather than later rid itself of such cancerous elements. In the long term,
the economy will grow more healthily and will generate new demand to
replace the shady ones.

11



ESRIRREK

L

Chairman’s Letter to Shareholders

BRETHALBYESN—FBSE
R REZEERLEXIZFHRNFY
& Rif - FWH AR ZERET - B
NESWRADERBESZ+= " HEZ
FRMBPEABD 2+ = At &S
BV T T 1B 2 B 35 I M 85 60 18 12 B 35 M 8 82
MYE - ZMBEBRFDEDNBEDZER
BOZEMTTE

FREALWSIEH  THREERIRELEE
RENBAHELEBEEEEINFER - L
KA RFRz L e BERSEZM
T = RMEERE  BANBERR
BEME AEOBEZERMNBEEL
“HET-EEEEML-

E—AE BMAEFBENREVEINZE
PR IR B B 3 b EE ISR © 578 B9 P 3 ik
BERETE REEEWMRIF o WG
ALFEEHEZZHRLEENTE -
MEWRAREEENDH LB Z TR
BoZzt— ZEABBOHNABEDZ— R
BoZ= - REBHNHESBRAERED
ZTZ WA EsRAERADZN -
ZMBYMEZBALED N RAD Z TN
ERBRZN+M: BRZESERMNE L
TTREREE EA ZNTH RERT
- EHEFROMEME R o

ERNEBERMEAS L ERHNEEMR
BB REEXRFAEM LA BE
BHSBANEFER -

12 fEm«£@E5%R 2 HANG LUNG GROUP LIMITED

Roughly half of our Mainland malls can be considered deluxe. Their
retail sales were particularly affected by the policies. Nevertheless,
in the face of such an unfavorable environment, we still managed on the
Mainland to increase rents by 13% and related operating profit by 12%.
When excluding the newer properties of Forum 66 and Center 66, the
two numbers still advanced by 5% and 7% respectively.

In our home market Hong Kong, the government under Chief Executive
Mr C.Y. Leung has introduced rather draconian measures to stall
demand. Together with the foreseeable supply of land, residential prices
have no place to go but down. As such, we, through our subsidiary
Hang Lung Properties, were fortunate to have seized the window of
opportunity and sold 272 units at a margin very similar to that of our
previous sales.

Our Hong Kong investment properties on the other hand are a
beneficiary of the government’s non-real estate-related policies. The
continual arrival of Mainland tourists has buoyed retail sales. Our rental
turnover and operating profit respectively went up 10% and 11% after
removing the effects of the sales of numerous fringe assets the year
before. The nominal increases were respectively 1% and 3%. We
received 12% more revenue from retail space and 9% from offices.
Occupancy rates were respectively 98% and 94% for the two product
types. Overall rental margin improved two points to 85% which reflected
the effects of the sale of non-core properties in 2012.

For our residential and serviced apartments, which are insignificant to
our overall portfolio, the vacancy rate rose a little but total rents received
went up.

2013 % ANNUAL REPORT
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We catch the right timing to sell the residential units of The Long Beach during the year
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Mainland tourists support the retail sales of Hong Kong and rental turnover of our investment properties in Hong Kong also records an increase
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PROSPECTS

In the coming year, | do not foresee changes to the current demand-
curbing measures in Hong Kong. But after home supply sets in and
prices fall somewhat, it is conceivable to have a policy reversal at
that time.

So in the interim, we will continue to watch out for opportunities to sell
completed apartments. Things will not move briskly but neither do we
need to be overly bearish. Needless to say, we will do our best to the
extent possible to maintain a relatively high profit margin. As | have
written almost two years ago, we should not be too greedy.

In the recent past, we have witnessed respectable rental growth in
Hong Kong. There is a reasonable chance that this will continue at least
for this year.

2013 &% ANNUAL REPORT
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On the Mainland, it is impossible to predict how long the anti-corruption/
anti-opulence campaign will last. My personal hope is that it will stay
long enough to turn the effects of the policies into a normal state of
affairs. After all, Hang Lung is a long-term player willing to sacrifice
short-term market gains for economic health in the long run. There is
reasonable hope that such an outcome will materialize.

Before that day arrives, we will focus our efforts on improving
operational efficiency. For that we need to do two things: enhance our
operating system, and strengthen our management team including the
rebuilding of an appropriate corporate culture.

In the past two to three years, much work has been done on the former.
For example, we have installed a new Enterprise Resource Planning
system that further integrates our Mainland offices with Hong Kong
and with each other. Our internal audit, having been fortified, has also
borne fruit.

The need for a bigger and stronger management team seems relentless.
This is a condition usually associated with a small start-up firm and not
a sizable company like ours with over half a century of history. The only
other times that Hang Lung has seen such a fast pace of expansion
was the decade immediately following our founding in 1960 and in
the early 1980s when we took on over ten projects atop Hong Kong’s
subway stations.

The explosive growth of the 1960s led to our going public in October
1972. By some measures, at that time we were perhaps the single
largest Chinese-managed real estate company in Hong Kong. The only
one bigger than us was Hongkong Land. The second expansion however
ended in near disaster. After committing to many projects in a single
basket, we ran into the political turmoil surrounding the Sino-British
negotiations on Hong Kong'’s return to her Motherland. The market fell
precipitously and we were in serious financial difficulties. Fortunately
we survived but it took us years to nurse ourselves back to health.
This has taught us to be strategically cautious and financially prudent.
Such lessons are still ingrained in our genes.

15
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Now we are facing the third major expansion of the Company which
relates to the Mainland. Strategically it was a long time in the making.
We first spent about 12 years to experiment in Shanghai. Prior to
jumping in, we carefully studied the market in 1991-1992, acquired
two pieces of land in 1992 and 1993, built them out and opened
the two malls — Grand Gateway 66 and Plaza 66 — in 1999 and 2000
respectively. Only after successfully running them for a few years and
only upon further research did we venture into second tier cities.
Starting from 2005, we bought several plots of land in carefully selected
cities and opened the first mall outside of Shanghai, in Shenyang in
2010, 18 years after our initial entry into the Mainland.

The management necessary to execute the above is not inconsequential.
Beginning in the second half of the 2000s, we beefed up our
construction management capability. This was followed by the
expansion of our leasing team. All along, we enhanced our corporate
staff to support and monitor the enlarged team.

b B RS NES WANSSETHE

Rental turnover of the mall of Plaza 66 records an increase despite the decrease in sales in the overall retail market in Shanghai

16  1fEr&EmMARARF HANG LUNG GROUP LIMITED
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Inasmuch as a lot has already been accomplished, the humongous
Chinese market with practically limitless opportunities kept beckoning.
As shareholders know, we are extremely careful in accepting new
projects, but once in a great while a particularly attractive one comes
along and we buy. (In the nine years since 2005, we have only
chosen eight sites in seven cities.) All that necessitates an expanded
team. Much as we would like to stick to our tradition of being a lean
organization — a few years ago, there was one year when each staff
member produced some HK$10 million of after-tax profit — we also
know that there can be a risk of being understaffed. Now that we
have projects spread across the country, and given that a huge but
transitional economy like China abounds with challenging ethical issues,
risk management becomes paramount.

| am a firm believer that good systems and quality staff aforementioned
alone are not sufficient. As | have previously written, we must build
a corporate culture to supplement the system and the people.
The genetics of management must be healthy.

BN EREREESTETREEREOSE REEREFAS

Palace 66 in Shenyang is now undergoing tenant mix reshuffle after the completion of the first lease term
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Chairman’s Letter to Shareholders

RENEERSAEEERMERNSE HEERR
Heartland 66 in Wuhan is the 10" project the Group develops on the Mainland
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Since the market will likely be lethargic in the foreseeable future, we will
devote more time to perfecting these necessary elements. One thing
we are certain: a bull market will sooner or later return. In good times,
people, ourselves included, are busy exploiting opportunities. Those will
not be auspicious times to strengthen systems and management. Now
is the time to tune up the engine for better days ahead.

One way to characterize today’s situation is: we are in a cyclical
downturn amidst a systemic upsurge. Urbanization and consumer
spending are mega trends embedded in the rise of China which in itself
is a mega trend of the world. We are extraordinarily well positioned to
ride that long-term wave.

| am confident that the third expansion of Hang Lung will lead to a
golden era that the Company has not seen before. Enough signs are
there to give us due confidence. Consider this: when all the Mainland
projects are completed and if they only perform half as well as our two
in Shanghai, the result in terms of both total rents received and return
on investment will be impressive indeed.

Ronnie C. Chan
Chairman
Hong Kong, January 23, 2014
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BN EREERENBEREREZLEMTR c HREMEESEENERE > AUETYE
FEERBNR  EERMINEE LR B IEER o
Our properties are designed by outstanding architects from leading international firms. It is our

insistence on the highest standards of design that results in properties which are not only aesthetically
pleasing, but are also crowning achievements of form and function.

1BREES « RE

Olympia 66, Dalian
—ER-=FEHEMISH T R B ESE
AN [ZEHE — KK ARIREHRE
Top honor in 2013 Cityscape Awards for
Emerging Markets in the category of
Retail Project Awards — Future

BEES « BY (BYRSRBAE)
Spring City 66, Kunming

(Shopping Mall and Office)
FESEEEGE [ERRERRS
FE R — 2O RINRAES | & RIaRE
Precertification under the Leadership in
Energy and Environmental Design
(LEED) for Core and Shell Development —
Gold Level issued by the U.S. Green
Building Council

EEES o £

Center 66, Wuxi

55+ T fE B BB 5 it E R AR SRR
REeBFEEERFEBEMED
L)

Commercial Building Design Excellence
Award (Mall Category) at the 15" China
International Real Estate Architectural
Technology Fair

1EREES o B

Parc 66, Jinan
HEEEMR L HE =T —=FEVIVA
(RE - BIE - BEEKH) KEAE
[ A Bz RERAR | A [ R
7S

2013 VIVA (Vision, Innovation, Value and
Achievement) Best-of-the-Best Award for
Sustainable Design and Development
bestowed by the International Council of
Shopping Centers
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We Do It Right continued to be a guiding principle for Hang Lung Group during 2013.
We remained committed to building quality properties in the right locations, and
creating mixed development projects with world-class designs despite challenges that
arose in the property market.

—E-=FR BRHPEETENIEAYE In 2013, we saw the continuation of steady rental turnover from both

EARTFHRIBE @ BERMBEMNTES  our existing, well-managed portfolio and from our new developments.

WA - BEENANEERSIEAERELE - AA%E  Both income streams contributed to the impressive results we

HRE—ERTEERNFEE - achieved, enabling us to deliver yet another year of stable growth for
our shareholders.

HEWA B8/ FERBESWA DM
Rental Turnover Hong Kong/Mainland China Rental Turnover Split
BEBEET AL
HK$ Million %
— 8,000 BETT — 100 o
$7,216 witiion 45%
— 7,000
— 80
— 6,000
— 5,000
W & .
— 4,000 Commercial 55%
| ﬁ#ﬁ}?&
| T/ Mg — 40
3000 Office and
Industrial/Office
L9 P —
000 W EERER -
Residential and B FEAH
— 1,000 Apartment Mainland China
H =55 &%
—0 Car Park —0 Hong Kong
2009/ 2010/  2011* 2012 2013 2009/ 2010/  2011% 2012 2013
2010"  2011" 2010"  2011"
N HERAZSTHIEMEBRER t B —E-——F+-A=+—HIL+=@EA
Financial year ended June 30 Restated to 12-month period ended December 31, 2011
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Total turnover was HK$9,734 million, up 22% from the 2012 financial
year. As there was insignificant gain on disposal of investment properties
compared to 2012, underlying net profit attributable to shareholders was
down by 14% to HK$3,071 million, and earnings per share declined
14% to HK$2.27 as a result.

PROPERTY LEASING

Profit growth in our core business of property leasing saw solid returns
for the 12-month period ended December 31, 2013. Rental turnover
during this period increased 1% (increased 10% when excluding
the impact of the discontinued operations) in Hong Kong and 13%
in mainland China, contributing to a total overall increase of 8% to
HK$7,216 million.

REYHEEE 2D M
Area of Investment Properties by Geographical Location
R-T—=F+=-HA=+—H At December 31, 2013
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BENYEASHEEIER
Our property portfolio in Hong Kong achieves steady growth

BE Hong Kong

HREFAD R IFZENENSTE - 84 The Company was able to achieve a steady growth in 2013, reporting an
WAREERZNELEE DRI EFTES increase in rental turnover of 10% to HK$3,232 million and operating
THEBEB =G _EB=F_@E - AKH  profit by 11% to HK$2,736 million, when excluding the impact of the
AT —EBAE T+ HE=T BB discontinued operations. Overall, the year-on-year growth in rental
BEm= - HE WA REEZFD BE X turnover and operating profit were 1% and 3%, respectively.
FEABPZ—REDZ= -

—E-=FE EFAVMEREEKEAE  In 2013, the property leasing business in Hong Kong contributed 45%
EHSWRALENES 2O+ - to the Group's total rental turnover.

Fh R A 3 Mainland China

RE AT FLEIE RS AW - EE#AE  Economic growth on the Mainland was relatively moderate in recent
NSNS EEEE > HE U A4%8  years. However, Hang Lung achieved stable growth in this market, with
FTAZEBE=FTAENTIUEE L &= total rental turnover rising to HK$3,984 million, up 13% from 2012.
T-—EFEWMEF O = BERFI45E  Total operating profit increased by 12% to HK$2,995 million.
BMEDZ +ZEBE _+THhEALTHA

e —

BT °
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Center 66 in Wuxi, one of the Group’s new developments, opened in
September 2013 with 95% occupancy rate, accounting for a rental
turnover of HK$77 million in the first three months of operation.

Plaza 66 and Grand Gateway 66 have been part of the Group’s strong
real estate foothold in Shanghai since the early 2000s. In 2013, they
recorded stable occupancy rates at 96%. Rental turnover from these
properties amounted to HK$3,098 million, up 6%.

In 2013, Forum 66 was almost fully let, with occupancy rate of 99%.
Palace 66 is now reshuffling the tenant mix after the completion of the
first lease term, with occupancy rate recorded at 88%.

Located in Jinan, the capital city of Shandong Province, Parc 66, in the
course of tenant reshuffle, recorded an increase of 1% in rental turnover
to HK$367 million.

The expansion of our mainland China operations means that this side of
the business now accounts for 55% of the Group’s total rental turnover.

RIZ-=FAEEHFENERES  RETARAERER LHESTENRE
Opened in 2013, Center 66 exhibits the Company’s commitment to upholding the highest
standards of excellence in architectural design
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PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

In September 2013, Hang Lung Group achieved a milestone in
its property development division with the grand opening of a new
landmark shopping mall, Center 66 in Wuxi, Jiangsu Province. Home
to more than 250 world-class tenants, Center 66 brings an all-new
shopping and leisure experience to the public in Wuxi.

Center 66, strategically located in the Yangtze River Delta, will tap into
the enormous potential of mainland China’s most dynamic economic
region. Situated on Renmin Zhong Lu in the heart of the city’s Chong’an
central business district, the mall of Phase 1 has a gross floor area of
118,135 square meters, excluding the car park areas. In addition to
the shopping mall, the first phase of this development will ultimately
include two Grade A office towers that are due to be completed, in
stages, beginning in 2014.

Marking Hang Lung Group’s first entry into central China, we held
a groundbreaking ceremony on November 19, 2013 in Wuhan for
Heartland 66. This new state-of-the-art commercial complex is located
in the commercial and business heart of Wuhan. Combining the best
design elements of East and West, Heartland 66 will be a showcase
of modern architecture. This project represents the Group’s 10"
development on the Mainland and will be its flagship property in this
part of the country when completed, in phases, from 2019.

Another exciting shopping mall development, Riverside 66 in Tianjin,
will have its grand opening in the third quarter of 2014. Pre-leasing of
the mall’s world-class retail facilities is underway.

On November 26, 2013, a topping-out ceremony of its major structure
was held for another of the Group’s major landmark projects, Olympia
66 in Dalian, Liaoning Province. Opening in 2015, Olympia 66 will
become the largest commercial landmark in Dalian, with a gross floor
area of approximately 221,900 square meters (excluding the car park
areas). Olympia 66 will include more than 400 shops, a cinema and a
skating rink, all of which will be interconnected by a series of exciting
atrium spaces.

Hang Lung Group has several other projects in development on the

Mainland, and each of them progressed well and according to plan
in 2013.

2013 % ANNUAL REPORT
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FINANCIAL POSITION

Hang Lung Group continued to enjoy a healthy balance sheet during
2013. Cash and bank balances amounted to HK$39,704 million. After
deducting total borrowings of HK$45,024 million, the Group had a net
debt to equity ratio of 3.9%.

Our strong financial position provides us with ample capacity to fund
not only our current development projects, but also allows us to be
well positioned for capturing any future expansion opportunities that
may arise.

OUTLOOK

Hang Lung has advanced into becoming a leading national commercial
property developer with operations across many cities. This exceptional
growth is a direct result of our deep knowledge of the Mainland property
market, combined with a tight focus on quality design. These factors,
along with our robust financial position, have enabled us to rise above
the impact of the recent market slowdown and, importantly, to capitalize
on opportunities for further land acquisitions.

In Hong Kong, our outstanding portfolio of properties, all in excellent
locations, allows us to attract and retain high quality tenants. We take
the opportunity to refine our tenant mix, upgrade our properties and
run regular promotional campaigns to market the attractiveness and
profitability of our properties. By monitoring the residential market very
closely, we are able to offer the sale of residential units at the most
opportune time.

In addition to Riverside 66 which will open in Tianjin in 2014, we have
other important projects underway in mainland China. These projects
will come on stream over the next few years, and each will carry our
renowned “66" brand name. Work on these new projects is progressing
well and according to plan.

We are confident about our long-term development prospects both in
Hong Kong and on the Mainland. As a result of the steady progress we
made in 2013, and despite the economy is full of challenge for the year
ahead, Hang Lung Group looks forward to continued success in 2014.
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We ensure our properties live up to our reputation for quality by carefully selecting only the finest
building materials. From the marble we choose to the fixtures we install, we insist We Do It Right by
taking care of every single detail.
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Through thoughtful consideration, tenant mix optimization and vigorous
asset upgrades, Hang Lung further strengthened the overall performance

of the Hong Kong portfolio and succeeded in generating stable growth
despite the uncertainties in the economy.

—E=FR BHFBIEMEBRESNY  Government measures led to the cooling down of the property market
ETHWER ETEBEMBMRM TN &  in 2013. Property transactions were suppressed over the course of the
HHEBEOLEBRMALSTBREAIMNESR  year with the result that owners were discouraged from selling their
AR R o properties. In turn, these measures affected consumer sentiment,

and the sales performance of some of our anchor tenants suffered as

a result.
SR BRPIE T EEYEIRIRIERE Nevertheless, our commercial properties continued to do well. The
ESHEEE FAMEREET S 21/ occupancy rate of our retail properties increased by two points to 98%
WA A —EARESEEHD 2+ e and that of our office properties went up one point to 94%.
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Twinkle Twinkle Wishing Star Christmas event at The Peak Galleria receives R AR GESHBP SR ANEERMERL

an overwhelming response
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Welcomed by parents, Kornhill Learnscape provides a comprehensive
offering of interactive educational programs for children, bringing
increased exposure and business to the tenants in Kornhill Plaza

We saw many positive rental reversions over the course of the year in
2013. We saw growth in rental turnover and operating profit of 10%
to HK$3,232 million and 11% to HK$2,736 million, respectively, on a
comparable basis. Overall rental turnover and operating profit were up
1% and 3%, respectively, compared to a year ago.

Despite the economic environment is full of challenge in 2014, due to
the prime locations of our commercial and retail properties, together
with our sustained efforts to improve our tenant mix and quality of
service, we still expect a sustainable growth in tenant sales and rental
turnover.
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COMMERCIAL

Our shopping malls performed satisfactorily, reporting an increase of 7%
in rental turnover to HK$1,738 million. The overall occupancy rate also
recorded a rise of two points to 98%.

The Peak Galleria has been performing well after Chow Tai Fook, Sa Sa,
Coach and Tommy Bahama joined the mall. These businesses not only
contributed to our strong rental situation, but also increased sales within
the mall and improved the overall shopping experience.

What's more, bringing in stores with a unique local story such as Hong
Kong Trams Station, Cookie Galerie and Tai Cheong Bakery increased
media exposure for the mall and strengthened our Love Hong Kong
Style branding. To maximize the potential of its unique location, The
Peak Galleria joined with the Peak Tower and the Hong Kong Tourism
Board for the first time to organize the Twinkle Twinkle Wishing Star
Christmas event, which was well received by the public.

Supporting our vision to reshape Fashion Walk as a “distinctive lifestyle
destination” for affluent and sophisticated fashion or food lovers and
trendsetters, progressive tenant mix improvements continued to
take place in 2013. New brands such as COS, Francfranc and King
Ludwig German Restaurant have been introduced and they were all
well received by our target customers. Novel pop-up stores including
droog and GumGumGum, complemented with a bustling schedule of
promotional activities and social media efforts, further engaged shoppers
with our area brand and injected exciting energies to Fashion Walk.

A lease agreement was signed with H & M Hennes & Mauritz AB
(H&M), one of the world’s largest, most well-known fashion retailers.
H&M will open its first Asian and the biggest global flagship store at
Hang Lung Centre in the summer of 2015. Undoubtedly, this will
add to the strength and appeal of our retail portfolio in Causeway Bay,
underscoring the importance of Hang Lung Centre and Fashion Walk
as the retail and entertainment hub in the district.
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Grand Plaza in Mongkok finished most of its interior renovation in 2013 and will have a new fagade in 2015
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Kornhill Plaza remained virtually fully let throughout 2013. This
achievement can be attributed, in large part, to the major upgrade of
the mall’s restaurant businesses in 2012. Additionally, the mall held
numerous promotional activities that further enhanced the shopping
experience of customers. As a result of these promotions, the mall was
able to improve sales performance and achieve remarkable growth.

Almost completed in 2013, the interior renovation of Grand Plaza
contributed to an outstanding rental turnover growth of approximately
22%. Work is now underway to complete the facade, with a completion
date scheduled in the first quarter of 2015. Continued improvements to
the tenant mix at Grand Plaza are being planned in 2014, including the
arrival of new duplex shops soon.

The continued growth in tourism, particularly of mainland Chinese
tourists with medium range of spending power, will be a prevailing
theme in the coming years. Grand Plaza is ideally positioned to match
the profile of this important group of retail customers.

2013 % ANNUAL REPORT
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Amoy Plaza underwent a tenant reshuffle during 2013. The goal was to
replace the original F&B tenants with younger, more energetic fashion
brands and cosmetics retailers. These new tenants have the ability
to pay higher rents. Together with the satisfactory rent reversion rate
upon tenancy renewals, the overall rental turnover increased by 9%
in the year. In the same vein, another major tenant upgrading plan
is underway and making good progress. We believe this upgrade will
result in even higher sales growth in 2014 in the mall.

OFFICE AND INDUSTRIAL/OFFICE

During 2013, we increased total rental turnover in our office and
industrial properties by 9% to HK$1,077 million, on a comparable basis,
and maintaining a high occupancy rate of 94%.

Office units at the Standard Chartered Bank Building have been fully let
since October 2012. In addition, all the shops in the commercial podium
of the building have been leased. Among the new tenants acquired during
2013 were Escada, a luxury fashion brand with many loyal and upscale
customers, and Mott//32, a modern high-end Chinese restaurant.
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Escada and Mott//32 will open their doors in the first quarter of 2014.
Both are prestigious tenants, and both will enhance the building’s profile
as a Grade A office tower in the central business district. Their presence
will also create greater synergy with other shops in this exclusive
shopping area of Hong Kong.

Our major tenant, Standard Chartered Bank, set up its first digital
branch in Hong Kong at the Standard Chartered Bank Building. The
stylish facade features a giant TV screen that brought a completely fresh
new look to the building.

2012 was a year of aggressive expansion by international retailers
along Queen’s Road Central, followed in 2013 by a cooling of the rental
climate in the central business district. High rents on Queen’s Road
Central and lower-than-anticipated sales performance drove the retailers
to look for other rental alternatives in the area. Against this backdrop,
we expect stable income growth for our commercial and office leases in
the Standard Chartered Bank Building in 2014.

A new F&B tenant, Duddell’s, which was just awarded a Michelin
One Star has been introduced within the Shanghai Tang premises at
1 Duddell Street in 2013. Overall our strategic leasing and marketing
initiatives aiming to strike a balance between pure office and non-office
tenants succeeded in generating moderate growth among the buildings
in the portfolio of Duddell Street. Taking advantage of the coming lease
expiry, we are also planning for a tenant mix upgrade in the commercial
segment of Printing House and Baskerville House, which will also help
to enhance the overall shopping environment of Duddell Street and
bring a synergy effect to existing tenants.

The educational concept of Kornhill Learnscape at the Office Tower
of Kornhill Plaza has been well-developed and has gained a good
reputation in the community, creating a synergy effect with the shopping
mall by attracting more shoppers, maximizing the business potential of
the whole portfolio.

Rental turnover of Office Tower One of Grand Plaza recorded steady
growth in 2013. This was attributable to the medical and beauty
trades which have a higher rental affordability compared to tenants
of pure office use. We will continuously enhance these theme zones
by upgrading the hardware as well as the professional management
services to our tenants and customers.
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FERRBXEFT RESIDENTIAL AND SERVICED APARTMENT

—E-—FR - BMNEERBEAENRY  In 2013, the overall occupancy rate of our residential and serviced
wREETA N R(PENE S 200 - (i EE A apartments kept at 74%, with total rental turnover recording an increase
DRIFEBENENTE el AB%EE  of 3% to HK$289 million, when excluding the impact of discontinued
EEPZ=EZBE_EBNTHLEET- operations.

BEBREYE 2RI DN
GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF HONG KONG INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
MR+=HA=+—H At December 31

ARIETE EAE
(FEHXK)
Total Gross Floor Area™
('000 sg.m.)
2013 2012
BE Hong Kong Island
FIRNEE Central and Admiralty 51 51
) 87 N AT Causeway Bay and Wan Chai 92 92
Rie R 8IRR Kornhill and Quarry Bay 135 135
IEySEIIN= The Peak and Mid-Levels 47 47
e Hong Kong South 12 12
hEE Kowloon
=] Mongkok 140 140
B2 EYNTimN- Tsim Sha Tsui and West Kowloon 88 88
SHA N EE Ngau Tau Kok and Kwun Tong 78 78
R - 208 - 2 K&HPY Cheung Sha Wan, Kwai Chung, Tsuen Wan and Tuen Mun 97 123
1Az Total 740 766
* BEEBEEZEREE
Including gross floor area of car parks
BERREMEZIZEDW
SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS OF HONG KONG INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
HE+-A=1+—HBIFE For the year ended December 31
EREEEAE AW A Fishnpes
(FFEHXK) (BBEET) (BEntL)
Total Gross Floor Area Rental Turnover Occupancy Rate
('000 sg.m.) (HK$ Million) (%)
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Sk Commercial 262 262 1,738 1,619 98 96
WAER Office and
T¥/Bng Industrial/Office 223 223 1,077 1,097 94 93
FERBA Residential and
Apartment 68 88 289 341 74 74
(E=r) Car Park 187 193 128 128 N/A N/A
st Total 740 766 3,232 3,185 93 91
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Hang Lung Group builds top quality residential properties in prime
locations. We take a highly disciplined approach to sales in order to
optimize value. The result is that our properties are consistently well
received in the market.

The year 2013 saw a change in the property market. Activity slowed
down due to uncertain global economic factors, and the Hong Kong
government’s cooling measures caused a decline in the number of
buyers from mainland China and overseas.

The proceeds generated from the sales of The Long Beach, The
HarbourSide, AquaMarine and other properties amounted to HK$2,518
million, up by 97% compared with the 2012 financial year.

THE LONG BEACH

With a prime location in southwestern Kowloon, The Long Beach is a
high-end residential complex featuring a total of 1,829 units in eight
towers. The project offers the best in contemporary living and includes
a wave-like design, spectacular sea views and a best-in-class clubhouse
comprised of four-story of luxury facilities and recreational services.

In 2013, we sold 267 units and the profit margin on total sales of
HK$2,417 million was 60%.

THE HARBOURSIDE

Rising above Kowloon Station, The HarbourSide is a prestigious,
top-end residential development located in a prime area of southwestern
Kowloon.

With a total of 1,122 units in three connected towers, this ultra-modern

property enjoys sweeping 180-degree views of Victoria Harbour and the
best in contemporary lifestyle facilities.

During 2013, one unit was sold with total proceeds amounting to
HK$53 million.

2013 % ANNUAL REPORT
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The Long Beach provides a total of 1,829 high-end residential units

EEYEE23-39 23-39 BLUE POOL ROAD

[EZiE:E23-30 | = FEIHEEBNREE# 5 4 A unique and prestigious project, 23-39 Blue Pool Road in Happy Valley

e wEmEELtF N \BRTFERXK- is a luxury development in a prime location on a site area of 7,850

EEEENTNANBEERNESERgEREEW square meters. The U.S. Green Building Council awarded the residential

@ (e RIBIERstAEE — T2 e project its Gold Level certificate under the Leadership in Energy and

HBAE  BRARBLeSEREEANGE Environmental Design (LEED) for Homes. To date, this is the largest

THE LB TR 2R E Ez AR - project in China to gain this certification, and the first project in the
world registered under the International Pilot Scheme.

BFEENMRN _ZE—=FF+FEBFMRKZTAE  The project was also awarded a Certificate of Excellence in Architecture
P RGEFEASEREERERR - (Best Residential) in the professional category at the 10t Perspective
Awards in 2013.

t
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We have maintained our commitment to the highest quality standards in construction and management
services. This commitment has enabled us to rise above our competitors in mainland China and inject
new energy into the retail industry to bring local citizens a dynamic lifestyle, shopping and leisure
experience.

o B A B ) SR B PR
MAINLAND CHINA PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT
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ER—NANZEFRE  EESXRILEAFERNMYETS o LR TITE
HIBAR SR AT R RBENMMEMRIEARERE -

In the 1990s, Hang Lung became one of a few Hong Kong property developers to
establish a presence in mainland China’s property market. Our focus has been

to build world-class commercial complexes and iconic landmarks, designed by
leading architects, for long-term investment.

ik F

EGHERESR T —=FNA T+ BEAHE
Center 66 in Wuxi celebrates its grand opening on September 16, 2013
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Despite a moderate growth in the Chinese economy in 2013, our
property leasing business in mainland China still recorded a solid
performance. Contributing to this was the steady performance of the
existing portfolio, together with the full year impact of Forum 66 in
Shenyang which commenced operation in September 2012, and the
new mall, Center 66 in Wuxi, which opened in September 2013.

In 2013, the total rental turnover of property leasing in mainland China
was HK$3,984 million, up 13% from 2012.

HEWA

Rental Turnover

3,084
HK$ y Million
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The award-winning Summer in Paris campaign brings a Parisian-style shopping experience to customers of Plaza 66, Shanghai
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PLAZA 66, SHANGHAI

Rental turnover of the mall of Plaza 66 increased by 6% to HK$772
million, mainly attributable to positive rental reversions during the year.

Despite the government’s policy and control on gifting, which affected
the sales performance of certain trades such as watches and jewelry,
retail sales of Plaza 66 recorded just a slight decrease, attributable to
the satisfactory performance of the mall’'s luxury flagship stores and
fashionable designer labels.

In 2013, other factors affecting the retail market as a whole included the
fact that some affluent shoppers chose to spend their money overseas,
taking advantage of the strong RMB, while mass consumers focused
more of their spending power on travel, causing local sales in Shanghai
to decrease.

2013 &% ANNUAL REPORT
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In November 2013, after an impressive refurbishment and expansion
program, Plaza 66 welcomed the re-opening of the Chanel Plaza
66 boutique. The new 800-square meter two-story boutique offers
customers a Parisian shopping experience that is both timeless and
elegant.

As part of Plaza 66's ongoing repositioning and trade mix reorganization,
new brands were introduced to the mall in 2013, including Berluti,
Emilio Pucci, the first Repetto store in Shanghai, as well as new
specialty restaurants and lifestyle cafés. Satisfactory sales performances
were also achieved in 2013 by the existing international fashion labels.

To promote the mall and increase sales, Plaza 66 held a number of
marketing activities in 2013, such as the Summer in Paris campaign.
This event attracted a large number of shoppers and, as a result of
its success, Plaza 66 received the Gold Award of Spatial Display from
the Shanghai Municipal Commission of Commerce and the Shanghai
Commercial Association.

Looking ahead, trade mix refinement will be carried out continuously
to enrich shoppers’ experience and excitement in 2014. We plan to
introduce more F&B outlets to provide an attractive offering to shoppers,
and launch strategic marketing campaigns in order to maintain the
luxury positioning and sales turnover of Plaza 66.

The office towers of Plaza 66 continued to enjoy a high occupancy rate
in 2013, despite several new commercial spaces entering the market.
Rapid tenant replacements also proved that Plaza 66 is a desirable
landmark development in the central business district of Shanghai.
New tenants in 2013 included the law firm Fangda Partners and VIP,
an e-business company.

As a result of steady demand by new and existing tenants, the office
towers at Plaza 66 enjoyed favorable rental reversions and stable
revenue growth in 2013. Rental turnover during the year was HK$800
million, up 7% from 2012.

We are in the process of planning the renovation of the two office towers

at Plaza 66. This will help us stay at the forefront of the market as new
office buildings come on stream in Puxi district.
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The opening of a luxury brand store at Grand Gateway 66 attracts a large crowd of customers
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GRAND GATEWAY 66, SHANGHAI

The softening retail environment in Shanghai had limited effect on the
rental turnover of the shopping mall. Rental turnover of Grand Gateway 66
increased 6% to HK$1,068 million in 2013.

During 2013, following the completion of the second floor renovation, a
total of 17 international brands including Maje, Sandro, Red Valentino
and Diesel opened their doors in Grand Gateway 66. Additionally, MCM
set up one more shop on the second floor, following the success of its
store located on the first floor.

Eland China, which already has a presence at Palace 66, Forum 66 in
Shenyang and Parc 66 in Jinan, leased five units at Grand Gateway 66
in 2013.

Several factors combined to put pressure on the retail market in
Shanghai, including luxury brands holding back on their expansion
plans for Asia, reduced marketing budgets, and the rise of on-line
shopping. As well, competition intensified in 2013 with the opening of
new shopping malls in Shanghai.

2013 % ANNUAL REPORT
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Nevertheless, there were positive trends that emerged during 2013
and these are worth noting. The global economy began to show signs
of recovery while average income in mainland China increased. These
indicators will give consumers greater spending power and ultimately
support the growth of the retail tenants in Grand Gateway 66.

Based on the performance of our existing tenants during the review
period, we expect both retail sales and rental turnover to continue to
increase in 2014. In the year ahead, Grand Gateway 66 will continue
to support tenants and invest in various marketing and promotional
campaigns, while also launching a VIP program and a renovation
program in order to maintain the leading position of the mall in the
mid- to high-end luxury market.

During the year, occupancy rate of the office towers recorded at 93%,
while the residential apartments were leased at 89%, generating rental
turnover of HK$277 million and HK$181 million, respectively. Overall
rental turnover of Grand Gateway 66 was HK$1,526 million, up 5%
from 2012.

PALACE 66, SHENYANG

Commenced operation in 2010, the mall was in the process of a large
scale tenant mix reshuffle in 2013 after the completion of the first lease
cycle. As a result, rental turnover for the year slipped 2% year-on-year
to HK$160 million.

SHERBESHELBEYATISHRERS - RIFRESERZITER PO EL

Fabulous marketing programs are held at Palace 66 to maintain the mall’s positioning as a fashion and lifestyle center
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Muji ~ Pierre Balmain -

We attracted new tenants such as Juicy Couture, BMW Lifestyle,
Aape, Mandarina Duck, CHOCOOLATE and Monki after opening the
international lifestyle brands and fashion zones on the first floor of the
mall. These initiatives led to an increase in retail sales in 2013.

Starbucks, Pacific Coffee and a teahouse were introduced to the mall
for creating a relax and stylish shopping ambience. A series of creative
advertising and promotional campaigns further contributed to the mall’s
growing popularity. Additionally, the completion of road works in August
2013 helped to increase footfall gradually during the year.

In the year ahead, we will continue to upgrade the trade mix by bringing
in affordable luxury brands, fast fashion brands, more F&B outlets,
and lifestyle-oriented services such as a yoga & fitness center. The
mall's positioning as a fashion and lifestyle center targets to attract
more customers, especially from the young age group. With enhanced
tenant mix, we are confident that rental turnover of Palace 66 will grow
satisfactorily.

PARC 66, JINAN

Since opening in Jinan in 2011, Parc 66 has optimized its unique
positioning in the local market as a trend-setting fashion and lifestyle
shopping destination. In 2013, trendy brands introduced by Parc 66 for
the first time in Jinan included Ed Hardy and Tony Studio, and popular
fashion brands J.Lindeberg, Masfer.Su, d’zzit and imi’s also chose to
open their flagship stores here. These tenants have been well accepted
by the market and are enjoying healthy sales turnover. Existing brands
such as Massimo Dutti, Muji, Pierre Balmain, Armani Jeans, Coach,
Juicy Couture, and the upscale supermarket Ole’ also recorded a
satisfactory sales performance during the year.

A variety of creative marketing campaigns was held to provide a
favorable business environment for our tenants, as well as to give
our customers an all-round shopping experience. These included
shows hosted jointly with fashion brands in the mall, the flash mob
performance as a celebration of Parc 66's second anniversary, and the
Halloween parade, which succeeded especially in attracting customers
from the young age group.

2013 % ANNUAL REPORT
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In 2013, Parc 66 enjoyed steady growth in traffic up to a daily average
of 50,000 visitors. Rental turnover was HK$367 million, up 1% from
the previous year. After the completion of the first lease cycle, a
lower occupancy rate was recorded in the course of tenant reshuffle.
Nevertheless, retail sales of Parc 66 increased 8% during 2013, which
proved the great potential in the Jinan retail market. As a result of
more efficient cost control, the rental margin and operating profit also
recorded increases by three points and 7%, respectively.

In the Jinan market, consumers have strong purchasing power but tend
to be conservative in their spending habits, with the majority still focused
on value-for-money household products. In the year ahead, we will
continue to upgrade the mall by exploring the development of special
theme zones such as international trendy fashion brands, first-in-Jinan
brands and domestic designer brands to provide a more convenient
one-stop shopping environment. We will also continue to organize more
brand promotions with tenants and more creative promotional activities
to boost the overall shopping ambience and the sales performance.
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Diversified marketing events at Forum 66 always include appearances by renowned celebrities, boosting the shopping ambience
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MCM, a famous German crafts luxury leather goods retailer, has already
opened its first store in Jinan in January 2014. Innisfree, a very popular
Korean cosmetics brand, will also open its first store in Jinan at Parc 66
in February 2014. With this new energy injected into the mall, together
with our continuous effort in upgrading the trade mix and organizing
diversified marketing campaigns, we are confident that retail sales of the
mall will have a more substantial growth in 2014 and achieve the target
of positioning Parc 66 as the must-visit place in Jinan.

FORUM 66, SHENYANG

Forum 66 has attracted high-end international brands since opening in
September 2012. These tenants helped us maintain a 99% occupancy
rate in 2013. The mall was almost fully let.

Strategic advertising and promotional campaigns have proved highly
effective, enabling us to increase awareness of the mall and traffic
to it. Enlisting the close cooperation of the tenants, we held several
co-marketing events including fashion shows in the atrium. These
innovative marketing initiatives have significantly enhanced the
shopping ambience of the mall.
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Other successful campaigns held at Forum 66 in 2013 included the
launch of iButterfly, the first ever mobile app marketing event held in
Shenyang; Les Champs-Elysées au Forum 66 2013; a number of events
held in connection with Christmas and New Year; and the premiere of
the movie Firestorm at Palace Cinema with a special guest appearance
by renowned Hong Kong artist Andy Lau.

We expect increased pedestrian traffic in the mall with the opening of
the new metro station. The station is directly connected to Forum 66.
The Office Tower One, now under construction, is expected to be topped
outin 2014.

CENTER 66, WUXI

In the few short months after its opening in September 2013, Center 66
has quickly established a following in Wuxi.

These factors contributed to its early success: the mall’s high-end
positioning, a well-designed shopping environment and a desirable
location. These components were supported by an extensive marketing
campaign promoting Center 66 as a fashionable and cosmopolitan
place to shop.

FEEmmEEn T
More high-end brands will open their doors at Center 66 in 2014

mEZEFEHNIERES
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Destined to become the flagship of our operations in Wuxi, Center 66
offers the highest standards of excellence in architectural design. All
under one roof, the mall presents shoppers with an exclusive shopping
experience with global brands, F&B outlets, and lifestyle offerings.
Among the 250 tenants who have leased premises in Center 66 are
CHAUMET, kate spade, PRADA, Roger Vivier, Valentino, Cerruti 1881,
EMPORIO ARMANI, RIMOWA, TOD'’S and Uniglo.

Although the mainland China government has implemented measures
to rein in the economy, and there has also been an influx of new
commercial projects into Wuxi in recent years, we are optimistic about
the prospects for Center 66. More footfall is expected as the new
subway passageway and office tower will both open in 2014. New
tenants such as Louis Vuitton, Apple, Ermenegildo Zegna, MONT
BLANC, Panerai and Jaecer-LECOULTRE, as well as a number of high-end
F&B brands, will arrive. In addition, other renowned brands are also
paying keen attention to Center 66, creating more and more excitement
and opportunities for the mall.

RIVERSIDE 66, TIANJIN

Anticipation is growing among prospective tenants, consumers, the
media and local government in advance of the grand opening of
Riverside 66 in the third quarter of 2014.

Positioned as a stylish and trend-setting lifestyle destination, this new
mall will attract attention with its outstanding architectural design
and quality management services. Our marketing efforts have been
successful as we have signed or secured commitments from anchor
tenants and from international fashion brands, F&B outlets and lifestyle
retailers. Some of these tenants are new to the market and will open
their first store in Tianjin.

Our focus for the mall is on lifestyle luxury products and high-end

fashion brands. The new tenants at Riverside 66 are able to support
this new, trend-setting shopping experience we are bringing to Tianjin.

2013 % ANNUAL REPORT
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Riverside 66 provides an exciting and trend-setting lifestyle destination
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The grand opening of Riverside 66 will be the most important event for
the Group in 2014. To keep expectations and anticipation high, we are
planning a series of exciting marketing events.

Over the course of next few years, Tianjin and the surrounding area will
see an increase in the number of mixed-use developments, international
office towers, hotels, serviced apartments and luxury residences. We
expect these developments will contribute to a stable and high quality
source of consumer traffic for Riverside 66. Despite the competitive
market situation in Tianjin, we remain confident that our first-class
property management services, as well as creative marketing and
promotional activities will be successful in attracting and retaining
quality tenants and consumers in Tianjin.
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Mainland China Rental Turnover Mainland China Rental Turnover by Business Segment
R-ZT—=%+-"HA=+—H At December 31, 2013
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PERBIREYE ZIREDN
SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS OF MAINLAND CHINA INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

HZE+-A=+—HI-%FZ For the year ended December 31

SIEAEEA BEMA it
(FFEAHK) (B¥aET) (B
Total Gross Floor Area* Rental Turnover Occupancy Rate
('000 sg.m.) (HK$ Million) (%)
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
L] Commercial 674 556 2,695 2,305 93 97
N Office 227 227 1,059 990 94 98
FERET Residential and
Apartment 83 83 181 183 89 96
=E5 Car Park 576 460 49 48 N/A N/A
5T Total 1,560 1,326 3,984 3,526 93 97

# B IR KK 2 S E E A
Including gross floor area above and below ground
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GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF MAINLAND CHINA INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
R-ZT—=F+=-A=+—H At December 31, 2013

BIEEEE
(FFF7XK)
Total Gross Floor Area”
('000 sg.m.)
REYHE Investment Properties
tiE Shanghai
HIER Xuhui District 315
HZE Jing'an District 273
&G Shenyang
ol (PAR) Shenhe District (Zhongjie Lu) 181
e (FEARE) Shenhe District (Qingnian Da Jie) 301
piyea) Jinan 256
&5 Wuxi
SzE (ARFBEK) Chong’an District (Renmin Zhong Lu) 234
@t Total 1,560
BREHREYE Investment Properties Under Development
&k Shenyang
EE (FFEAME) Shenhe District (Qingnian Da Jie) 759
&5 Wuxi
Sz@E (ARFE) Chong’an District (Renmin Zhong Lu) 145
S=XE (BEK) Chong'an District (Jiankang Lu) 109
PN Tianjin 153
RE Dalian 222
B Kunming 434
HE Wuhan 460
st Total 2,282

¥ BEE RE 2 B E

Including gross floor area above and below ground
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In the third quarter of 2014, one of the highlights for our property

development business will be the grand opening of Riverside 66 in Tianjin,
another iconic landmark in northeastern China.
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RIVERSIDE 66, TIANJIN

Riverside 66 is strategically located in the heart of Tianjin on a prime
site in Heping Lu, one of the “Ten Most Famous Commercial Streets
in China”. Encompassing 152,800 square meters of world-class
commercial facilities, Riverside 66 will be a landmark development and
one of the longest shopping malls in China.

Riverside 66 has been widely acclaimed for its innovative design
which allowed it to garner several design awards, including the 2010
AlIA New York Chapter’s Design Awards — Unbuilt Category from
the American Institute of Architects (AIA) New York Chapter. Other
recognitions included the MIPIM Architectural Review Future Project
Awards 2007 — Retail and Leisure award, and Precertification under
the Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) for Core
and Shell Development — Gold Level issued by the U.S. Green Building
Council. Pre-leasing and other tenant-related activity are now in top gear
in preparation for the grand opening in the third quarter of 2014.

REH)BIE 5 A T RO M B R 3%
Riverside 66 is located in the heart of Tianjin on Heping Lu
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CENTER 66 — PHASE 1 & PHASE 2, WUXI

On September 16, 2013, we held a ceremony to celebrate the grand
opening of the shopping mall in Phase 1 of Center 66 in Wuxi, Jiangsu
Province. This enterprise represents our latest commercial complex
project to open its doors in the affluent Yangtze River Delta region.

Conveniently located in Wuxi’s Chong’an central business district on
Renmin Zhong Lu, this world-class shopping mall has a gross floor area
of 262,700 square meters (excluding car park areas). Plans for two
Grade A office towers, due for completion in phases beginning from
2014 onwards, will round out the shopping mall.

Phase 2, just south of Renmin Zhong Lu, will provide excellent
commercial facilities, as well as a hotel and serviced apartments. Upon
its completion, Center 66 will be the largest retail and commercial
landmark in the central business district of Wuxi.

i
'N
AR

Center 66 offers shoppers an exceptional shopping experience with a host of international brands
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FORUM 66, SHENYANG

Located in Shenyang, the largest city of Liaoning Province, Forum 66
covers a gross floor area of 1,060,000 square meters.

The shopping mall opened in September 2012 and will eventually be
joined by two office towers rising 350 meters above the city. These
towers will be the tallest office buildings in northeast China. The low and
middle zone of Office Tower One has an expected inauguration date in
2015. In addition to the shopping mall and office towers, Forum 66 will
include hotels and serviced apartments.

The Forum 66 complex is strategically located on Qingnian Da Jie,
the “Golden Corridor” which runs through the Shenyang city center.
It is also close to Shenyang’s most well-known landmarks such as the
Liaoning Grand Theater, the Liaoning Provincial Museum, the Municipal
Government Building and City Plaza. Additionally, a new metro line and
station opened in 2013, providing direct access to Forum 66, injecting
new energy into the area and bringing more pedestrian traffic to the mall.

Built to the high level of environmental standards, the shopping mall
of Forum 66 has been awarded Certification under the Leadership
in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) for Core and Shell
Development — Gold Level by the U.S. Green Building Council.

B S 0 AME—H 0 — T — T
Forum 66's Office Tower One will be topped out in 2014
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Olympia 66 holds a topping-out ceremony of its major structure in November 2013
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OLYMPIA 66, DALIAN

Covering a total of 221,900 square meters in the city of Dalian, Liaoning
Province, Olympia 66 will provide an iconic new shopping, dining and
entertainment complex to the area. Centrally located at Wusi Lu, one
of the city’s leading commercial avenues adjacent to Olympic Square,
Olympia 66 is destined to become the largest new shopping mall
development in Dalian. The opening of Olympia 66 is scheduled for 2015.

A new landmark for the city, this shopping mall has already received
wide acclaim for its unique design that blends traditional Chinese and
modern design elements. The design is based on the concept of the
auspicious Chinese Tai Chi twin dancing carps. It has won numerous
awards, including the MIPIM Asia Awards 2011 — Bronze Award in
the category of the Best Chinese Futura Projects, as well as the highly
coveted Best Retail Architecture in Asia Pacific and Five-star Best Retail
Architecture in China awards at the International Property Awards 2011.
We are immensely proud that Olympia 66 outperformed other projects
from across the world to bring home the Best International Retail
Architecture 2011 award. The project was also awarded the top honor
in the 2013 Cityscape Awards for Emerging Markets in the category of
Retail Project Awards — Future.

As part of our We Do It Right principle, the Olympia 66 project was
designed as truely environmentally-friendly building. Our efforts
were rewarded when the project received Precertification under the
Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) for Core and
Shell Development — Gold Level from the U.S. Green Building Council.

63



. [
EIEE 7 55 &9 T Management Discussion and Analysis ILl

PR R ERE

Mainland China Property Development

EEES « BH

“E-CET-A SEUNERERES
T H AR 38 B 1B EE S5 81T T B T B4R
B RBERMORBEFEHE T
RE- AEEBEEEENT=8=Fx
BFAK G ERME  TRESEBE
) RERBENES  FRNIERR
BABMR -8 BHR -T2 \FEH
HARRAK ©

EHAMIERESUE T OEER ORI
o RERSTPNPTRABHEEOZLE
e BELERERMBMARNELR - 4t
IR EREE - FEAE R - BNE BT M IR
TBBARERARABZIRIES 5
HyF o

EEp e — SRRk = RasEE RN
BEESER  E—FREBBAR -

SPRING CITY 66, KUNMING

Opening a new chapter in our Mainland operations, we broke ground
for Spring City 66 in November 2012. Spring City 66 represents a
major new development for Hang Lung in the city of Kunming, Yunnan
Province. The complex will encompass a total gross floor area of
433,500 square meters (ground level or above and B1 commercial area,
excluding car park areas), accommodating a world-class shopping mall,
a Grade A office tower and serviced apartments. The project is due for
completion in phases from 2018.

A new central business district is now being planned for Kunming,
and Spring City 66 is situated in a desirable central location in the core
business and commercial heart of the city. Located on the site of the
former municipal building of the Kunming government, Spring City 66
is ideally positioned along the intersection of Dongfeng Dong Lu to the
north and Beijing Lu to the west, the two leading commercial avenues
and main thoroughfares in the city.

Metro Lines 2 and 3 now under construction will provide direct access
to Spring City 66 and attract further traffic to the complex.

BN BRERESLETHOBER RIS - HEMF

Spring City 66 enjoys a perfect location in the business and commercial heart of Kunming
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Heartland 66 has its groundbreaking ceremony in November 2013
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HEARTLAND 66, WUHAN

Another important milestone for Hang Lung is Heartland 66 in Wuhan,
the capital city of Hubei Province.

On November 19, 2013, we held a groundbreaking ceremony for
Heartland 66, our 10" development on the Mainland and one that will
give us a major presence in the central region of the country. Wuhan
is a focal point for the nation’s “Rise of Central China” strategy, as well
as being a key transportation hub. Both these factors will allow us to
benefit from the economic development currently underway in the area.

Heartland 66 will be a showcase of modern architecture and design,
bringing together the best of East and West. It will be our flagship project
for central China and will comprise a world-class shopping mall, a Grade
A office tower and serviced apartments covering a total gross floor area
of 460,000 square meters (ground level or above and B1 commercial
area, excluding car park areas).

Situated conveniently near light rail and mass railway connections,
Heartland 66 enjoys an ideal location on Jinghan Da Dao in the vibrant
Qiaokou District, the commercial and business heart of Wuhan.
Scheduled for completion in phases from 2019, the shopping mall will
be the first structure to be completed.
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SEELER
BEEER (Ao k) s
AR (FTFK) Group’s R BHEA
(EFHXK) FEME  Total Gross  Attributable HET PR Expected
Site Area Main Floor Area Interest Stage of  Completion
ith Bh Location (sq.m.) Usage (sq.m.) (%) Completion Date
5B HONG KONG
BEEE Blue Pool Road, 7,850 R 8,585 52.5 B 2014
N ER 574757 IL 5747 Superstructure
& SHENYANG
HITIEREYS - Forum 66, 92,065 C/H/0/S 758,800 52.5 BELE 2015
SNl Qingnian Da Jie, Superstructure e
A& Shenhe District onwards
i) WUXI
182 E% (—Hj) - Center 66 (Phase 1), 37,324 0 144,590 52.5 R b 2014
AR - Renmin Zhong Lu, Superstructure il
=R Chong’an District onwards
1BEY% (—H) - Center 66 (Phase 2), 16,767 C/H/0/S 108,980 52.5 =tE
R Jiankang Lu, Planning
e Chong’an District
RE TIANJIN
B E%S Riverside 66, 42,697 C 152,800 52.5 BREEE 2014
FFEpE Heping Lu, Superstructure
FFEE Heping District
KE DALIAN
1BfZ &5 - Olympia 66, 63,400 C 221,900 52.5 BELE 2015
AP Wusi Lu, Superstructure
MR Xigang District
E B KUNMING
128 &S Spring City 66, 56,042 C/0/S 433,500 52.5 ETE 2018
FEEE Dongfeng Dong Lu, Foundation ie
Bl Panlong District onwards
HE WUHAN
BEES Heartland 66 82,637 C/0/S 460,000 52.5 FHEl 2019
FUEKE Jinghan Da Dao, Planning !
BAE Qiaokou District onwards
C : #¥% Commercial
H : JBJE Hotel
0 : #RIE Office
R : {£= Residential
S RENERT/ AERE/E Serviced Apartment
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PROPERTIES COMPLETED FOR SALE
WZZ—=%+=H=+1—H At December 31, 2013
SEEEER =#E =#E
HEEER (Aot EEEN BHuHA
(FE7K) Group’s 2 H No. of
Total Gross Attributable No. of Car Park
FERR Floor Area Interest Residential Space
ith Bh Location Main Usage (sq.m.) (%) Unit for Sale for Sale
58 HONG KONG
EBRXT The HarbourSide, R 35,729 52.5 272 254
It EEE LR - 1 Austin Road West,
JUBE A ER 1108055 KIL 11080
IR The Long Beach, R 71,585 52.5 859 390
YR IRIESSR 8 Hoi Fai Road,
JUEE A ER 1115258 KIL 11152
BFEX AquaMarine, R 1,678 52.5 17 494
RS FRESR 8 Sham Shing Road,
M LBE A B 63385 NKIL 6338
Bzl Carmel-on-the-Hill, R 286 52.5 2 14
PR EO5E 9 Carmel Village Street,

FUBEAIER 11122557

KIL 11122

R : {£= Residential
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MAJOR INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

R-Z—=%+=HA=+—H At December 31, 2013

HEEEE (FHXK)

Total Gross Floor Area (sq.m.)

BABR
I%/WAE  ATRES A
Office and Residential No. of
22 [ i 5 | Industrial/ and Car Park
I 2 Location Lease Expiry Commercial Office Apartment Space
5B HONG KONG
IR CENTRAL
ENfR4T - Printing House, 2848 1,709 5,980 - -
HEZF 65 - 6 Duddell Street,
A E% 3399 IL 339
#HWEFETLE 1 Duddell Street, 2848 2,340 6,616 - -
AHLER 731058 IL 7310
BRRIT Baskerville House, 2880 1,473 3,379 - -
E W ET2255 22 |ce House Street,
A HDER 6445k IL 644
BITIRTTRE - Standard Chartered 2854 4814 23,730 - 16
EEER4-4ASE Bank Building,
TS S ER 10357 4-4A Des Voeux Road Central,
AR BER Sections A&B of ML 103
SRS N T CAUSEWAY BAY AND WAN CHAI
BRI - Hang Lung Centre, 2864 8,777 22131 - 126
B EHE2-205% 2-20 Paterson Street,
P ER 5245k N2 74955 IL 524 & IL 749
e Fashion Walk, 2842, 2864 31,072 - 7,935 -
BiEHE - B8 - Paterson Street, & 2868
SAMERE Houston Street,
=R - mLUEd Great George Street,
LTE Cleveland Street, Kingston
B ER 2315k Street, Gloucester Road,
5255 - B ML 231 & ML 52,
4695% ;247058 IL469 & IL 470
mZz s Shui On Centre, 2060* - 16,313 - 42
15%281% - 15/F-28/F,
B2 E6-85F 6-8 Harbour Road,
b ER 863355 IL 8633

* AT RF

With an option to renew for a further term of 75 years
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Ml
HEEEE (FHXK)
Total Gross Floor Area (sq.m.)
BABR
I¥/Png FEREFT HuHE
Office and Residential No. of
3 22 [ % 5 5 [k Industrial/ and Car Park
ith Bh Location Lease Expiry Commercial Office Apartment Space
&8 @) HONG KONG (Continued)
ERie (BE0E) KORNHILL (QUARRY BAY)
FEieES Kornhill Plaza, 2059* 53,080 10,577 - 1,069
FELLE1-28% - 1-2 Kornhill Road,
A Hl % 856655k IL 8566
FREE Kornhill Apartments, 2059* - - 35,275
FELILE25R - 2 Kornhill Road,
A 1 EX 85665 IL 8566
INEPSEIIE THE PEAK AND MID-LEVELS
\WTEES The Peak Galleria, 2047 12,446 - - 493
LITEZE1185%% - 118 Peak Road,
AP HEEZ 355 RBL 3
TEEZE Nos. 2&3, 2078 & 2886 - - 558 25
2-35REE R Garden Terrace, Block 2,
ELTRE8ASE 8A Old Peak Road,
ML EZ 89655 2 2850%%  IL 896 & IL 2850
iz The Summit, 2047 - - 15,225 54
AIEBCEALCHE 41C Stubbs Road,
A1 EZ 88705k IL 8870
=1 HONG KONG SOUTH
BEE Burnside Villa, 2072 - - 9,212 89
B 9 South Bay Road,
T RBHBEZ994 55 RBL 994
*AEHETRSF

With an option to renew for a further term of 75 years
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SETEYE

Major Group Properties

C FEREWE )
MAJOR INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

R-Z—=%+=HA=+—H At December 31, 2013

HEEERE (FHXK)

Total Gross Floor Area (sq.m.)

AR
I/ Mag  GEEREF HUHAE
Office and Residential No. of
3t 32 [ v F A [k Industrial/ and Car Park
I 2 Location Lease Expiry Commercial Office Apartment Space
&% @) HONG KONG (continued)
iRy=:! MONGKOK
REAAF L E—H Argyle Centre, Phase |, 2060 114 - - -
A IE6S8HR - 688 Nathan Road,
TLEE AL ER 126255 KIL 1262
FERGH L - Grand Plaza, 2060 20,905 31,251 - 40
TFB625%7 26395 625 & 639 Nathan Road,
BRI KIL 10234 &
10234%5F K 1024655 KIL 10246
BEAE Hang Tung Building, 2045* - - - 1,000
EERE1112-11205% - 1112-1120 Canton Road,
JLBE AL ER KIL 9708
97085k
famEER L/ Park-In Commercial Centre/ 2044* 7,454 30,205 - 478
K&k Gala Place,
BT 5655 56 Dundas Street,
TLBERIHEER KIL 9590
95905
REERERD - Hollywood Plaza, 2047 9,139 17,941 - -
FHE6105R - 610 Nathan Road,
JLBE A ER KIL 11024
110245%
Eigll Carmel-on-the-Hill, 2050 2,131 - - 11
MR - 9 Carmel Village Street,
NEERHER KIL 11122
1112258

* ABHtEtThF

With an option to renew for a further term of 75 years
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HMEEER (FAXK)

Total Gross Floor Area (sq.m.)

BABR
I¥/Png FEREFT HuHE
Office and Residential No. of
3 22 [ % 5 5 [k Industrial/ and Car Park
h 2 Location Lease Expiry Commercial Office Apartment Space
&8 @) HONG KONG (continued)
RPE R FENEE TSIM SHA TSUI AND WEST KOWLOON
BEF L Grand Centre, 2038 3,688 7,198 - -
HE R ESs 8 Humphreys Avenue,
TLBE AL ER KIL 7725 & KIL 8026
772555 ]2 80265
[ER=Yi=t- 3 Hanford Fashion, 2037 1,444 4,891 - -
WPCE221B-E 5 221B-E Nathan Road,
NEEAMEL106195% K% KIL 10619 & KIL 8132
81325k
HFEEX AquaMarine, 2050 22,350 - - 494
RER LSS 8 Sham Shing Road,
HLBE A ER NKIL 6338
63385
REE The Long Beach, 2050 20,174 - - 390
TSEIESYR 8 Hoi Fai Road,
NEEARHBEL KIL 11152
111525%
4EEA NGAU TAU KOK
B RS Amoy Plaza, 2047 49,006 - - 620
FEEABTTR - 77 Ngau Tau Kok Road,
FTBER M ERS35E NKIL 53, NKIL 1482,
14825 ~ 26605% NKIL 2660 & NKIL 3947
239475
YA RTEARL - Amoycan Industrial Centre, 2047 - 8,589 - -
HFEEAETR - 7 Ngau Tau Kok Road,
FBERHIER NKIL 1744
1744%5%

/1
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SETEYE

Major Group Properties

C FEREWE )
MAJOR INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

R-Z—=%+=HA=+—H At December 31, 2013

54T Management Discussion and Analysis

HEEERE (FHXK)

Total Gross Floor Area (sq.m.)

WARR
I¥/BrE  (EBREM BHUHE
Office and Residential No. of
22 [ i 5 it Industrial/ and Car Park
I 2 Location Lease Expiry Commercial Office Apartment Space
&% @) HONG KONG (continued)
A& RREE CHEUNG SHA WAN, KWAI CHUNG AND TSUEN WAN
B AIES225R - 822 Lai Chi Kok Road, 2047 - 9,004 - 73
HTILRE A HE ER 556857 NKIL 5568
GNEE DA 9 Wing Hong Street, 2047 - 35,223 - 95
FNBEANMEL62295%  NKIL 6229
BEIER Laichikok Bay Garden, 2047 3,109 - - 172
%%%UJ}EIAI - 1A2 - Shops 1A1, 1A2,
5A - 6A 6B 5RE4 ©  HA, 6A & 6B,
AIE XD 45RIER Lai King Hill Road,
33365 Lot 3336 of SD 4
/g%ma Bayview Garden, 2047 4,959 - - 52
/%%EIJJL6335E ' 633 Castle Peak Road,
ZE T HEL 32998 Tsuen Wan, TWTL 329
P TUEN MUN
KEIEE Tai Hing Gardens, 2047 10,970 - - 387
@F‘?**Eﬂll%ﬁ& 11 Tsun Wen Road and
AT ERATIONA - 10A Ho Hing Circuit,
P ER 312557 Tuen Mun, TMTL 312
gEFL Luen Cheong Can Centre, 2047 - 7,856 - 37
P SERT P85 8 Yip Wong Road,
XELH1315 Tuen Mun,
HbEX 116958 Lot 1169 in DD 131

72 EREDAERA
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MgmmE (FHXK)
Total Gross Floor Area* (sq.m.)
BABR
I¥/Png EERER BHiuHE
Office and Residential No. of
3 22 [ % 5 5 [k Industrial/ and Car Park
ith Bh Location Lease Expiry Commercial Office Apartment Space
b SHANGHAI
BIEEE Grand Gateway 66 2063 - - 64,900 -
F—HANE—H - Gardens 1 & 2,
| |§R21185% 2118 Hua Shan Lu,
IRIER Xuhui District
TBIEEREES - Grand Gateway 66, 2043 120,000 67,200 18,300 835
ITRERE 1SR - 1 Hong Qiao Lu,
RIEE Xuhui District
BEES Plaza 66, 2044 53,700 159,600 - 804
R P95 12665 - 1266 Nan Jing Xi Lu,
HE Jing’an District
& SHENYANG
EWERES Palace 66, 2057 109,300 - - 864
RS 1285% 128 Zhongjie Lu,
&R Shenhe District
MITERES - Forum 66, 2058 101,960 - - 2,139
HEKRE Qingnian Da Jie,
VA & Shenhe District
=] JINAN
1BfZ & - Parc 66, 2059 171,000 - - 789
SR 1885% - 188 Quancheng Lu,
JF AN Lixia District
%) WUXI
BEES (—H) Center 66 (Phase 1), 2049 118,135 - - 1,292
AERREE - Renmin Zhong Lu,
e Chong’an District

# B IR R MK 2 A2 E E AR
Including gross floor area above and below ground

/3
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2013 FINANCIAL RESULTS

When excluding the effect of investment properties disposed of in 2012,
turnover and operating profit of the Group increased by 26% and 21%
to HK$9,734 million and HK$7,252 million, respectively. Otherwise,
turnover advanced by 22% which was mainly attributable to the 8%
rental growth to HK$7,216 million and the 97% increase in property
sales to HK$2,518 million.

e LA

Turnover Operating Profit
ﬂﬁ&@ ﬂ@%@
o i B
Change on Change on
£k%  a comparable 2% a comparable
BEEETT HK$ Million 2013 2012  Change basis 2013 2012  Change basis
Y)¥FE  Property leasing 7,216 6,711 8% 12% 5,731 5,313 8% 12%
YI%EEEE  Property sales 2,518 1,275 97% 97% 1,521 847 80% 80%
#EE Total 9,734 7,986 22% 26% 7,252 6,160 18% 21%

SENRLERD — BAERTEAMYEMR
EXGHBEZSRIER FEKLEER
ZHERARERENRAEEABES 2T
— o pREERBLT BT RAST
REBRtTEE=ZT—BET - £M
5 HSRAREFRENEEREDZN °

BREVEREEENERINBRES ZE
Th FEARYELEEEAEERRSK
AREERFzLESR ABES2ETR
kBEAZA+T= -

The core property leasing business in Hong Kong and Mainland China
continued to achieve solid growth. Rental turnover and operating profit
of the continuing operations both advanced by 12% to HK$7,216
million and HK$5,731 million, respectively. Overall, both rental turnover
and operating profit was up 8%.

Profit margin of the entire leasing business was 79%. Our Mainland
China portfolio accounted for 55% and 52% of the Group’s rental
turnover and operating profit, respectively.

74 EfEEEAR AT HANG LUNG GROUP LIMITED 2013 3 ANNUAL REPORT
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Leasing turnover and profit by region is summarized as follows:

e EERN

Turnover Operating Profit
ﬂﬁ&@ ﬂ@%@
A i B
Change on Change on
2k%  a comparable 4% a comparable
BEEETT  HKS Million 2013 2012  Change basis 2013 2012  Change basis
BE Hong Kong 3,232 3,185 1% 10% 2,736 2,645 3% 11%
FAE|A#  Mainland China 3,984 3,526 13% 13% 2,995 2,668 12% 12%
peabc) Total 7,216 6,711 8% 12% 5,731 5,313 8% 12%

BT FEA R R EHR EALL
FEEREMENHEHSRAERBDZTE
BBt _Rf=T-a8T ZFuniE
RASZT—EZA¥ _+LtR=FT"B&8
Lo REmE BB AREZENR L
FEMNLEABAZ—RADZ=" tF
BEFZ2HXE@E AR RE(LCERP
HMERME - WAL BYENEEXRS
A EFMEERHEZERS 2N+ N\ R —EE
HEANZNTE-

B A S H) TH & WA R & s M D R
RSzt =B =TNENTOA
Bxlhkanszt—EZ8% _t+ThEALTH
BET LEVEFELER MER=-F
—ZFNARBRGRENTNERESR
EFEELE UNESHOHEBERSN T
—ZFNARE HREBNREFEHL
HEf -

BERARSAMBARNFARDRBRER
EmEREZmEEERNE  LENE
ZES NEEERES 2 HE WA D RIE
RBEDZERBDZN - BEEBERESHN
BYESRELHEL  MERESNE
WESELREAS 2N TN MENR
NEHERERED Z N -

Compared to 2012, Hong Kong investment properties generated a
10% growth in rental turnover to HK$3,232 million and 11% growth
in operating profit to HK$2,736 million on a comparable basis. Overall
rental turnover and operating profit was up 1% and 3%, respectively
compared to a year ago. The growth was mainly achieved through
optimizing the tenant mix in the Commercial and Office segments.
Occupancy rates of the Commercial segment increased two points to
98% and the Office segment was up one point to 94%.

Rental turnover and operating profit of our Mainland China operations
rose 13% to HK$3,984 million and 12% to HK$2,995 million,
respectively. The robust results were contributed by the continuous
growth of our properties in Shanghai, the full year impact of the mall in
Shenyang, Forum 66, which commenced operation in September 2012,
and the new mall in Wuxi, Center 66, which opened in September 2013.

Shanghai Plaza 66 and Grand Gateway 66 collected 7% and 6% more
rents, respectively despite a general slowdown of luxury goods sales as
a result of government’s anti-corruption and anti-opulence measures on
the Mainland. The Grand Gateway 66 mall remained fully let and Plaza
66 mall reached 96% occupancy. Occupancy rate of our office towers
in Shanghai was around 94%.
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Rental turnover of Shenyang Palace 66 decreased by 2% and Jinan
Parc 66 rose 1% when compared to 2012. Both shopping malls have
been going through the process of tenant reshuffling after completion
of the first lease term since their opening. Meanwhile, occupancy
rates were adversely affected. Retail sales of both malls increased
satisfactorily year-on-year despite lower occupancy rates which showed
the great potential of the malls.

Shenyang Forum 66, opened in September 2012, recorded a 4%
and 15% increase in rental turnover and retail sales on an average
daily basis.

Performance of Wuxi Center 66, which was 3.5 months old at year end
date, was encouraging with rising footfall and retail sales. Occupancy
rate stood at 95%.

With the gradual improvement in sentiments of the Hong Kong
residential market during the last quarter of 2013, we capitalized
on such opportunity and part with 267 units of The Long Beach
apartments. Together with one unit of The HarbourSide, four units of
Aqua Marine and two other apartments, a total of 274 apartments were
sold during 2013. Compared to 2012, property sales turnover and
operating profit advanced by 97% to HK$2,518 million and 80% to
HK$1,521 million, respectively. Average profit margin was 60%.

Other income decreased by 97% or HK$ 2,184 million to HK$63 million
because the Group sold much fewer investment properties during 2013
as compared to a year ago. The one-off gain from disposal of investment
properties in 2013 amounted to only $9 million which was significantly
less than the gain of HK$2,149 million recorded in 2012.

2013 % ANNUAL REPORT
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Net interest income surged 63% to HK$429 million when compared
with the previous year. This was partly due to a higher average cash
and bank balance and partly attributable to the capitalization of a larger
amount of interest expenses following the addition of the Kunming
Spring City 66 and Wuhan Heartland 66 to projects under development
on the Mainland.

In 2013, the fair value of the Group’s investment properties increased
by 2% or HK$2,651 million. Property revaluation was undertaken
by an independent professional valuer, Savills. There was no change
in valuation methodology and capitization rates used between the
two years.

As a result of a much lower one-off gain arising from the disposal of
investment properties, profit attributable to shareholders decreased
by 13% to HK$4,557 million compared to the previous year. When
excluding the one-off gain and the effect of the discontinued operations,
profit attributable to shareholders would increase 9% compared to a
year ago.

2013 FINANCIAL POSITION

The Group continued to maintain a strong balance sheet with a high
degree of liquidity and financial resources to meet future capital
commitments and seize new investment opportunities. Net assets
increased by over 5% and net debt to equity ratio maintained at a low
level of 3.9%.

With the transfer of the newly opened Wuxi Center 66 mall and a 2%

revaluation gain on the existing portfolio, the amount of investment
properties increased by 9% to HK$115,818 million compared to 2012.

77



EIEE 7 7 Mo T Management Discussion and Analysis IIL'

B %5 [0 &

Financial Review

ERPREVERRBRUNERS - B X
KRB BRRRENER HeB E
ANz —tOsEERETAEAT A
BresB-—aZTNELtTN\AST x
EZHNBARARB =+ =ETHRED
BA-—BEBENN\E_-_FTREBA+TFFK
MER - U/ LS RE XMET
E EBENREEIADENRENENE
HWERESCARTR - RENERE
GEYESER T —NF T EFHE
H A8 B 19 1R5H BT -

FEVEENEEAREEXRAIHEEN
EFEEMNOKRA  HPEEN\BL+NE
REEBEMN - —BET_EEBRXTE
I~ +EEZBEREMN  WEFRLUE
RN BENERE - T ==+ %
BlfEi e + MBS - FEMESRE
EFERY  TBEHAR-_ZT-=FREH
AT T EERATE

SERGEEANRS RIRTTEH AL =
BATEREZENEE T EPBRES 2
NT=ZABARERITER BEARKERF
HREERAARBHENAMIBE BT
BRERBRARIEHREARE D - HIRER
wEAENERATE-_THEELE &
BR-_E—=F+_A=+—HHEEHA
RELEBBE D =8N -

78 |[EE&EEAR AT HANG LUNG GROUP LIMITED

Investment properties under development increased by 24% or
HK$5,996 million to HK$30,478 million which comprised projects in
Shenyang, Wuxi, Tianjin, Dalian, Kunming & Wuhan. The increase
was attributed to the acquisition of a prime lot of about 82,650 square
meters in Wuhan for RMB3.3 billion and construction payments of the
above-mentioned projects, after deducting the amount relating to the
transfer out of Wuxi Center 66 to completed investment properties. The
opening of our new shopping mall in Tianjin, Riverside 66, is scheduled
in the second half of 2014. Other projects under development on the
Mainland are progressing as planned.

Properties for sale represent the cost of the completed residential
apartments available for sale at the year end date. It comprised of 859
units of The Long Beach, 272 units of The HarbourSide, 17 units of
Aqua Marine, 2 units of Carmel-on-the-Hill and the near completion
of 18 houses located at 23-39 Blue Pool Road in Happy Valley. The
amount of properties for sale decreased comparing to the previous year
was due to the sale of 274 apartments during 2013.

At the balance sheet date, cash and bank balances amounted to
HK$39,704 million, of which over 93% was held in RMB bank deposits
to provide a natural hedge against the currency fluctuations of our
RMB construction commitments on the Mainland. After deducting total
borrowings amounted to HK$45,024 million, the net debt to equity ratio
was 3.9% as at December 31, 2013.

2013 % ANNUAL REPORT
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FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
COMMITMENT

In addition to the HK$39,704 million cash and bank balance as stated
above, the Group had committed undrawn banking facilities amounted
to HK$8,781 million at the year end date. The Group also maintained a
Medium Term Note (“MTN”) Program through its principle subsidiary,
Hang Lung Properties Ltd, which would enable it to issue debt securities
up to an equivalent of US$3,000 million (approximately HK$23,290
million). At the balance sheet date, the Group had issued a total of
HK$7,290 million under the Program. The Group could issue a further
amount of HK$16,000 million MTN under the Program if necessary. Out
of the total amount of HK$7,290 million MTN was HK$1,490 million
fixed rate MTN issued during 2013. The weighted average remaining
tenor of all MTN issued was 8.2 years (2012: 9.4 years). All MTN was
un-rated and issued with coupon rates ranged from 2.95% to 4.75%
(2012: 3.55% to 4.75%) per annum.

As at December 31, 2013, the Group had total capital commitments
amounted to HK$49 billion, which were mainly RMB denominated
construction costs in respect of projects under development on the
Mainland. Those projects would take many years to complete. As
outlined above, the Group has ample financial resources to meet those
commitments when they fall due.

The Group will continue to adopt a prudent and sound financial
management strategy to support its long-term growth. With a strong
balance sheet and quality recurring rental income, the Group is
well positioned to further build up its land bank when suitable
opportunities arise.
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LAND BANK ACQUISITION AND
PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

Hang Lung Group has a long-term expansion strategy for mainland
China to minimize the effects of short-term market fluctuations and
government policies. Under this strategy, we have established and
continued to maintain a solid land bank for property development. When
the right opportunities arise, we carefully scrutinize each project or
parcel of land for related risks and returns. These include consideration
and assessment of relevant government policies, the level of local
government support, market demand and conditions, and economic
data as well as infrastructure support in the neighboring area. If these
requirements are met, we will present a proposal to the Board for their
final approval.

When a project is underway, our project team closely monitors its
progress and evaluates and approves any necessary changes to the
design or construction works. Our management also takes part in
supervising projects and conducts regular progress reviews. If changes
are required, management is thus able to make prompt decisions.

Our skilled and professional project team is also responsible for keeping
the Board fully informed through regular and comprehensive reports.

As is the case with any development, cost and quality controls are
essential to a project’s success. This is particularly important when
several large development projects are in the pipeline. Throughout
different stages of a project, management will maintain tight controls
over its cost and the selection of contractors and material suppliers in
order to maintain the high standards of excellence.

2013 % ANNUAL REPORT
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INTERNAL CONTROL ENVIRONMENT

We adhere to a stringent set of internal controls using well-established
guidelines for regular management reviews, segregation of duties,
budgetary controls, limits for various levels of authority, a whistle-blowing
mechanism, Code of Conduct for both staff and trading partners, and
training for staff development.

As part of our commitment to good corporate governance and
transparency, we have clearly defined the responsibilities of Directors
with regard to security transactions and require all executive staff
to submit a signed declaration of compliance with the Code of
Conduct regarding “Transactions in the Company’s Shares” on a
half-yearly basis.

TREASURY RISK

We have made every effort through our treasury policies to mitigate the
various treasury risks to which we are exposed.

(a) Interest Rates and Foreign Exchange

Most of the Group’s borrowings are floating-rate bank loans, which
expose us to movements in interest rates. We closely monitor the
interest rate risks and when appropriate will adopt measures to manage
the associated risks — including but not limited to the issuance of fixed
rate bonds and the use of interest rate swaps.

As our business and investments on the Mainland are conducted
primarily in Renminbi, we manage our Renminbi exchange rate risks
prudently for maximum protection. Our recurring rental turnover in
Renminbi provides a natural hedge for these investments. We also
maintain an appropriate level of Renminbi resources to meet the
Group’s capital requirements for our ongoing projects on the Mainland.

The US Dollar exchange rate risk is considered not significant as our

net exposure to the US Dollar is moderate and the HK Dollar is pegged
to the US Dollar under the prevailing pegged rate regime in Hong Kong.
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(b) Cash Management, Funding and Liquidity

The Group’s cash and financing are managed and controlled at the
corporate level. This enables us to negotiate better borrowing terms and
practice coherent financial risk management.

To meet our obligations as and when needed, the Group maintains
sufficient funds, banking facilities and multiple fund raising channels.
The maturity of deposits and loans is carefully planned and managed
to reduce liquidity risk. During the year, we lengthened the average
debt maturity of the Group through the arrangement of long-term loan
facilities and issuance of long-dated bonds. Our Medium Term Note
Program gives us the flexibility to tap the bond market if necessary. The
Group closely monitors the markets to manage the refinancing risks in
a prudent manner.

(c) Credit/Counterparty

Credit/counterparty risk exposure is primarily in the areas of rents
receivable, installments receivable relating to property sales, and
deposits placed with banks.

We undertake careful credit assessments of prospective tenants,
collect rental deposits and closely monitor outstanding rents in order
to mitigate rents receivable risk. We also protect receivables related to
property sales by using properties as collateral. Bank exposure limits are
assigned so that we can mitigate concentration risks on our deposits,
which are only made with banks that have sound financial strength and/
or good credit ratings.

(d) Use of Derivatives

We use derivative instruments for hedging purpose only; the Group’s
policies do not permit derivative transactions for speculative purposes.
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BUSINESS AND OPERATIONAL RISK

We ensure our properties remain competitive and up to the highest
standards by closely monitoring market trends and the business
environment. Regular maintenance and renovation help us uphold the
safety and quality of our properties. To protect the Group’s assets, we
employ seasoned professionals who oversee the design, progress and
capital expenditures of major maintenance and renovation projects.
They report to an Asset Enhancement Committee of senior management
representatives from different departments. Together with appropriate
insurance coverage against accidental losses and/or other hazards, we
have established internal controls to safeguard our assets and reputation
against any potential liabilities.

In addition to these controls, we have an independent internal audit
team who reviews key activities of the Group and ensures all material
controls, including financial and operational, are functioning effectively.
As part of the Group’s crisis management plan, precautionary and
contingency measures are also in place to ensure the Group is protected
against any potential loss, damage or impact to our operations.

As a global corporate citizen, we have a duty to act responsibly. We
place a high priority on sustainability in design and construction of new
buildings. Guided by our We Do It Right principle, we not only meet
minimal regulatory requirements but go beyond them to ensure our
properties meet the high level of environmental standards.

PEOPLE RISK

Through our Nomination and Remuneration Committee, we ensure
the Group’s remuneration levels for Directors and senior management
are competitive in the market. This Committee has also established a
management succession plan to ensure the continuity of our operations.

Our success as a business depends on the caliber of our people. In
order to attract, motivate and retain talented employees, we evaluate
our employee remuneration packages and monitor them against market
trends. We also provide training or financial support for additional
training through recognized professional programs to help our staff
reach their full potential. To encourage two-way staff dialogue, we
have clearly-established channels of communication and a grievance
reporting system in place for all levels of staff. When staff depart, we
conduct exit interviews to gather feedback and suggestions for future
improvement.
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Being committed to sustainable development is how We Do It Right at
Hang Lung. This means continuously striving to achieve economic and
social progress in the communities in which we operate while mitigating
the environmental impact of the buildings we develop and manage.

We consult our stakeholders to ensure that we meet their expectations
and aspirations on sustainability and have established a new framework
for collecting information on our sustainability performance to allow us
to make continuous improvement.
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OUR BUILDINGS

Reflecting our long-term business model of building to own and building
to last, we incorporate the high standard of environmental sustainability
in our projects in Hong Kong and mainland China. We believe that
benchmarking our buildings’ environmental performance against
international standards enables the Group to maintain the same high
environmental standards when designing, building and managing our
properties wherever we operate.

In 2013, we received the Gold Level certificate under the Leadership
in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) for Homes from the U.S.
Green Building Council for our residential project, 23-39 Blue Pool
Road, at Blue Pool Road, Happy Valley. We also received the Gold
Rating of Provisional Assessment under the BEAM Plus EB version 1.2
of the Hong Kong Green Building Council (HKGBC) for our Standard
Chartered Bank Building, which is the first existing building in Hong
Kong to achieve this recognition. The Peak Galleria also achieved
the Silver Rating of Provisional Assessment under the BEAM Plus EB
version 1.1.
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Waste segregation facilities are set up in our properties to encourage tenants and
customers to participate in waste recycling

With around 90% of total electricity consumption in Hong Kong
contributed by buildings, the Group recognizes the importance of
enhancing energy efficiency in our properties. In 2012, the Buildings
Energy Efficiency Ordinance came into full operation in Hong Kong
requiring all newly constructed buildings to comply with more stringent
requirements. In response to the Ordinance, we set a target of reducing
our electricity consumption by 5% in 2015 based on the 2010 baseline
to ensure that we achieve greater energy efficiency in buildings and
that continuous improvement is made. As of the end of 2013, we
are on track to meeting this target with a 2% reduction in electricity
consumption as compared to the 2010 baseline.

Recognizing that waste is a pressing issue for the community, we are
supporting our tenants in managing their waste more effectively by
introducing waste segregation facilities at our properties and requiring
our waste contractors to provide data on waste collected. In 2013,
3,641 tonnes of materials were collected in our properties for recycling.
We plan to extend this initiative into mainland China in 2014/2015. In
2013, we introduced a pilot scheme for recycling fluorescent light tubes
across our business. We are also examining the feasibility of recycling
glass bottles and aluminum cans. In addition, we are exploring installing
food waste composer in The Peak Galleria. We aim to implement these
initiatives by 2014 and plan to extend our recycling efforts across other
properties in Hong Kong and mainland China by 2016.
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OUR PEOPLE

People are the most precious asset of Hang Lung and the key to
realizing our business and sustainability vision. We provide a range
of training and development programs for our staff to grow their
professional development. We provide training opportunities based
on employees’ feedback from across the Company to ensure that the
training meets the aspirations and expectations of our staff, as well as
the needs of our business. In 2013, a total of 56,297 hours of training
were delivered.

During the year, we placed a greater emphasis on ensuring that
our employees are fully on board with our sustainable development
commitment. We introduced the Hang Lung Green Office initiative in
August 2013 with the aim of promoting a SmartGreen workplace. Under
the initiative, Green Office Ambassadors are nominated in our Hong
Kong and mainland China offices to promote and drive forward this
initiative. Each of our offices has to fulfill no less than 20 green actions
on its task list annually.

BRREFRRITHIBARETE

The Hang Lung Green Office initiative was launched in 2013 to encourage colleagues to implement green practices in the workplace
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An educational tour was organized for our employees during the year at
a hotel in Hong Kong, the first high-rise building in the world to achieve
the Triple Platinum of Green Certificates, to further understand how we
can do better in incorporating environmental designs and practices in
our properties.

Receiving feedback from employees is crucial to ensuring that we
are meeting their expectations. We engage regularly with our staff
through our Town Hall, departmental and team meetings, conferences,
focus groups and the “Long Service Employees Lunch with Managing
Director” at which junior staff are able to have informal gatherings
with the Managing Director. To further improve communications and
connections among colleagues, the Company’s intranet was revamped
in 2013 with a brand new look and enhanced functions to bring
refreshing user experiences to colleagues.

In addition to regular engagement activities, we also engaged with
our employees during the year when revamping the uniforms for our
frontline colleagues in Hong Kong and mainland China to ensure that
they suited the needs of our staff in different areas of our business. The
feedback on the new uniforms from both our staff and customers has
been positive.

EREFBETIRNE  REESINEMER
Mutual communication with staff is encouraged by
senior management through Town Hall meetings

BARZE EXIE - REBEAEE TA2HHIR
Celebrity Moses Chan is invited to display the new uniforms
in a fashion show
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Volunteers and celebrity Nancy Sit make a festive dish with the elderly to celebrate Chinese New Year
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OUR COMMUNITY

We recognize the importance of considering the impact that our
business has on local communities throughout the life cycle of our
buildings. During the construction of buildings, we set up telephone
hotlines to respond to public enquiries in a timely manner. In areas of
significant historical or cultural interest in our development projects,
we work with the community to preserve or revitalize them as much as
we can.

In our community involvement, we provide financial donations and offer
free space in our properties to support a range of charitable activities.
In 2013, we donated HK$16 million to support various charitable
causes. Our volunteer team, Hang Lung As One, continues to serve
the community enthusiastically, targeting the environment, youth
development and elderly services. In 2013, our volunteers in Hong Kong
and mainland China contributed over 6,400 hours in voluntary services,
a 66% increase compared to 2012.
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OUR ENGAGEMENT WITH STAKEHOLDERS

Recognizing the need to build trusting and productive relationships
with our stakeholders, we engage regularly with them through various
communication platforms. During the year, we built on last year’s
exercise and carried out an independent engagement with external
stakeholders to gain a more comprehensive view of what stakeholders
expect from us and how we can work together to achieve our
sustainability goals. External stakeholders engaged this year included
tenants and investors. Their feedback is constructive in enabling the
Group to further strengthen our sustainability performance and in
shaping the content of this year’s Sustainability Report.

OUR SECOND SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

This year marks the second year in which we publish a standalone
Sustainability Report to fulfill our commitment to honesty and
transparency to stakeholders. We spent much of 2013 establishing a
more effective system of streamlining our data collection process to
provide a more comprehensive review of our sustainability performance
to our stakeholders. Through this exercise, we are now able to identify
areas where we can do better and further strengthen both our
performance and disclosure to stakeholders.

Please refer to our Sustainability Report 2013 for more details on our
sustainability performance.

[BE—LEIH] BRZTIOES - REBTRTE
The Hang Lung As One volunteer team serves the community by
organizing diversified activities

[BRE4E 584 ] T EIMZ AT HIRER TN
The Hang Lung Green LEEDers program teaches
students the importance of environmental protection
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2013

tAJUL
eSO

Announcement of interim results

JLA SEP

Ik EE AR HARR S
Interim dividend paid

—HJAN
SEEENG

Announcement of annual results

H APR
EEPHER M BP
(FREEBRBFAGENE LREMS)
Latest time for lodging transfers
(for attending and voting at annual general meeting)

TEHIE RGO B B
(BEFERRBEAGRNE FREME)
Closure of share register
(for attending and voting at annual general meeting)

BRBERE
(A FLHEANFRM L2 BRRBFRERE)

Annual general meeting

—T=FtA=t—H
July 31, 2013

—E—=FhA=+"H
September 26, 2013

—ZE-FE-HA=+=H
January 23, 2014

“ZE-WFMA+ER
TFER=1T5H
4:30 p.m. on April 17, 2014

—ET-FMA=+=HE=+MA
(BEREMARBIELER)
April 22 to 24, 2014
(both days inclusive)

—ZET—FEMA=+mMAH
LF+—BIE
11:00 a.m. on April 24, 2014

(Details are set out in the notice of annual general meeting

accompanying this annual report)

BULHERGBE GIRBRAHS)

Latest time for lodging transfers (for final dividend)

TiEkm B ER (BARPKREMS)
Closure of share register (for final dividend)

A MAY
KB ZR 2 RERE
Proposed final dividend payable
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—Z-FMA=+NH
TFOUE=+5
4:30 p.m. on April 29, 2014

—E-mFmA=+H
April 30, 2014

—T—NFERA+HHA
May 15, 2014
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OUR STRONG BELIEF IN GOVERNANCE

Hang Lung firmly believes that strong governance is the foundation
for delivering the corporate objective of maximizing return to its
stakeholders over the long term. The core of the governance structure
is an effective and qualified Board of Directors (the “Board”) which is
committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance,
sound internal controls and effective risk management to enhance
transparency, accountability, integrity and honesty, in order to earn the
confidence of our shareholders and other stakeholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

A% R B A 351D
Shareholders and Other Stakeholders

A

BEAE Transparency
&M Accountability
BIE  Integrity
HIEE Honesty

BEER

Board of Directors

| A
HNEBIZ SR AM NAWE MITEE® RELFWEEE BREES REREE T AD
External Company Executive Nomination and Audit Internal
Auditor Secretary Committee Remuneration Committee Auditor
Committee
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A SOUND CORPORATE CULTURE

As good governance is essential to corporate success, we instill the
core principle of good corporate governance into our corporate culture.
A sound governance culture has to reach all levels. The management
together with the Board strive to build up controls internally as well as
externally to ensure a good corporate governance culture which will
benefit all stakeholders.

PROFESSIONAL AND RESPONSIBLE MANAGEMENT

The Board comprises professionals from different facets of society who
bring a wide range of business and financial experience and expertise to
the Board. The Board includes a balanced composition of Executive and
Non-Executive Directors so that there is a strong independent element
on the Board which can effectively exercise independent judgment.
To enhance the function of the Board, three Board Committees,
namely the Executive Committee, Audit Committee and Nomination
and Remuneration Committee had been set up to take up different
responsibilities.

PRUDENT RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group recognizes the various risk factors it will face in its
operations, and properly deals with them in a manageable manner by
setting a good internal control environment and making continuous
improvements to suit changing operational needs. Further explanations
are disclosed hereunder and under the paragraph headed “Risk
Management” in the Management Discussion and Analysis of this
annual report.
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The following are the major aspects of our corporate governance
practice in addition to the code provisions and some recommended
best practices of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as
stated in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).
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Six regular Board Meetings were held in 2013.

A strong independent element is maintained on the Board as half of the
Board is represented by Independent Non-Executive Directors.

Management is invited to join the Board Meetings, where appropriate, to
provide appropriate information to enable the Directors to make an informed
decision and to discharge their duties and responsibilities.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises only Independent
Non-Executive Directors to ensure no Executive Director is involved in
deciding his own remuneration package.

The Audit Committee met the external auditor four times without the
presence of the Executive Board members in 2013.

Since 2008, the Company has announced its interim and annual results
within one month from the end of the accounting period.

Our Internal Audit Department is independent of our daily operation and
accounting functions.

The Company has adopted a corporate Code of Conduct since 1994, which
is applicable to all staff and Directors. The Code of Conduct contains our
whistle-blowing policy.

The Company continuously enhances its website as a means of communication
with stakeholders. Principal corporate governance structures, newsletters
and webcasts of analysts’ briefings are available on our website.
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(1) The Board
1. Composition and Functions

The Board currently comprises eight persons:

e three Executive Directors, namely, Mr Ronnie C. Chan, Mr Philip N.L.
Chen and Mr H.C. Ho;

e one Non-Executive Director, Mr Gerald L. Chan; and

e four Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely, Mr S.S. Yin,
Dr H.K. Cheng, Ms Laura L.Y. Chen and Mr Simon S.O. Ip. They
possess appropriate academic and professional qualifications or
related financial management expertise and have brought a wide
range of business and financial experience to the Board.

The Board has established a policy setting out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board (the “Board Diversity Policy”) with the aims of
enhancing Board effectiveness and corporate governance as well as
achieving our business objectives and sustainable development. Board
diversity has been considered from a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, required expertise, skills, knowledge
and length of service. The current Board consists of a diverse mix of
Board members appropriate to the requirement of the business of
the Company, and depending on the growing business needs and
availability of the human resources market, suitable qualified individuals
will be considered.

An updated list of Board members identifying their roles and functions
and whether they are Independent Non-Executive Directors is
maintained on our website and the website of Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited (“HKEx"). Their biographical details, disclosed
on pages 118 to 122 of this annual report, are also maintained on
our website.

The Board is responsible for, among other things:
e ensuring continuity of leadership;
¢ development of sound business strategies;

e availability of adequate capital and managerial resources to
implement the business strategies adopted; and

e adequacy of systems of financial and internal controls and conduct
of business in conformity with applicable laws and regulations.
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Non-Executive Directors (including the Independent Non-Executive
Directors) have made a positive contribution to the development of the
Company’s strategies and policies through independent, constructive
and informed comments. They gave the Board and the Committees
on which they serve the benefit of their skills, expertise and varied
backgrounds and qualifications through regular attendance and active
participation.

All Directors are required to disclose to the Company their offices held in
public companies or organizations and other significant commitments.

In 2013, six regular Board Meetings were held. Three Board Meetings
were held during three offsite Board trips including visits to Wuxi for
the opening ceremony of Center 66 and Wuhan for the groundbreaking
ceremony of Heartland 66.

Details of Directors’ attendance records in 2013 are set out below:

HE/BTE
Meetings Attended/Held
—E-=F
REEk BRREFKE
FHzae ([BFEAE])
FEZZEEE Nominationand 2013 Annual

= Audit Remuneration General Meeting
= Directors Board Committee Committee (“AGM”)
BYKHITEE  Independent Non-Executive Directors
B it B S.S.Yin 5/6 NE R N/A NE R N/A 1/1
% H.K. Cheng 6/6 4/4 171 11
BRE%E1R Laura L.Y. Chen 4/6 3/4 11 01
2ZHL Simon S.0. Ip 6/6 4/4 171 1/1
FHITES Non-Executive Director
PREER Gerald L. Chan 3/6 B N/A N8 F N/A 0/1
BITES Executive Directors
BRRCR Ronnie C. Chan 6/6 A N/A T3 N/A 11
FeR = 1K Philip N.L. Chen 6/6 36 A N/A N N/A 171
BEF= H.C. Ho 6/6 N3 N/A 3 N/A 11
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All Directors can give notice to the Chairman or the Company Secretary
if they intend to include matters in the agenda for Board Meetings.
Full Board or Committee papers will be sent to all Directors or
Committee members at least three days before the intended date of a
Board Meeting or Committee Meeting respectively. Management also
supplies the Board and its Committees with sufficient information and
explanations so as to enable them to make an informed assessment of
financial and other information put before the Board and its Committees
for approval. Management is also invited to join Board Meetings where
appropriate.

Furthermore, management provides all Board members with monthly
updates which give a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Company’s performance, position and prospects in sufficient detail to
enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties
under the Listing Rules.

All the Directors are entitled to have access to timely information in
relation to our business and make further enquiries where necessary,
and they can have separate and independent access to management.

In addition, all Directors have access to the advice and services of
the Company Secretary, a full time employee of the Company, who is
responsible to the Board for ensuring that procedures are followed and
that all applicable laws, rules and regulations are complied with. The
Company Secretary supports the Board by ensuring good information
flow within the Board and is also a source of advice to the Chairman and
to the Board on corporate governance and the implementation of the CG
Code. The Company Secretary has confirmed that she has taken no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training in 2013.

Procedures have also been agreed by the Board to enable Directors to
seek independent professional advice at the Company’s expense.

Under our articles of association, a Director shall not vote or be counted
in the quorum in respect of any contract or arrangement in which he/
she or any of his/her associates is/are materially interested.

We have also arranged appropriate insurance cover on Directors’ and
officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against them arising from
corporate activities.
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2.  Chairman and Managing Director

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Chairman and
the Managing Director to ensure a balance of power and authority.

Chairman

The Chairman, Mr Ronnie C. Chan, provides leadership for the Board.
He is responsible for ensuring that all Directors receive, in a timely
manner, adequate information which must be accurate, clear, complete
and reliable and that Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at
Board Meetings. He also ensures that:

e the Board works effectively and discharges its responsibilities;

¢ all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely
manner;

* good corporate governance practices and procedures are
established; and

* appropriate steps are taken to provide effective communication with
shareholders and that their views are communicated to the Board
as a whole.

He, at least annually, holds meetings with the Non-Executive Directors
(including Independent Non-Executive Directors) without the Executive
Directors being present.

He is primarily responsible for drawing up and approving the agenda
for each Board Meeting. He takes into account, where appropriate, any
matters proposed by the other Directors for inclusion in the agenda, or
delegates such responsibility to the Company Secretary.

He encourages all Directors to make an active contribution to the
Board’s affairs and takes the lead to ensure that the Board acts in the
best interests of the Company. He encourages Directors with different
views to voice their concerns, and allows sufficient time for discussion
of issues on which the Board can deliberate and reach decisions.

He promotes a culture of openness and debate by facilitating the
effective contributions of Non-Executive Directors in particular and
ensures constructive relations between Executive Directors and Non-
Executive Directors.
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Managing Director

The Managing Director, Mr Philip N.L. Chen, is a member of the
Executive Committee of the Company and is responsible for:

e operating the business of the Company and implementing policies
and strategies adopted by the Board;

e the Company’s day-to-day management in accordance with the
instructions issued by the Board;

e developing strategic operating plans that reflect the objectives and
priorities established by the Board and maintaining operational
performance; and

e ensuring the adequacy of financial and internal control systems
and the conduct of business in conformity with applicable laws and
regulations.

The Managing Director chairs the monthly meetings of the Company’s
various operational divisions. He reports to the Board from time to time
on matters of material importance.

3. Independence of Non-Executive Directors

We have received from each of our Independent Non-Executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant
to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. We consider the Independent
Non-Executive Directors are independent.

To further enhance accountability, any appointment of an Independent
Non-Executive Director who has served on the Board for more than
nine years will be subject to a separate resolution to be approved by
shareholders. We will state in the notice of the AGM the reason why we
consider the Independent Non-Executive Director is still independent
and our recommendation to shareholders to vote in favor of the
re-election of such Independent Non-Executive Director.
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4. Appointment, Re-election and Removal

In accordance with our articles of association, one-third of the
Directors are required to retire from office by rotation for re-election
by shareholders at an AGM. In addition, every Director is subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years, and new
appointments to the Board are subject to re-election by shareholders
at the upcoming general meeting. Names of such Directors eligible for
re-election being accompanied by detailed biographies will be stated in
the notice of the general meeting.

The Non-Executive Director and Independent Non-Executive Directors
are appointed for specific terms, which coincide with their expected
dates of retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

5. Directors’ Continuous Professional Development

Every newly appointed Director will meet with fellow Directors and
key executives, and will receive a comprehensive, formal and tailored
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment. Subsequently,
he/she will receive any briefing and professional development necessary
to ensure he/she has a proper understanding of the Company’s
operations and business and full awareness of his/her responsibilities
under statute and common law, the Listing Rules, legal and other
regulatory requirements, and especially the Company’s business and
governance policies. The Company Secretary facilitates induction and
professional development of Directors.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
In 2013, the Company has arranged for Directors a presentation on the
development of online shopping and its challenges ahead and three
offsite Board trips including two visits to our property development
projects in mainland China.
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Record of training received by each existing Director in 2013 is
summarized below:

bzl fcEic)
2= Directors Types of Training
FREA R Ronnie C. Chan A B,C,D
BB S.S. Yin A, B,D
PR 1k Philip N.L. Chen A B,C, D
[RER Gerald L. Chan A B, D
a2z H.K. Cheng A B, D
[R&4E Laura L.Y. Chen A B, C D
Z2HR Simon S.0. Ip A B, D
(D= H.C. Ho A, B,D

A HEFH S/ HE

Attending seminar(s)/forum(s)

B PBIERR—REY WMEFRLIKRE BRRAENATFZAN

Reading materials relating to general business, property development and

investment, directors’ duties and responsibilities and so on
RONERER ET & / SR B EE
Giving talks to external seminar(s)/forum(s)

HEARES / EAHTIE

Attending corporate event(s)/visit(s)

O EEREINER
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PR °
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(I1) Delegation by the Board

The Executive Committee, Audit Committee and Nomination and
Remuneration Committee were formed in 1989, 1999 and 2003
respectively.

1. Executive Committee

The Executive Committee of the Board of the Company was formed in
1989. Its members are all the Executive Directors of the Company, who
meet regularly to establish the strategic direction of the Company, and to
monitor the performance of management. Clear terms of reference have
been adopted by the Board, and guidelines were also set up for certain
issues requiring Board approval. Each of the Committee members has
full understanding on determining which issues require a decision of
the full Board and which are delegated by the Board to the Committee
or management.
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2. Audit Committee

An Audit Committee was established by the Board in 1999, and
now comprises three Independent Non-Executive Directors with
appropriate academic and professional qualifications or related
financial management expertise, namely Mr Simon S.O. Ip (Chairman
of the Committee), Dr H.K. Cheng and Ms Laura L.Y. Chen.

Under the CG Code, it is required that meetings are held at least two
times a year with the external auditor. Separate meetings will also need
to be held with the external auditor (in the absence of management) as
and when required. The Audit Committee has exceeded the CG Code
and has held four meetings for the purpose of, inter alia, discussing
the nature and scope of internal audit work and assessing the Group’s
internal controls in 2013. Moreover, the Committee met the external
auditor four times in 2013 without the presence of the Executive
Board members.

The terms of reference explaining the Committee’s role and authority,
which include duties regarding corporate governance functions and
as a minimum the specific duties as stipulated in the Listing Rules are
available on both our website and the website of HKEX.

The Committee is authorized by the Board to investigate any activity
within its terms of reference; to seek any information it requires from
any employee and all employees are directed to co-operate with any
requests made by the Committee; to obtain outside legal or other
independent professional advice; and to secure the attendance of
outsiders with relevant experience and expertise to their meetings
if necessary. Sufficient resources are provided to the Committee to
discharge its duty.
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In 2013, the Audit Committee has performed, inter alia, the following:

Relationship with External Auditor, Review of Financial Information

and Oversight of Financial Reporting System and Internal Control

Procedures

reviewed and obtained explanation from management and the
external auditor on the interim and annual results, including
causes of changes from the previous accounting period, effects
on the application of new accounting policies, compliance with the
Listing Rules and relevant legislation, and any audit issues, before
recommending their adoption by the Board;

considered and proposed to the Board the re-appointment of KPMG
as the Company’s external auditor;

considered and approved the procedures and guidelines in
employing the external auditor to perform non-audit assignments for
the Company;

received and reviewed the internal audit reports from the Internal
Auditor;

held meetings with the external auditor in the absence of management
to discuss any material audit issues;

held meetings with the Internal Auditor in private to discuss material
internal audit issues;

approved the internal audit program for 2014; and

carried out reviews of the internal control system of the Company
including senior management’s structure, risk management, the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programs and the Company’s procedures for financial and functional
reporting.

Corporate Governance Functions

reviewed and approved the Company’s policies on corporate
governance and compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

reviewed and monitored the training and continuous professional
development of Directors; and

reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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3.  Nomination and Remuneration Committee

A Nomination and Remuneration Committee, set up in 2003, now
comprises three Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely
Dr H.K. Cheng (Chairman of the Committee), Ms Laura L.Y. Chen
and Mr Simon S.O. Ip. Regular meetings were held to review human
resources issues, including significant changes in the salary structure of
the Group and terms and conditions affecting Executive Directors and
senior management. The Committee met once in 2013 to review, inter
alia, the composition of Board members, Directors’ remuneration and
the Board Diversity Policy.

The terms of reference explaining the Committee’s role have been
reviewed and revised with reference to the changes to the CG Code
during 2013. The revised terms of reference, include as a minimum
the specific duties as stipulated in the Listing Rules can be accessed
on both our website and the website of HKEX.

The major work performed by the Committee in 2013 included the
following:

e reviewed the Board Diversity Policy and its implementation;

e reviewed the structure, size and diversity of the Board;

e assessed the independence of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors;

* made recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorship in view of the qualifications and related
expertise;

* made recommendations to the Board on the re-election of retiring
Directors at the AGM;

* made recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all Directors and senior management remuneration;

* determined the remuneration packages of individual Executive
Directors and senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments; and

* made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of the
Non-Executive Director and Independent Non-Executive Directors.
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The remuneration package of Executive Directors and senior
management, including discretionary bonus and share options, is based
on the following criteria:

e individual performance;

skills and knowledge;
* involvement in the Group’s affairs;
e achievement of business targets; and

e performance and profitability of the Group.

The Committee also considers factors such as salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities, and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group.

The Committee obtains benchmark reports for evaluation of market
trends and the competitive levels of remuneration being offered to
Directors and senior management. Sufficient resources are provided to
the Committee to discharge its duties. The Committee may consult the
Chairman and the Managing Director about remuneration proposals of
other Executive Directors and has access to independent professional
advice if necessary.

Details of remuneration payable to members of the senior management
(which includes Executive Directors only) are disclosed in note 7 on the
financial statement.

4. Management Functions

Senior management includes Executive Directors of the Company
only. Their duties were explained in the paragraph headed “Executive
Committee” above. Key executives are responsible for the day-to-
day operations and administration function of the Group under the
leadership of the Executive Directors. The Board has given clear
directions to management as to the matters that must be approved by
the Board before decisions are made on behalf of the Company. The
types of decisions to be delegated by the Board to management include
implementation of the strategy and direction determined by the Board,
operation of the Group’s businesses, preparation of financial statements
and operating budgets, and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations. These arrangements will be reviewed periodically to ensure
that they remain appropriate to our needs.
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(1) Directors’ Securities Transactions and Share Interests

1. Compliance with Model Code

We have set out guidelines regarding securities transactions by
Directors under “Transactions in the Company’s Shares” in our Code of
Conduct according to the required standard set out in the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”). The Company has
made specific enquiries to all Directors and confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code and the
Code of Conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions.

2. Share Interests of Directors

Details of Directors’ interests in shares of the Company and our listed
subsidiary, Hang Lung Properties Limited, as at December 31, 2013
are as follows:

PN EEBERRAE

The Company Hang Lung Properties Limited
REE AR RIE AR
ROEE AIZEZRE RGEHAR AR Z R
Number of Number of Shares Number of Number of Shares
EENSE Name of Directors Shares under Option Shares under Option
PR B R Ronnie C. Chan - 11,790,000 - 41,070,000
B M B S.S. Yin - . _ _
PR = 45% Philip N.L. Chen - - - 19,000,000
PR SR Gerald L. Chan - - - -
e H.K. Cheng - - _ _
PR 4414 Laura L.Y. Chen - - - -
2HET Simon S.0. Ip - - _ _
fa] 2 & H.C. Ho - - - 8,600,000
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(IV) Accountability and Audit
1. Financial Reporting

Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements on a going concern basis, with supporting assumptions or
qualifications as necessary. The Company’s financial statements are
prepared in accordance with the Listing Rules, Companies Ordinance
and also the accounting principles and practices generally accepted
in Hong Kong. Appropriate accounting policies are selected and
applied consistently; judgments and estimates made are prudent and
reasonable. A statement by the external auditor, KPMG, about their
reporting responsibilities is included in the Independent Auditor’s Report
on the Company’s financial statements.

The Directors endeavor to ensure a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of the Company’s position and prospects in annual reports,
interim reports, price-sensitive announcements and other disclosures
required under the Listing Rules and other statutory requirements.

2. Internal Controls

We maintain a good internal control environment to enable the internal
control systems and procedures to perform effectively and to make
improvements where necessary. The Code of Conduct details the
Group’s philosophy in running its business and acts as a benchmark
for all staff to follow.

Internal control systems have been designed to allow us to monitor
the Group’s overall financial position, to safeguard its assets against
loss and misappropriation, to provide reasonable assurance against
material fraud and errors, and to manage the risk in failing to achieve
the Group’s objectives. Our internal control systems are developed with
reference to the COSO (Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission) principles. There are five important elements for
an effective internal control system as follows:
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Control environment — the foundation for the other components of
internal control. The resulting control environment has a pervasive
impact on the effectiveness of the overall internal control systems.
It provides the basis for carrying out internal control across the
organization. The factors that may affect the control environment
include integrity, ethical values, management’s operating style,
delegation of authority, as well as the processes for managing and
developing people. Directors and senior management understand
a strong control environment supports the functioning of all other
components of internal control. As a result, we have established
the right tone at the top regarding the importance of internal control
including expected standards of conduct.

Risk assessment — the identification, evaluation and analysis of risks
underlying the achievement of our business objectives. It helps
management to determine how such risks should be managed and
mitigated. Directors and senior management use the risk assessment
process to identify risks, both internally and externally, and assess
their likelihood that may impact our operation. After that, we design
and implement the controls to mitigate such risk in order to achieve
our objectives.

Control activities — the policies and procedures that help to ensure
management directives are carried out and necessary actions are taken
to address the risks that may hinder the achievement of the Group’s
objectives. Therefore, we have designed and implemented different
types of control activities such as the approvals and authorization
policies, performance reviews, segregation of duties, departmental
procedures and manuals, establishment of committees and working
groups etc., in order to ensure the efficient and effective operation of the
Group. Moreover, we will revisit these activities periodically, so that they
can address the latest changes of the risks in achieving our business
objectives.

Information and communication — the process and system to identify,
capture and communicate pertinent information to the right person in a
timely manner. Directors and senior management have adopted an open
environment to facilitate the effective communication within the Group.
In addition, we have implemented a functional reporting mechanism
so that the local management at subsidiaries level can report to the
respective functional head in Hong Kong. As a result, the information
can be communicated directly and effectively throughout the Group.
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Monitoring — the process that assesses the quality of the system’s
performance over time. It ascertains that the internal control of
the Group continues to operate effectively. This is accomplished
through ongoing monitoring activities and evaluations performed
by management. More significantly, Internal Audit performs regular
independent reviews on the Group’s internal control and directly
reports to the Audit Committee. Deficiencies in internal control are
reported upstream and rectifications are taken to ensure continuous
improvement of the system.

In Hang Lung, we have a well-defined specific limit of authority
governing activities of the Executive Committee, Directors, executives
and senior staff. Annual and mid-year budgets on all capital and
revenue items are prepared and approved by senior management and
key executives before being adopted. We monitor the business activities
closely and review monthly financial results of operations against
budgets. We also review, update and improve the internal controls to
meet upcoming challenges.

We take proactive precautionary measures in handling and
dissemination of price-sensitive information. Such information is
restricted to a need-to-know basis. We have adopted a policy on
disclosure of price-sensitive information and senior executives are
reminded of the compliance requirements of the policy every six months.

We maintain an Internal Audit Department which is independent of our
daily operations and accounting functions. The Internal Auditor reports
directly to the Audit Committee. An internal audit program based on risk
assessment methodology has been designed and reviewed by the Audit
Committee on an annual basis. On a monthly basis, the Internal Auditor
discusses his internal audit reviews and findings with the management
and obtains management’s responses on various issues. Internal audit
reports are prepared for the Audit Committee every quarter.

Formal meetings were held every three months between the Internal
Auditor and the Audit Committee to discuss internal audit issues in
2013. During Audit Committee Meetings, the Audit Committee also
enquired on financial and internal control matters with the external
auditor. The Audit Committee has the authority to have direct discussion
with the external auditor in the absence of management if deemed
necessary, and they meet at least once annually for this purpose.
Executive Director(s) is/are present at the Audit Committee Meetings to
answer enquiries from the Audit Committee and to report to the Board
on matters arising.
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The Directors acknowledged that it is their responsibility to maintain
effective risk management and internal control systems, and had
reviewed them four times in 2013. The Directors manage risks by
strategic planning, appointing appropriately qualified and experienced
personnel at senior positions, monitoring the Group’s performance
regularly, maintaining effective control over capital expenditure and
investments, and setting a Code of Conduct for all Directors and
employees to follow.

The Directors had conducted a review covering all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions of the Company and its subsidiaries for the
financial year ended December 31, 2013, and were satisfied that an
effective and adequate internal control system had been in operation.

Considerations are also given to the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programs and budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function. The Directors
came to such a conclusion based on the Company’s policies and
procedures, specific limits of authority, budgetary controls, regular
monitoring of performance and the reports from both the external
auditor and the Internal Auditor.

We identify major risks in different areas of the Group. The major risks
have been covered under the paragraph headed “Risk Management” in
the Management Discussion and Analysis of this annual report.

The Directors confirm that there have been no major downside changes
in the nature and extent of significant risks faced by us from the
previous financial year, and the Company has the ability to respond to
any such changes in our business and the external environment.

Furthermore, there were no significant control failings or weaknesses
identified that have not been rectified in 2013. We closely monitor our
system of internal controls, and received further assurance from the
Audit Committee that the internal audit function has been functioning
effectively. We have complied with the code provisions set out in the
CG Code in respect of maintaining an effective internal control system.
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3. Code of Conduct

We have adopted a corporate Code of Conduct since 1994 which is
updated from time to time.

The Code of Conduct clearly spells out the Company’s stance, the legal
requirements, conflicts of interest, handling of confidential information
and company property, use of information and communication systems,
avenue for whistle-blowing, fair trading with suppliers and contractors,
payment procedures, responsibilities to shareholders and the financial
community, relationship with customers and consumers, employment
practices, and responsibilities to the community. In essence, it details
the Group’s philosophy in running its business and acts as a benchmark
for all staff and suppliers to follow.

In order to monitor and enforce compliance to the Code of Conduct,
functional managers are responsible for ensuring their subordinates
fully understand and comply with the standards and requirements
as stipulated. Any violation thereof will result in the employee being
disciplined, including termination of employment or reporting to
appropriate authorities if necessary. The Executive Directors will
also answer directly to any Board member for impartial and efficient
handling of complaints received from all shareholders and potential
shareholders, customers and consumers, suppliers and contractors
and our employees.

A whistle-blowing mechanism has been put in place for reporting actual
or potential violations of the Code of Conduct and other suspected
irregularities. It is designed to encourage employees and other related
third parties such as contractors and tenants to raise serious concerns
in confidence about misconduct, fraudulent activities, or malpractices
in any matter related to the Group. All the cases will be addressed to
the Head of Internal Audit directly and investigated by Internal Audit on
a confidential basis. The Company has also set up an email account
(whistleblowing@hanglung.com).

All staff are made aware of integrity issues through the Code of Conduct,
policies and procedures. A comprehensive and tailored training program
on integrity conducted by a leading mainland law firm was arranged for
the staff in mainland China in 2013.
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Also, to make sure that all operations are managed in accordance with
a high standard of practice and corporate governance, all employees
are reminded of the policy governing conflict of interest situations
every six months. The executives are also required to complete and
sign a declaration form every six months declaring their interests,
directly or indirectly, with the Company and our subsidiaries and
associated companies.

4. Auditor’'s Remuneration

KPMG was re-appointed as our external auditor by shareholders at the
2013 AGM until the conclusion of the 2014 AGM. They are primarily
responsible for providing audit services in connection with the annual
consolidated financial statements.

The total remuneration in respect of services provided by the external
auditor is as follows:

HE-ZT——F
+ZRA=+—HLtFE
Year ended December 31, 2012

BE-Z—=F
+ZA=+—HLEE
Year ended December 31, 2013

BETET BEEET

HK$ (in Million) HK$ (in Million)

TETEAZEARTS Statutory audit services 11 12
TR B ELh AR 75 Tax and other services 5 5

() M ENER
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(V) Communication with Stakeholders
1. Shareholders

The Board has established a shareholders communication policy
setting out strategies that the Company has in place to promote
effective communication with shareholders, with the aim of ensuring
shareholders are provided with information about the Company and
enabling them to engage actively with the Company and to exercise their
rights as shareholders in an informed manner. The policy is regularly
reviewed to ensure its effectiveness.

Our AGM provides a good opportunity for communication between
the Board and shareholders. The Chairmen of the Board and of
the Committees are normally present to answer queries raised by
shareholders. The external auditor also attends the AGM every year.
Notice of the AGM and related papers are sent to shareholders at least
20 clear business days before the meeting. Each separate issue is
proposed by a separate resolution by the Chairman. The meeting enjoys
strong participation from shareholders.
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Shareholder(s) representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of the
Company can make a requisition to convene an extraordinary general
meeting pursuant to the Companies Ordinance. The requisition must
state the business to be dealt with at the meeting, signed by the relevant
shareholder(s) and deposited at our registered office for the attention
of the Company Secretary. Furthermore, the Companies Ordinance
provides that (i) shareholder(s) representing at least 2.5% of the total
voting rights of all shareholders of the Company or (ii) at least 50
shareholders holding the shares which has been paid up an average
sum of not less than HK$2,000 per shareholder (the requirement
of such average sum will be removed when the new Companies
Ordinance becomes effective from March 3, 2014) can put forward
proposals for consideration at a general meeting of the Company by
sending a requisition in writing to the registered office of the Company
for the attention of the Company Secretary. The above requisitions
authenticated by the person or persons making them may also be
sent to the Company in electronic form to ir@hanglung.com after the
operation of the new Companies Ordinance on March 3, 2014.

According to our articles of association, if any shareholder(s)
representing not less than one-tenth of the total voting rights of all the
shareholders having the right to attend and vote at general meetings
of the Company wish(es) to propose a person (other than a retiring
director) for election as a director (the “Candidate”) at a general
meeting of the Company, the following documents must be lodged at
our registered office: (i) a written notice of such proposal duly signed by
the shareholder(s) concerned; and (ii) a written consent duly signed by
the Candidate indicating his/her willingness to be elected. The period
for lodgment of the above documents (being a period of at least seven
days) shall commence no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the
notice of the meeting appointed for such election and end no later than
seven days prior to the date of such meeting.

Specific enquiries and suggestions by shareholders can be sent
in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary at our registered
address or by e-mail to our Company at ir@hanglung.com. In addition,
shareholders can contact Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, the share registrar of the Company, if they have any enquiries
about the shareholdings and entitlement to dividend. Relevant contact
details are set out under “Listing Information” of this annual report.
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Our last AGM was held on April 18, 2013 at Grand Ballroom, Lower
Lobby, Conrad Hong Kong, Pacific Place, 88 Queensway, Hong Kong.
The meeting was attended by 200 shareholders present in person or
by proxy. At the meeting, the Chairman had demanded a poll on each
of the resolutions submitted for voting, and the shareholders were
provided with detailed procedures for conducting a poll. All resolutions
tabled at the 2013 AGM, inter alia, adoption of the financial statements,
re-election of Directors, re-appointment of auditor and renewal of
general mandates were voted on by poll, and the results of poll voting
were posted on the websites of our Company and of HKEx in the
evening on the same day. There are no changes in our memorandum
and articles of association in 2013.
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To align with the new Companies Ordinance to become effective from
March 3, 2014, the Board proposed to make certain amendments to
the memorandum and articles of association of the Company at the
forthcoming AGM to be held on April 24, 2014. Details are set out in
the circular to shareholders to be sent together with this annual report.
The important shareholders’ dates for the coming financial year, which
include the Board Meetings for considering the payments of interim and
final dividends for the year ending December 31, 2014 and the AGM,
are expected to be held at around late July 2014, late January 2015 and
in April 2015 respectively.

2. Investors

Details of shareholders by domicile as at December 31, 2013 are

HhF as follows:
=R BRE
Shareholders Shareholdings

A Bak RDEE Ba
FRE Domicile Number % Number of Shares %
B Hong Kong 2,110 97.87 966,429,142 71.60
A At Mainland China 6 0.28 128,375 0.01
SEFY Macau 4 0.19 116,075 0.01
=y Taiwan 2 0.09 2,874 0.00
SEIN K TP S Australia and New Zealand 4 0.19 18,200 0.00
IEV S Canada and USA 15 0.70 127,990 0.01
REEE South East Asia 1 0.04 33,000 0.00
B[ United Kingdom 7 0.32 32,758 0.00
HAth Others 7 0.32 382,939,828 28.37
BE TOTAL 2,156 100.00 1,349,828,242 100.00
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Details of shareholders by holding range as at December 31, 2013 are

SHEMFBWT - as follows:
BR=R* ERE"
Shareholders* Shareholdings*

A Bat R BB Bat
R EH7 Holding Range Number % Number of Shares %
1-1,000 B 1-1,000 shares 440 20.41 239,683 0.02
1,001 - 5,000 A& 1,001 - 5,000 shares 747 34.65 2,284,368 0.17
5,001 - 10,000 B% 5,001 - 10,000 shares 370 17.16 3,071,857 0.23
10,001 - 100,000 A% 10,001 - 100,000 shares 550 25.51 15,114,255 1.12
100,000 A% LA = Over 100,000 shares 49 2.27 1,329,118,079 98.46
BEt TOTAL 2,156 100.00 1,349,828,242 100.00
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* incorporating, in their respective shareholdings range, 268 participants of Central
Clearing and Settlement System holding a total of 792,647,668 shares registered in the
name of HKSCC Nominees Limited

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the date of
this annual report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules.

We are committed to disclosing relevant information on our activities
to our shareholders and investors through regular analysts’ briefings,
press conferences and press releases, e-mails and our website,
apart from through our annual and interim reports. All enquiries and
proposals received from shareholders, investors, media or the public
are responded to by Executive Directors, the Company Secretary or
appropriate key executives.

The Company'’s information is accessible to all via our website. Besides
providing traditional financial data, our website also contains the most
current information including properties available for sale and leasing,
latest number of issued shares, updated substantial shareholders’
interests in shares, newsletters, major corporate events and frequently
asked questions.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

As good corporate citizens, we have adopted and fully complied
with, and in many cases exceeded, the code provisions and some
recommended best practices of the CG Code.
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BRIECR e 4
Mr Ronnie Chichung Chan
EE K Chairman

Aged 64, Mr Chan joined the Group in 1972, becoming Chairman in
1991. He also serves as Chairman of Hang Lung Properties Limited,
the Group’s major publicly listed subsidiary. Mr Chan is Vice-President
of The Real Estate Developers Association of Hong Kong, Co-Chair
of Asia Society and Chairman of its Hong Kong Center. He also acts
as an advisor to China Development Research Foundation in Beijing.
Mr Chan sits on the governing or advisory bodies of several think-tanks
and universities, including The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology, University of Southern California, USA, where he received
his MBA, Tsinghua University in Beijing and Fudan University in
Shanghai. Mr Chan is the brother of Mr Gerald Chan, a Non-Executive
Director of the Company.

ER = B et
Mr Shang Shing Yin

BEER BUENTES)
Vice Chairman (Independent Non-Executive Director)

Aged 82, Mr Yin joined the Group in 1970. Holding various positions
on the Board, including Managing Director between 1986 and 1992,
he has been Vice Chairman since 1992. He has over 40 years of
experience in the fields of property investment and development, and is
a qualified banker with a Banking Diploma from The Chartered Institute
of Bankers in London, UK. Mr Yin also serves as Vice Chairman of Hang
Lung Properties Limited.
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FRE 4R o E
Mr Philip Nan Lok Chen

% F A48 Managing Director

Aged 58, Mr Chen joined the Company and its major listed subsidiary,
Hang Lung Properties Limited, as Managing Director in July 2010.
Mr Chen has more than 30 years of management experience, mostly
in the aviation industry, acquiring a wealth of experience in Hong Kong,
Mainland China and beyond. Mr Chen graduated from the University of
Hong Kong in 1977 with a Bachelor of Arts degree and holds a Master’s
degree in Business Administration from the same university.

PR&EEREAE
Mr Gerald Lokchung Chan

JE£177% F Non-Executive Director

Aged 62, Mr Chan has been a Director of the Company since 1986.
As co-founder of Morningside, Mr Chan has been active in venture
capital and private equity investments since 1987. He also serves on
the advisory boards of numerous universities including the University
of California, Los Angeles, Harvard University, Fudan University and
also the Chair of Overseers Committee of Morningside College, The
Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr Chan received his undergraduate
training in engineering at the University of California, Los Angeles, and
his Doctor of Science degree from Harvard University. He is the brother
of Mr Ronnie Chan, Chairman of the Group.
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EESIE L cmmesw . ose. ATEL
Dr Hon Kwan Cheng ass, osE, Jp

B IEENTTE S Independent Non-Executive Director

Aged 86, Dr Cheng joined the Group in 1993. Dr Cheng obtained
an engineering degree from Tianjin University and a postgraduate
diploma from Imperial College, London, UK, of which he is a Fellow.
He is a past President, Honorary Fellow and Gold Medallist of The
Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, Fellow of the Hong Kong Academy
of Engineering Sciences, and past Vice President, Fellow and Gold
Medallist of The Institution of Structural Engineers, Fellow of The
Institution of Civil Engineers, UK, Honorary Fellow of The Institution
of Engineers, Australia, and an Authorized Person and Registered
Structural Engineer in Hong Kong, with a State Class 1 Registered
Structural Engineer qualification. Dr Cheng was a Member of both
the Executive and Legislative Councils and Chairman of the Hong
Kong Housing Authority. Dr Cheng is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of Wing Hang Bank, Limited, Agile Property Holdings Limited
and Tianjin Development Holdings Limited. He is also an Independent
Non-Executive Director of Hang Lung Properties Limited.
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BR&E 2+
Ms Laura Lok Yee Chen

B IEENTTE S Independent Non-Executive Director

Aged 65, Ms Chen joined Hang Lung in 1997. As an experienced
professional, Ms Chen has been active in the financial/real estate
industries both in the United States and in Hong Kong since the early
80's. Since 1993 she became an executive director of the Sterling
Group — a private investment entity managing various portfolios in
global capital markets. From 2000 onwards, Ms Chen has transitioned
her interest into the development and management in the philanthropic
arena. She is currently the executive chair of a Hong Kong based private
foundation. She is particularly interested in good corporate governance
of and capacity building for non-profit organizations, and in the creation
of high impact private/public partnerships. Ms Chen serves as a Trustee
of Asia Society Hong Kong Center, and is an advisory council member of
Johns Hopkins University’s Hopkins Nanjing Center. She holds an MBA
from the George Washington University in Washington, DC, USA, and a
postgraduate certificate in International Banking from the University of
Virginia, USA. Ms Chen is also an Independent Non-Executive Director
of Hang Lung Properties Limited.
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Mr Simon Sik On Ip csg, Jp

B IEBTTE S Independent Non-Executive Director

Aged 65, Mr Ip joined the Board in 1998. He is a solicitor and Notary
Public. Mr Ip has a distinguished record of public service. A former
Legislative Councillor, past President of the Law Society of Hong Kong,
and a past member of the Exchange Fund Advisory Committee and
The Advisory Committee on Post-service Employment of Civil Servants,
he is the Founding Chairman of the Hong Kong Institute of Education,
the Deputy Chairman of the Hong Kong Jockey Club, and he also holds
honorary positions in two local universities and Tsinghua University.

GEA=F7:3
Mr Hau Cheong Ho

#17% % Executive Director

Aged 54, Mr Ho joined the Group in 2008 and was appointed to the
Board of the Company and of its publicly listed subsidiary, Hang Lung
Properties Limited, in September 2010. He is the Chief Financial Officer
of the Company and Hang Lung Properties Limited. Mr Ho possesses
more than 30 years of management experience covering a wide range
of industries in England, Australia, Mainland China and Hong Kong. He
qualified as a chartered accountant in England and Wales and Australia
and holds an MBA from the University of Melbourne, Australia and a
Bachelor of Commerce Degree in Accounting from the University of
Birmingham, UK.
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Ms Bella Peck Lim Chhoa

Company Secretary, General Counsel and Assistant Director — Corporate Affairs

Aged 43, Ms Chhoa joined the Group as Company Secretary, General
Counsel and Assistant Director — Corporate Affairs in 2011. She is
responsible for overseeing the company secretarial, legal and human
resources and training functions of the Group. Prior to joining the Group,
she was head of the legal department and company secretary of two
other companies listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for
a number of years. Ms Chhoa is a solicitor qualified to practice in Hong
Kong. She holds a Master of Business Administration degree from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong and a Bachelor degree in Law from
The University of Hong Kong.
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The directors have pleasure in submitting their report together with the
audited Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding, and
through its subsidiaries, property development for sales and leasing,
property investment for rental income, and other investments. The
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
also operate in car park management and property management, and
through its joint ventures, are involved in the operation of dry-cleaning.

An analysis of the turnover and trading results of the Group by operating
segments during the financial year is set out in Note 3 on the Financial
Statements.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINT VENTURES

A list of principal subsidiaries and joint ventures, together with their
places of operations and incorporation and particulars of their issued
share capital/registered capital, is set out in Notes 34 and 35 on the
Financial Statements.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2013, and the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date are set out
in the Financial Statements on pages 136 to 213.

TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last ten financial years is set out on page 214.

2013 &3k ANNUAL REPORT
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DIVIDENDS

The directors now recommend a final dividend of HK61 cents per share
which, together with the interim dividend of HK19 cents per share
paid on September 26, 2013, makes a total of HK80 cents per share
in respect of the year ended December 31, 2013. The proposed final
dividend, if approved by the shareholders at the annual general meeting
on April 24, 2014, will be paid on May 15, 2014 to shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members on April 30, 2014.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year, both the percentage of purchases attributable to the
Group's five largest suppliers combined and the percentage of turnover
or sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers combined
were less than 30% of the total purchases and turnover or sales of the
Group respectively.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group during the
year are set out in Note 23 on the Financial Statements.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to HK$16
million (2012: HK$14 million).

FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in fixed assets during the year are set out in Note
12 on the Financial Statements.
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BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at
December 31, 2013 are set out in Note 19 on the Financial Statements.

BORROWING COSTS CAPITALIZATION

Borrowing costs capitalized by the Group during the year amounted to
HK$716 million (2012: HK$393 million).

MAJOR GROUP PROPERTIES

Details of major properties of the Group as at December 31, 2013 are
set out on pages 66 to 73.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year, the issued and fully paid share capital was increased
by an issue of 235,000 shares (2012: 1,152,000 shares) of HK$1.00
each for total consideration of HK$2,220,750 (2012: HK$16,421,400)
as a result of the exercise of share options under the Company’s share
option scheme.

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in Note 22 on the Financial Statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY'S LISTED
SUBSIDIARY

During the year, the Company’s listed subsidiary, Hang Lung Properties
Limited (“HLPL”) issued 2,329,625 shares (2012: 3,796,000 shares)
of HK$1.00 each, fully paid, for total consideration of HK$45,155,020
(2012: HK$59,827,080) as a result of the exercise of share options
under HLPL's share option schemes.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company as at the date of this report are listed
on page 215 and their brief biographical details are set out on pages
118 to 122. Details of their remuneration are set out in Note 7 on the
Financial Statements.

In accordance with articles 103 and 104 of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr Gerald L. Chan, Ms Laura L.Y. Chen and Mr Ronnie C.
Chan retire from the board by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a
director of the Company was materially interested, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at any time during the year or at the end of the year.

127



EERWE

Report of the Directors

EERRM - HERGO R EEFE 2
EmNRE

BIRE S KEEGRA ([FBHBEEL) EXV
HKBE T AR ERETELFRIHINIE
ETRENEARARRREBBERSE
RAA IREBHKEOIE="BRTK
MEATHEEZECSMALE SEERN
=+ A=+t HEEEARAK
HigExE (TR REHGH) 2Rk - 48
B M EREE R IOAB T ¢

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at December 31, 2013, the interests or short positions of each of
the directors in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which were required
to be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 352 of the SFO are as follows:

DT (FR)
The Company (Long Position)

BELEFRAR (FR)
Hang Lung Properties Limited (Long Position)

RIBHIE RIBHE
BT A RREE 2 BB 21T EIEL 4% 3
[ Nwa (fF&ED) Bz (PfiF5E2)
Aot Number of Bo Number of
RHOEE % of Shares under BRHEE % of Shares under
Name of Number of Issued Option Number of Issued Option
EEME 51 Directors Capacity Shares Capital (Note 1) Shares Capital (Note 2)
FRER R fE A Ronnie C. Chan  Personal - - 11,790,000 - - 41,070,000
BRiE - S.S. Yin - - - - - _ _
PR R 1% BN Philip N.L. Chen Personal = = = = = 19,000,000
PREER - Gerald L. Chan - - - _ 7 _ _
#EY - HK Cheng - - - - - - -
FRE&NG - Laura L.Y. Chen - - - - - - -
BiHL = Simon S.0. Ip = = = = = = =
DESS] fBA H.C.Ho Personal - - - - - 8,600,000
H$7E Notes
1. REAQXT 2RO HETENHESE
Movement of Options under the Share Option Scheme of the Company
RIBHRETRE 2R L
Number of Shares under Option §H§ZT%1§§
7
REHBH A2013%F FRITE A2013F Exercise REAH A
(B/8/%) 1818  Exercised 128318 Price (A/8/%) (A/B/%)
Date Granted As at during As at per Share Vested Dates Expiry Date
(mm/ddlyyyy) #HH& Name Jan 1, 2013 the Year Dec 31, 2013 (HK$) (mm/dd/yyyy)  (mm/dd/yyyy)
05/20/2004  BRERE Ronnie C. Chan 5,090,000 - 5,090,000 $9.45 05/20/2005: 25%  05/19/2014
05/20/2006: 25%
05/20/2007: 25%
05/20/2008: 25%
11/20/2006  PERERXZ= Ronnie C. Chan 6,700,000 - 6,700,000 $20.52  11/20/2007: 10%  11/19/2016
11/20/2008: 20%
11/20/2009: 30%
11/20/2010: 40%
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2. REEEBEARAITZROMESENWHESS

Movements of Options under the Share Option Schemes of Hang Lung Properties Limited

(i) RZEE-_F+— A+ AEENZ R0 BT E
Share Option Scheme adopted on November 22, 2002

REBH

(B/B/%)
Date Granted
(mm/dd/yyyy)

HH

Name

RIBHARE AT SRR 2 IR B

Number of Shares under Option

A2013%F
1A1H8

As at

Jan 1, 2013

FRITE
Exercised
during
the Year

H20134%F
12A31H

As at

Dec 31, 2013

BRITEE
(A1)
Exercise
Price

per Share
(HK$)

BERH
(B/B/%)
Vested Dates
(mm/dd/yyyy)

B
(R/8/%)
Expiry Date
(mm/dd/yyyy)

05/20/2004

11/20/2006

08/21/2007

08/21/2007

09/01/2008

12/31/2008

02/08/2010

07/29/2010

09/29/2010

06/13/2011

BRRUR

BRERR

BRECR

BRERR

fi] 2 &

BRERR

[DEA=

BRERR

BRAIHE

[CE=

FRARR
BRI
oET)

Ronnie C. Chan

Ronnie C. Chan

Ronnie C. Chan

Ronnie C. Chan

H.C. Ho

Ronnie C. Chan

H.C. Ho

Ronnie C. Chan

Philip N.L. Chen

H.C. Ho

Ronnie C. Chan
Philip N.L. Chen
H.C. Ho

5,090,000

2,000,000

3,640,000

5,600,000

300,000

9,240,000

300,000

6,500,000

10,000,000

2,000,000

4,500,000
4,500,000
3,000,000

5,090,000

2,000,000

3,640,000

5,600,000

300,000

9,240,000

300,000

6,500,000

10,000,000

2,000,000

4,500,000
4,500,000
3,000,000

$9.20

$17.14

$25.00

$25.00

$24.20

$17.36

$26.46

$33.05

$36.90

$30.79

05/20/2005:
05/20/2006:
05/20/2007:
05/20/2008:

11/20/2007:
11/20/2008:
11/20/2009:
11/20/2010:

08/21/2008:
08/21/2009:
08/21/2010:
08/21/2011:

08/21/2009:
08/21/2010:
08/21/2011:
08/21/2012:

09/01/2010:
09/01/2011:
09/01/2012:
09/01/2013:

12/31/2010:
12/31/2011:
12/31/2012:
12/31/2013:

02/08/2012:
02/08/2013:
02/08/2014:
02/08/2015:

07/29/2012:
07/29/2013:
07/29/2014:
07/29/2015:

09/29/2012:
09/29/2013:
09/29/2014:
09/29/2015:

06/13/2013:
06/13/2014:
06/13/2015:
06/13/2016:

25%
25%
25%
25%

10%
20%
30%
40%

10%
20%
30%
40%

10%
20%
30%
40%

10%
20%
30%
40%

10%
20%
30%
40%

10%
20%
30%
40%

10%
20%
30%
40%

10%
20%
30%
40%

10%
20%
30%
40%

05/19/2014

11/19/2016

08/20/2017

08/20/2017

08/31/2018

12/30/2018

02/07/2020

07/28/2020

09/28/2020

06/12/2021
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Report of the Directors

2. REEEBEARATDZROMESENAELE @

Movements of Options under the Share Option Schemes of Hang Lung Properties Limited (Continued)

(il R=ZZT—=FMWA+/\BEHEM 2 B’ s E
Share Option Scheme adopted on April 18, 2012
RIE RN R RS 2 RE L
Number of Shares under Option §592T§;§
/
RHAH R2013F FREFEH R2013F Exercise SEAH A
(A/8/%) 1818 Granted 128318 Price (B/B/%®) (A/R/F)
Date Granted As at during As at per Share Vested Dates Expiry Date
(mm/ddryyyy) #H Name Jan 1, 2013 the Year Dec 31, 2013 (HKS$) (mm/dd/yyyy)  (mm/dd/yyyy)
06/04/2013 [RES=  Ronnie C. Chan - 4,500,000 4,500,000 $28.20 06/04/2015: 10%  06/03/2023
FRE#E  Philip N.L. Chen - 4,500,000 4,500,000 06/04/2016: 20%
fIZ& H.C.Ho - 3,000,000 3,000,000 06/04/2017: 30%

06/04/2018: 40%

BRIA LB - ARREFHWEF 2
AMBEAYEN _—_T—=F+_H=1+—
BHEAARBRERBEEEZ Kk - 48

RAR ) S ERERE 2 R SRR

B DA AT SN - B RO FE (RS - AR T
of, LA AT 6 28 100 S84 1 £ 0 22 B
AREE (REREIRERFEH R
F ) AHMARD T RN 2
(AR BB TS -

FTERRREMALTARD RIEE
BRAD 2 # s ROR R

BREEFGIE=ZB=TEREATH
F2ELMARE  TERRRKIERES
GROIEXVEBERBEEAa cEMBALR
—E-=ZF+_R=+—HBHAARRZ
Pty REBER D 2 EEARIKRE 2 F 15
LA
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Save as disclosed above, none of the directors of the Company or any
of their associates had, as at December 31, 2013, any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any associated corporations.

Other than as stated above, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
directors of the Company (including their spouses and children under
18 years of age) to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at December 31, 2013, details of substantial shareholders’ and other
persons’ (who are required to disclose their interests pursuant to Part XV
of the SFO) interests and short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO are as follows:

2013 &3k ANNUAL REPORT



BFEROIEERGEE
Number of Shares or
Underlying Shares Held

ERTREAZEIL
% of Issued Capital

(#&) (RAE) (#&) (6759

M EE (Long (Short (Long (Short

& Name Note Position)  Position) Position)  Position)

BER Chan Tan Ching Fen 1 498,428,580 - 36.93 -

Cole Enterprises Holdings Limited  Cole Enterprises Holdings Limited 1 498,428,580 - 36.93 -

Merssion Limited Merssion Limited 1 498,428,580 - 36.93 -

Kingswick Investment Limited Kingswick Investment Limited 2 97,965,000 - 7.26 -

Aberdeen Asset Management Plc ~ Aberdeen Asset Management Plc 3 201,924,756 - 14.96 -
PEE 5 YN and its associates

Dodge & Cox Dodge & Cox 3 69,549,300 - 5.15 -

Mk Notes

LIHERGE—ETESHABEZRMD AR —H#R
e MEBS LT AZETLES 2K A - Cole
Enterprises Holdings Limited & 2 2 st & & 2 %
LA e
Merssion Limited B BMEATFNAEON+ =8 N\TH
BNATBRERGD  ERATFEEA TSR TREH
£ E P} A 7] Kingswick Investment Limited #74 ©

2. Kingswick Investment Limited i B 2 L T+ &
NT+ARBETRBEGEREELLBREE S
%z £/ Cole Enterprises Holdings Limited / Merssion
Limited A A ZMEATF N ABO+=ZBNTFTHEN
RO ZEBR -

3. WERMTARELEZ D AHE ©

RIALFBEN R-F—=F+_-A=
T—H  ARARAEENE M HwE
@ MARBERREZFGIFE=a="1
NEREATREFEZELMA -

BEEALRS

ERABEBHETNERBEALRSF
BERNMBERERMERE -+ NLIERN - ZF
FEANLRZUTBREBEEBAXZME
RAFIRESF ETRARENR T RERE

1. These shares were the same parcel of shares held by a trust of which Ms Chan Tan
Ching Fen was the founder. Cole Enterprises Holdings Limited was the trustee of
the trust.

Merssion Limited held 498,428,580 shares, of which 97,965,000 shares were held by
its subsidiary, Kingswick Investment Limited.

2. The 97,965,000 shares held by Kingswick Investment Limited were included in the
above-mentioned number of 498,428,580 shares held by Ms Chan Tan Ching Fen/Cole
Enterprises Holdings Limited/Merssion Limited.

3. These shares were held in the capacity of investment managers.

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2013, no other interest
required to be recorded in the register kept under section 336 of the
SFO has been notified to the Company.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken in
the usual course of business are set out in Note 29 on the Financial
Statements. None of these related party transactions constitutes
a discloseable connected transaction as defined under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract for the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into
or existed during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of its listed securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 93 to 117.

AUDITOR

A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditor of the Company
until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting is to be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By Order of the Board

Bella Peck Lim Chhoa
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, January 23, 2014
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of
Hang Lung Group Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hang Lung
Group Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the
Group”) set out on pages 136 to 213, which comprise the consolidated
and company statements of financial position as at December 31,
2013, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
December 31, 2013 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

January 23, 2014
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Consolidated Income Statement

HE-_T—=F+=-FA=+—HIL%EE For the year ended December 31, 2013

NBE BB E in HK$ Million ﬁg 2013 2012
S Turnover 3(a) 9,734 7,986
BEKANREEER Direct costs and operating expenses (2,482) (1,826)
EF Gross profit 7,252 6,160
E Al A Other income 4 63 2,247
THEA Administrative expenses (698) (695)
REtAREWEZ AFE  Operating profit before change in fair value

))& SR T of investment properties 6,617 7,712
B NFEE Increase in fair value of investment properties 12 2,651 3,057
2Et AREYE 2 AFE  Operating profit after change in fair value

B E E R of investment properties 9,268 10,769
FEMA Interest income 978 722
Mi5EH Finance costs (549) (458)
FEMAFEE Net interest income 5 429 264
JEIRE B EEFER Share of profits of joint ventures 14 431 276
B A AT A Profit before taxation 3(a) &6 10,128 11,309
A Taxation 8(a) (1,567) (1,379)
AN F Profit for the year 8,561 9,930
FEAS - Attributable to:

A& ER Shareholders 23 4,557 5,262

FEEAR R A Non-controlling interests 24 4,004 4,668

8,561 9,930

R Earnings per share 11(a)

HAK Basic $3.38 $3.90

e Diluted $3.36 $3.87

BHREME DA BRRZ — 8D -
FABRREBIEREFIINHEELO -
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to the year are set out in note 10.

2013 &% ANNUAL REPORT

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. Details
of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable




e EWE R

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HE-_T—=F+=-FA=+—HIL%EE For the year ended December 31, 2013

NBE BB E in HK$ Million ﬁg 2013 2012
REREHEF] Profit for the year 8,561 9,930
Hih 2wk Other comprehensive income 8(d)
EgnEHoBEEREZ Items that may be reclassified subsequently
IER : to profit or loss:
KEMEREZD Net movement in investment
SRR revaluation reserve 13 11
T E SN B A B BRIE Exchange difference arising from
EECEREZR translation of overseas subsidiaries 2,989 171
3,002 182
rEELHINEERE Total comprehensive income for the year 11,563 10,112
FEEmEUNSAEEE Total comprehensive income attributable to:
R&ER Shareholders 6,289 5,371
IR RS Non-controlling interests 5,274 4741
11,563 10,112

B REM T DA B RK 2 — B -

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Statements of Financial Position

W=—Z—=%+=H=+—8 At December 31, 2013

£E NG
Group Company
G
LA EBIRtE in HK$ Million Note 2013 2012 2013 2012
FRBEE Non-current assets
BEEEE Fixed assets
KB YE Investment properties 115,818 106,102 - =
BRPREYE Investment properties
under development 30,478 24,482 - -
HtEEEE Other fixed assets 295 255 - _
12 146,591 130,839 - -
M A AlfERS Interest in subsidiaries 13 - - 15,550 15,001
AP EER Interest in joint ventures 14 2,991 2,247 - -
HEmEE Other assets 15 1,282 1,258 - -
BRI E E Deferred tax assets 21(b) 19 19 - =
150,883 134,363 15,550 15,001
RBEE Current assets
R & MIRT Tk Cash and deposits with banks 16 39,704 40,183 2 =
& U BR 70 K EL At R U R Trade and other receivables 17 2,661 860 - =
Hth&E Other assets 15 - 452 - _
FEYE Properties for sale 18 5,717 6,139 - =
HHEZEE Assets held for sale - 906 - _
48,082 48,540 2 _
i =R Current liabilities
RITERRAMEE Bank loans and other borrowings 19 1,657 1,113 - -
JFE AT BR TN 2 At FE ST R Trade and other payables 20 6,250 5,240 11 7
e IE Taxation payable 21(a) 646 446 - =
FHEZBE Liabilities held for sale - 13 _ _
8,553 6,812 11 7
REEE/(AE) BE Net current assets/(liabilities) 39,529 41,728 (9) (7)
EEABRREARE Total assets less current liabilities 190,412 176,091 15,541 14,994
kRBEE Non-current liabilities
RITERRHMES Bank loans and other borrowings 19 43,367 36,532 - -
FEATBT B A F5kIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 13(b) - = 471 373
EIEFIE B & Deferred tax liabilities 21(b) 10,637 9,944 - -
54,004 46,476 471 373
BEEFE NET ASSETS 136,408 129,615 15,070 14,621
BARR#E Capital and reserves
R& A Share capital 22 1,350 1,350 1,350 1,350
B Reserves 23 69,222 63,874 13,720 13,271
PR ERAERS Shareholders’ equity 70,572 65,224 15,070 14,621
FEFERR Non-controlling interests 24 65,836 64,391 - =
HRERS TOTAL EQUITY 136,408 129,615 15,070 14,621
FR % Philip N.L. Chen
EEEKE Managing Director
(EEA=] H.C. Ho
HITES Executive Director
W HmEMT AR B HRETK 2 —3 D ° The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-_T—=F+=-FA=+—HIL%EE For the year ended December 31, 2013
P SR A 2
Shareholders’ equity
FEERR
T
BRA  HivFEE  REBEF Non- arEm
Share Other  Retained #%8  controlling Total
capital reserves profits Total interests equity
(fE22)  (MdaE23)  (BfiEE23) (Pf=E24)
A EETTE in HK$ Million (Note 22)  (Note 23)  (Note 23) (Note 24)
R-_ZE——F—H—H At January 1, 2012 1,348 8,180 50,982 60,510 60,658 121,168
RNEFE A Profit for the year = - 5262 5262 4668 9930
HEMERESE)FE Net movement in investment
revaluation reserve - 11 - 11 - 11
MEFIN B A TIBRIEAEL  Exchange difference arising
ZEHER from translation of
overseas subsidiaries - 98 - 98 73 171
AEEEHEW=RTE Total comprehensive income
for the year - 109 5,262 5,371 4,741 10,112
FFEERERE Final dividends in respect of
previous financial year - - (513) (513) - (513)
REZHHRE Interim dividends in respect of
current financial year - = (256) (256) = (256)
BIIRG Issue of shares 2 15 17 — 17
EEREEA Employee share-based
payments - (4) 113 109 124 233
$§§E—F’Eﬁf9ﬁ%’/}ﬂ Change in non-controlling
ZBRER M E S interests arising from
IR iR B decrease of the Group’s
shareholding in a subsidiary - (14) - (14) 74 60
[BENE g Tl s Dividends paid to
non-controlling interests - - - = (1,176) (1,176)
B8 T IEIZE R R IE Repayment to non-controlling
interests - - - - (30) (30)
RZZE——F+—-A= At December 31, 2012 and
r—E—=F— )EJ—E January 1, 2013 1,350 8,286 55,588 65,224 64,391 129,615
N S v K| Profit for the year - - 4,557 4,557 4,004 8,561
WEGERBBEE)FE Net movement in investment
revaluation reserve - 13 - 13 - 13
MEEINHI B ATBRIEEA  Exchange difference arising
ZIERER from translation of
overseas subsidiaries - 1,719 - 1,719 1,270 2,989
AEEEHEWSBEE Total comprehensive income
for the year - 1,732 4,557 6,289 5,274 11,563
FEFEEREEE Final dividends in respect of
previous financial year - - (810) (810) - (810)
REFFERE Interim dividends in respect of
current financial year - - (256) (256) - (256)
BT Issue of shares - 2 - 2 _ 2
EENREEA Employee share-based
payments - 67 22 89 75 164
AREEET KB AR Change in non-controlling
Z RREIE M= A interests arising from increase
FEFE AR HE o of the Group’s shareholding
in a subsidiary - 34 - 34 (2,184) (2,150)
B IR AR B Dividends paid to
non-controlling interests - - - - (1,704) (1,704)
Ei8 T IEIERR i e 708 Repayment to non-controlling
interests - - - - (16) (16)
A—E—=F+=-HA=+—H At December 31, 2013 1,350 10,121 59,101 70,572 65,836 136,408

MK T ARG IRER Z — 87

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HE-_T—=F+=-FA=+—HIL%EE For the year ended December 31, 2013

NBE BB E in HK$ Million Woi 2013 2012
KRR Operating activities
RELEEB RS Cash generated from operations 25 6,147 6,219
BEAHIE Tax paid

BB BREH Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (386) (455)

B BETER China Income Tax paid (589) (596)
REKETH AL FEE Net cash generated from operating activities 5,172 5,168
REEE Investing activities

BEETEE Payment for fixed assets (9,896) (5,360)
HEBTFEBEMESHRIBFZE Net sale proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 40 5,171
BREHEZEEERS Deposits received for assets held for sale - 91
HEMRB AT AERIBFERE Net sale proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries 802 -
BUFFE I B R EFKIE Receipt of matured held-to-maturity investments 452 450
B E Interest received 984 682
BUlEETFERE Dividends received from joint ventures 19 40
SEDE (BER)/ER (Advance to)/Repayment from joint ventures (332) 141
BUWIEETRIREIEB KB Dividends received from unlisted investments - 3
I EMREERER Repayment of advances to unlisted investments - 1
R=18 A &2 BHERTT Decrease/(Increase) in bank deposits with

Z225md /() maturity greater than three months 7,635 (3,223)
ARRETES 2 REFHE Net cash used in investing activities (296) (2,004)
A& EE Financing activities

FTILIRITE SRR Proceeds from new bank loans and
HAit GBS RIA other borrowings 7,655 16,054
BERIRITER Repayment of bank loans (475) (5,920)
1T{E R BRREFT 15 7118 Proceeds from exercise of share options 2 17
ERFEREMEEEH Interest and other borrowing costs paid (1,221) (968)
BENmEHERHR Finance lease charges paid - (3)
B S Dividends paid (1,066) (769)
[SERER2di e Fali e Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (1,704) (1,176)
BRI AR i R FIE Repayment to non-controlling interests (16) (30)
BB A RIS AR A (Decrease)/Increase in non-controlling
CRiA)/ #n interests in subsidiaries (2,129) 60
BEME 2 EAREMD Capital element of finance lease - (104)
REMETH RS FHE Net cash generated from financing activities 1,046 7,161
BEREESEEY 2N Increase in cash and cash equivalents 5,922 10,325
Exgm oo Effect of foreign exchange rate change 1,115 444
R—B—HBZEER Cash and cash equivalents at January 1 32,072 21,303
REeZEY
Rt+=—B=+—H=2 Cash and cash equivalents at December 31 16 39,109 32,072
ReRELZEEY

GRS ARG RER 2 — 8 o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA7B¥E A7) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(@) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”),
which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. A
summary of the principal accounting policies adopted by the Group is
set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are
first effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group and the Company. Note 2 provides information on
any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial adoption of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group
for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard, amendment or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current accounting period
(note 32).

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) and the Group’s
interest in joint ventures.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial

statements is the historical cost basis except as otherwise stated in the
accounting policies set out below.
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1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Judgments made by management in the application of HKFRSs that
have significant effect on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 31.

(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls
an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing whether the Group
has power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties)
are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealized profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealized losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealized gains but only to the extent that there is
no evidence of impairment.
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1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of the net assets
of subsidiaries attributable to interests that are not owned by the
Company, whether directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with
the holders of those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests that
meets the definition of a financial liability. Non-controlling interests are
presented in the consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated income statement and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the period
between non-controlling interests and the equity shareholders of
the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result in
a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss
is recognized.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognized in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognized at fair
value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
of a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition
of an investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment losses (note 1(j)).
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1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d) Joint ventures

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or Company and
other parties contractually agree to share control of the arrangement,
and have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

The Group’s interests in joint ventures are accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method and are
initially recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for the post-acquisition
change in the Group’s share of the joint ventures’ net assets. The
consolidated income statement includes the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition, post-tax results of the joint ventures for the year, whereas
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax items of the joint
ventures’ other comprehensive income is recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the joint
venture, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and recognition of further
losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint
venture. For this purpose, the Group’s interest in the joint venture is the
carrying amount of the investment under the equity method together
with the Group’s long-term interests that in substance form part of the
Group’s net investment in the joint venture.

When the Group ceases to have joint control over a joint venture, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that investee, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognized in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that former investee at the date when joint control is lost is
recognized at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset.

Unrealized profits and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the joint venture, except where unrealized losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in joint
ventures are stated at cost less impairment losses (note 1(j)).
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1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(e) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business combination
over the Group’s share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses and is
tested regularly for impairment (note 1(j)).

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of a
business combination is recognized immediately in profit or loss as a
gain on a bargain purchase.

On disposal of an entity, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill
is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

(f) Properties

1. Investment properties and investment properties under
development

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned or
held under a leasehold interest to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a currently undetermined
future use and property that is being constructed or developed for future
use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value, unless they are still in the
course of construction or development at the end of the reporting period
and their fair value cannot be reliably measured at that time. Any gain or
loss arising from a change in fair value or from the retirement or disposal
of an investment property is recognized in profit or loss. Rental income
from investment properties is accounted for as described in note 1(q).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating lease
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the interest is
classified and accounted for as an investment property on a property-
by-property basis. Any such property interest which has been classified
as an investment property is accounted for as if it were held under a
finance lease, and the same accounting policies are applied to that
interest as are applied to other investment properties leased under
finance leases. Lease payments are accounted for as described in
note 1(g).
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1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(f) Properties (Continued)
2.  Properties under development for sale

Properties under development for sale are classified under current
assets and stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Costs
include the acquisition cost of land, aggregate cost of development,
borrowing costs capitalized (note 1(0)) and other direct expenses. Net
realizable value represents the estimated selling price less estimated
costs of completion and costs to be incurred in selling the property.

3. Completed properties for sale

Completed properties for sale are classified under current assets and
stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined
by apportionment of the total development costs, including borrowing
costs capitalized (note 1(0)), attributable to unsold properties. Net
realizable value represents the estimated selling price as determined
by reference to management estimates based on prevailing market
conditions, less costs to be incurred in selling the property.

(g) Other fixed assets

1. Other fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses (note 1(j)). Gains or losses arising
from the retirement or disposal of an item of other fixed assets are
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item and are recognized in profit
or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

2. Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions,
is or contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement
conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period
of time in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes the
legal form of a lease.
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1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(g) Other fixed assets (Continued)

2. Leased assets (Continued)

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

The classification is determined based on an evaluation of the
substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether the
arrangement takes the legal form of a lease. Leases of assets under
which the lessee assumes substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Leases of assets under which
the lessor has not transferred all the risks and benefits of ownership are
classified as operating leases, with the following exceptions:

— property held under operating leases that would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property is classified as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis and is accounted for as if
held under a finance lease; and

— land held for own use under an operating lease, the fair value
of which cannot be measured separately from the fair value of a
building situated thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted
for as being held under a finance lease, unless the building is also
clearly held under an operating lease. For these purposes, the
inception of the lease is the time that the lease was first entered into
by the Group, or taken over from the previous lessee.

(if)  Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance leases, the
amounts representing the fair value of the leased asset, or, if lower,
the present value of the minimum lease payments, of such assets are
included in fixed assets and the corresponding liabilities, net of finance
charges, are recorded as obligations under finance leases. Depreciation
is provided at rates which write off the cost or valuation of the assets
over the term of the relevant lease or, where it is likely the Company or
the Group will obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as
set out in note 1(h). Impairment losses are accounted for as described
in note 1(j). Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are
charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases so as to produce
an approximately constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining
balance of the obligations for each accounting period. Contingent rentals
are written off as an expense of the accounting period in which they
are incurred.
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1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Other fixed assets (Continued)

2. Leased assets (Continued)

(iii)  Operating leases charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases,
payments made under the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives received
are recognized in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss
in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

(h) Depreciation
1. Investment properties

No depreciation is provided for investment properties and investment
properties under development.

2. Other fixed assets

Depreciation on other fixed assets is calculated to write off the cost, less
their estimated residual value, if any, on a straight line basis over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings 50 years or unexpired lease term,
whichever is shorter

Furniture and equipment 4-20 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

(i) Financial assets
1. Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity which the Group’s
management has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.
Held-to-maturity investments are initially recognized in the statement of
financial position at fair value plus transaction costs and subsequently
carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment loss. Any impairment loss is recognized in profit
or loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired
(note 1(j)).
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1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(i) Financial assets (Continued)
2. Other investments in equity securities

Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured are recognized in the statement of financial position at
cost less impairment losses (note 1(j)). Other investments in equity
securities are classified as available-for-sale equity securities and are
initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs. At the end of the
reporting period, the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or
loss being recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity. Dividend income from these investments is
recognized directly in profit or loss in accordance with the policy set out
in note 1(g). When these investments are derecognized, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognized directly in equity is reclassified to
profit or loss.

Investments are recognized/derecognized on the date the Group
commits to purchase/sell the investments or they expire.

(j) Impairment of assets

An assessment is carried out at the end of each reporting period to
determine whether there is objective evidence that a current or non-
current asset, other than properties carried at revalued amounts, is
impaired. In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-
sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment
below its cost is considered in determining whether the investments
are impaired.
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1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(j)) Impairment of assets (Continued)

If any such indication exists, any impairment loss is determined and
recognized as follows:

— For current receivables carried at amortized cost, the impairment loss
is recognized when there is objective evidence of impairment and
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective rate where the effect of discounting
is material. Objective evidence of impairment includes observable
data that comes to the attention of the Group about events that
have an impact on the asset’s estimated future cash flows such
as significant financial difficulty of the debtor. If in a subsequent
period the amount of impairment loss decreases, the impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment
loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognized in prior years.

Impairment losses for receivables whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote are recorded using an allowance account.
When the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against receivables directly and
any amounts held in the allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are recognized in profit
or loss.
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(k)

Trade and other receivables are initially recognized at fair value and

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

— For available-for-sale equity securities, the cumulative loss that has

been recognized in investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to
profit or loss. The amount of the cumulative loss that is recognized
in profit or loss is the difference between the acquisition cost (net of
any principal repayment and amortization) and current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that asset previously recognized in
profit or loss. Impairment loss recognized in profit or loss in respect
of available-for-sale equity securities is not reversed through profit
or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair value of such assets is
recognized in other comprehensive income.

For other non-current assets, the recoverable amount is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. An impairment loss is recognized as an expense in
profit or loss whenever the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favorable
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognized in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses
are credited to profit or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognized. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

Trade and other receivables

thereafter stated at amortized cost using the effective interest method,

less impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts (note 1(j)), except

where the receivables are interest-free loans or the effect of discounting
would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost

less impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts (note 1(j)).
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1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
() Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are also included
as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the
consolidated cash flow statement.

(m) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognized at fair value and
thereafter stated at amortized cost unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

(n) Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognized initially at fair value less
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are stated at amortized cost with any difference
between costs and redemption value being recognized in profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

(o) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalization of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying
asset commences when expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary
to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying assets
for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.
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1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities

1.  Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e. the

guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the beneficiary

of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a

specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with

the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Company issues a financial guarantee, the fair value of
the guarantee is initially recognized as deferred income within trade
and other payables. The fair value of financial guarantees issued at
the time of issuance is determined by reference to fees charged in an
arm’s length transaction for similar services, when such information
is obtainable, or is otherwise estimated by reference to interest rate
differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged by lenders when the
guarantee is made available with the estimated rates that lenders would
have charged, had the guarantees not been available, where reliable
estimates of such information can be made. Where consideration
is received or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognized in accordance with the Company’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. When no such consideration is
received or receivable, an immediate expense is recognized in profit or
loss on initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognized as deferred income
is amortized in profit or loss over the term of the guarantee as income
from financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are recognized
in accordance with note 1(p)(2) if and when (i) it becomes probable
that the holder of guarantee will call upon the Company under the
guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that claim on the Company is
expected to exceed the amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognized,
less accumulated amortization.
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1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities (Continued)

2. Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
when the Group or the Company has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. When the time value of the money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(q) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured
reliably, revenue is recognized in profit or loss as follows:

1. Sale of properties

Revenue from sale of completed properties is recognized upon the
later of the signing of sale and purchase agreements or the issue of
occupation permit by the relevant government authorities, which is
taken to be the point in time when the risks and rewards of ownership
of the property have passed to the buyer.

2. Rental income

Rental income under operating leases is recognized on a straight
line basis over the terms of the respective leases, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognized in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payment receivable. Contingent rentals are recognized as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.
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1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(q) Revenue recognition (Continued)
3. Interest income

Interest income is recognized as it accrues using the effective
interest method.

4.  Dividends

Dividends are recognized when the right to receive payment is
established.

(r) Taxation

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts
of tax are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all
deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilized, are
recognized. The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill not
deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets and liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profits, and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.
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1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(r) Taxation (Continued)

When investment properties and investment properties under
development are carried at their fair value in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 1(f)(1), the amount of deferred tax
recognized is measured using the tax rates that would apply on sale of
those assets at their carrying value at the end of the reporting period
unless the property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the property over time, rather than through sale. In all other
cases, the amount of deferred tax recognized is measured based on the
expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilized. Any such reduction is reversed to
the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are
recognized when the liability to pay the related dividends is recognized.

(s) Translation of foreign currencies

Items included in the financial statements of each entity in the Group
are measured using the currency that best reflects the economic
substance of the underlying events and circumstances relevant to the
entity (“functional currency”). The financial statements of the Group are
presented in Hong Kong dollars.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss.
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1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(s) Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rate ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair values
are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the
fair value was determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated in Hong Kong dollars at
the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the dates of the transactions. Statement of financial position items are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences are
recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal
is recognized.

(t) Related parties

1. A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to
the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is @ member of the key management personnel of the Group or
the Group’s parent.
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1 FEEHBEX @ 1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

t) BEAL ®) (t) Related parties (Continued)

2. (HBEES T EMIEE BNz E2EAK 2. An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions
SEFRE applies:

() ZEREAAEEER—SE /K82 () Theentityand the Group are members of the same Group (which
T ( Bl & &R a] - Mxﬂ? G AEE ] means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is

DR HAEE) o related to the others).

(i) —FEERAZ —BEMEIZARHAZ (i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
E (B —ERAKE AR ZEEE an associate or joint venture of a member of a Group of which the
THRE QR ZBE AR EEREE) o other entity is a member).

(i) MEERGAR—F=AHE%N% - (i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(ivy HEBAF=-FEENSLELE (iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is
MiE—BERAZF=-FTEEBNHE an associate of the third entity.

NI
(v) ZEBRAAE@ENEAREFRERBEY  (v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
T ok E B MR ST R B FIET R o employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi) ZERESAMELWN() Fraimg A (vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified
Hll gk HEES o in note 1(t)(1).

(vii) FAMTEELIML)G) Pttty A 832 Z 82 (vii) A person identified in note 1(t)(1)(i) has significant influence over
BEARTE 7] HNEZERE (NZEE the entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the
MEAR]) TBEEEERKS - entity (or of a parent of the entity).

HzZ ATHBEZYHNRERKE SHEMMAE Close members of the family of a person are those family members who
Eﬁii BETXK S AEReE L EZ A may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
THRZALTEENKERE - dealings with the entity.

(u) PHRE (u) Segment reporting

"%—
EEE%: e %) Tﬁﬁ@i‘%fﬁﬁﬁf’ﬁﬁﬁ’\]ﬁ\]%ﬁ

SEH2HF A EIEHFAREFN Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
T

EERBHEESREER  SLTEHAEER Group’s internal financial reporting to the Group’s most senior

executive management for the purposes of allocating resources to, and

BRRE— B EERmMS ' 2% assessing the performance of the Group’s various lines of business
DEPRI B — Ak Z EK & 5 & (uA:/\“B. and geographical locations. For disclosure purpose, a reportable

AEABUNEESHMAERENTEE

segment comprises either one or more operating segments which

MmalF&6) B —RX&ESZ (AT EES can be aggregated together because they share similar economic

PrkiRB BB R M BB E) AR
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characteristics and nature of the regulatory environment, or single

operating segments which are disclosable separately because they

cannot be aggregated or they exceed quantitative thresholds.

B LB AR 2R HANG LUNG GROUP LIMITED
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1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(v) Employee benefits

~

Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement schemes

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, the cost of non-monetary
benefits and obligation for contributions to defined contribution
retirement schemes, including those payables in mainland China and
Hong Kong under relevant legislation, are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees of the Group.

2.  Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is measured at
grant date, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted, and is expensed on a straight line basis over
the vesting period taking into account the probability that the options
will vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (employee share-based
compensation reserve).

During the vesting period, the number of share options that is expected
to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair
value recognized in prior years is charged/credited to profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the
employee share-based compensation reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognized as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual
number of options that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
employee share-based compensation reserve).

At the time when the share options are exercised, the related employee
share-based compensation reserve is transferred to share capital and
share premium, together with the exercise price. If the options expire
or lapse after the vesting period, the related employee share-based
compensation reserve is transferred directly to retained profits.
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2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting period of the
Group. Of these, the following developments are relevant to the Group’s
financial statements:

— Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements —
Presentation of items of other comprehensive income

— HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

— HKFRS 11, Joint arrangements

— HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities
— HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

— Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle

— Amendments to HKFRS 7 — Disclosures — Offsetting financial assets
and financial liabilities

(@) Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements — Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income

The amendments to HKAS 1 require entities to present the items of
other comprehensive income that would be reclassified to profit or loss
in the future if certain conditions are met separately from those that
would never be reclassified to profit or loss. The Group’s presentation
of other comprehensive income in these financial statements has been
modified accordingly.

(b) HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

HKFRS 10 replaces the requirements in HKAS 27 “Consolidated and
separate financial statements” relating to the preparation of consolidated
financial statements and HK(SIC)-Int 12 “Consolidation — Special
purpose entities”. It introduces a single control model to determine
whether an investee should be consolidated, by focusing on whether the
entity has power over the investee, exposure or rights to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and the ability to use its power to
affect the amount of those returns.

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 10, the Group has changed its
accounting policy with respect to determining whether it has control
over an investee. The adoption does not change any of the control
conclusions reached by the Group in respect of its involvement with
other entities as at January 1, 2013.
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2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(c) HKFRS 11, Joint arrangements

HKFRS 11, which replaces HKAS 31 “Interests in joint ventures”
divides joint arrangements into joint operations and joint ventures.
Entities are required to determine the type of an arrangement by
considering the structure, legal form, contractual terms and other facts
and circumstances relevant to their rights and obligations under the
arrangement. Joint arrangements which are classified as joint operations
under HKFRS 11 are recognized on a line-by-line basis to the extent
of the joint operator’s interest in the joint operation. All other joint
arrangements are classified as joint ventures under HKFRS 11 and are
required to be accounted for using the equity method in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements. Proportionate consolidation is no
longer allowed as an accounting policy choice.

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 11, the Group has changed its
accounting policy with respect to its interests in joint arrangements and
re-evaluated its involvement in its joint arrangements. The adoption of
HKFRS 11 does not have any material impact on the financial position
and the financial result of the Group.

(d) HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities

HKFRS 12 brings together into a single standard all the disclosure
requirements relevant to an entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and unconsolidated structured entities. The
disclosures required by HKFRS 12 are generally more extensive than
those previously required by the respective standards. To the extent that
the requirements are applicable to the Group, the Group has provided
those disclosures in notes 13 and 14.

(e) HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

HKFRS 13 replaces existing guidance in individual HKFRSs with
a single source of fair value measurement guidance. HKFRS 13
also contains extensive disclosure requirements about fair value
measurements for both financial instruments and non-financial
instruments. To the extent that the requirements are applicable to the
Group, the Group has provided those disclosures in notes 12 and 30.

(f) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle

This cycle of annual improvements contains amendments to five
standards with consequential amendments to other standards and
interpretations. The adoption of these amendments does not have
significant impact on the financial statements of the Group.
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2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Amendments to HKFRS 7 - Disclosures
— Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

The amendments introduce new disclosures in respect of offsetting
financial assets and financial liabilities. Those new disclosures are
required for all recognized financial instruments that are set off in
accordance with HKAS 32 “Financial instruments: Presentation” and
those that are subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement
or similar agreement that covers similar financial instruments and
transactions, irrespective of whether the financial instruments are set
off in accordance with HKAS 32.

The adoption of the amendments does not have an impact on these
financial statements because the Group has not offset financial
instruments, nor has it entered into master netting arrangement or
similar agreement which is subject to the disclosures of HKFRS 7 during
the periods presented.

3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group manages its businesses according to the nature of services
and products provided. Management has determined three reportable
operating segments for the measurement of performance and the
allocation of resources. The segments are property leasing in Hong Kong
and mainland China and property sales in Hong Kong.

Property leasing segment includes property leasing operation. The
Group’s investment properties portfolio, which mainly consists of retail,
office, residential, serviced apartments and carparks are primarily located
in Hong Kong and mainland China. Property sales segment includes
development and sale of the Group’s trading properties in Hong Kong.

Management evaluates performance primarily based on profit before
taxation.

Segment assets principally comprise all non-current assets and current
assets directly attributable to each segment with the exception of
interest in joint ventures, other assets, deferred tax assets, assets held
for sale and cash and deposits with banks. The investment properties
of the Group are included in segment assets at their fair values whilst
the change in fair value of investment properties is not included in
segment profits.

2013 %% ANNUAL REPORT



3 EXERIBER 3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
(a) DEPEXBEREE (@) Turnover and results by segments
X FRE A A
Turnover Profit before taxation
LB EETHE in HK$ Million 2013 2012 2013 2012
o Segment
S E N Property leasing
- B — Hong Kong 3,232 3,185 2,736 2,645
- R A — Mainland China 3,984 3,526 2,995 2,668
7,216 6,711 5,731 5313
Y IHE Property sales
- &% — Hong Kong 2,518 1,275 1,521 847
HE AR Segment total 9,734 7,986 7,252 6,160
E A Other income 63 2247
TERER (FzE) Administrative expenses (Note) (698) (695)
Rt AREME Operating profit before
ZAFEEHN change in fair value of
& A investment properties 6,617 7,712
WEMEZ Increase in fair value of
AFERE investment properties 2,651 3,057
-REBZYFERE — property leasing in Hong Kong 1,660 2112
— R E R YEFE - property leasing in mainland China 991 945
FLEMA Interest income 978 722
M ER Finance costs (549) (458)
BN F5E Net interest income 429 264
BEE & ERT Share of profits of joint ventures 431 276
R A& A Profit before taxation 10,128 11,309
B sE Note:

THRERBREREER - RGATHAEL (ZF—=
F:_E=T=A8T)  BEEAR/RTEENEN
HEREERN R FEOEN  ARERBRENE
EREME ©

Administrative expenses included share-based payments of $164 million (2012: $233
million) representing the amortization of the fair value of options granted to employees over
the vesting period and do not involve any cash outflow for the Group.
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3 EXFERIBEH @ 3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
(b) PPBEE (b) Total assets by segments
BEE
Total assets
LB EETHE in HK$ Million 2013 2012
2B Segment
YERE Property leasing
- B — Hong Kong 57,042 55,282
— R — Mainland China 90,417 76,394
147,459 131,676
YT Property sales
- &% — Hong Kong 7,510 6,162
HEpiEEE Segment total 154,969 137,838
BB EER Interest in joint ventures 2,991 2,247
Hth&EE Other assets 1,282 1,710
IRIEFRIBE E Deferred tax assets 19 19
FHEZEE Assets held for sale - 906
e RIRTTER Cash and deposits with banks 39,704 40,183
1B E Total assets 198,965 182,903
4 HlwA 4 OTHER INCOME
KB EETHE in HK$ Million 2013 2012
HEREMERE Gain on disposal of investment properties 9 2149
FHREER 2R EM A Dividend income from listed investments 4 3
JEETIREIEE 2R EU A Dividend income from unlisted investments 11 3
P 5 W e 58 Net exchange gain 38 10
Hit Others 1 82
63 2,247
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5 REBWAFHE

5 NET INTEREST INCOME

BB EITHE in HK$ Million 2013 2012
FEWA Interest income on
HRITER Bank deposits 967 703
FEMFREERRE Unlisted held-to-maturity investments 11 19
978 722
2 Interest expenses on
ARAFRNEERZRITERR Bank loans and other borrowings repayable
Hipfg & within 5 years 750 489
ARAFRERZRITERR Bank loans and other borrowings repayable
HibfgE over 5 years 430 292
1,180 781
MmEREER Finance lease charges - 3
HAEERA Other borrowing costs 85 67
BB R ANERE Total borrowing costs 1,265 851
B BERAERME (FiEE) Less: Borrowing costs capitalized (Note) (716) (393)
BB ER Finance costs 549 458
BN F5E Net interest income 429 264

B aE -

BRPMEZEERACEEFAIZ= (ZF—Z

FADZ_HNRN) ZFHRERE -

6 BRBLADER

Note:

annum for properties under development.

6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

The borrowing costs have been capitalized at an average rate of 3.0% (2012: 2.6%) per

S EETATE in HK$ Million 2013 2012
BTN EHIBR T 5518 Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:
BHEMEKA Cost of properties sold 794 355
BTIRA - BiEESREER Staff costs, including employee share-based
—EBARTHEET (ZE——F: payments of $164 million (2012: $233 million) 1,002 935
—E=F=88n1)
ne Depreciation 40 38
LEHEER Operating lease charges - 20
ZE AN S Auditors’ remuneration
- RS — audit services 11 12
- T M EAtb AR TS — tax and other services 5 5
WEETA : and after crediting:
KEYHEZHBSWALEE Bk Gross rental income from investment properties
BEESHtTHENTREEET less direct outgoings of $1,485 million
(Z2——F : +=ZBALFNEET) (2012: $1,398 million), including contingent
BREIARE=FEZT—EE8T rentals of $301 million (2012: $345 million) 5,731 5,313

(Z2——F: =ZfETHAEET)
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7 EEREREEAEZHME

REMFMNEESEBE=-BBIUIFNTE
TR BERNESSRHUABIEATE
SBYIFATESNFMENRZZE XL
REMERATESOFMNER - EFHOMH
NHERBBALRAESE  ATESEHE
PRI - BEEBARBNRALEFN - ™
SEOIRBITHEBRAEMETE °

7 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of three
Independent Non-Executive Directors. The Committee makes
recommendation to the Board on the Non-Executive Director’'s and
Independent Non-Executive Directors’ remuneration packages and
determines the remuneration package of individual Executive Directors.
The emoluments of directors are determined by the scope of responsibility
and accountability, and performance of individual Executive Directors,
taking into consideration of the Company’s performance and profitability,
market practice and prevailing business conditions, etc.

(a) EEM< (a) Directors’ emoluments
EEMSFEST ¢ Details of directors’ emoluments are summarized below:
LB BB in HK$ Million AE B
e o 2R RIKE
REYIFE= s &2 #ER
Salaries, Group’s
allowances BIEIELL  contributions
#%&  and benefits  Discretionary  to retirement
i Name Fees in kind bonuses scheme 2013 2012
HITES Executive Directors
FREISR Ronnie C. Chan 1.8 235 8.0 2.4 35.7 334
PeR /i 1ok Philip N.L. Chen 1.3 22.1 8.0 1.1 32.5 30.7
CEAS] H.C. Ho 1.3 4.5 3.7 03 9.8 8.7
FHITES Non-Executive Director
PREETR Gerald L. Chan 0.7 = = = 0.7 0.3
BUFHITES Independent Non-Executive Directors
B B S.S. Yin 1.3 = - 1.3 0.5
FR&4MG Laura L.Y. Chen 1.8 = = = 1.8 0.8
8% 85 H.K. Cheng 1.9 - - - 1.9 0.9
57 Simon S.0. Ip 0.9 - - - 0.9 0.4
AIESE Ex-Director
fSElEp e William P.Y. Ko
(R=ZT—=4F (Resigned on
+=—A+=—B#&1fF) December 12, 2012) = - = - 14.3
—E-=F 2013 11.0 50.1 19.7 3.8 84.6 90.0
—E——F 2012 5.1 57.0 23.5 4.4 90.0

BRIAEMEHN  SHBERER T ——F
T-A=+—"HALFEERNTETXE
RERMEERAREERRERE <FHE o

In addition to the above emoluments, Mr. William P.Y. Ko received
$0.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 for his service as
employee of Hang Lung Properties Limited (“HLP").

166 fErE£EAEE AT HANG LUNG GROUP LIMITED 2013 4% ANNUAL REPORT
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(b) BREFALZME
EhE&emHALH = (ZF——F:
=) RARREERE (ZF—_F:
—) ARBZAESE - BEZEBM
(ZT——%F: —fu) AL ZBEewT :

7

(b)

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Individuals with highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three (2012: three)

are existing directors of the Company, nil (2012: one) is ex-director

of the Company and the emoluments in respect of the remaining two

(2012: one) individuals are as follows:

NBEBEITHE in HK$ Million 2013 2012
we Fees - 0.2
e  REREYAR Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 9.1 6.2
BIEAEAL Discretionary bonuses 2.0 _
AREBEIERESETEIZ M Group’s contributions to retirement scheme 0.8 0.6

11.9 7.0

AER (ZF——F: —f1) ALZBE

The emoluments of the above two (2012: one) individuals are within

NF AT &6 - the following bands:
AE
Number of individuals

2013 2012
$4,000,001 — $4,500,000 1 -
$7,000,001 - $7,500,000 - 1
$7,500,001 - $8,000,000 1 -
2 1

(c)

(d)

BRIALEBEIN  BETEFREARRA]
N (B B B0 B ) BAAE AT 81 R T X
D EIME - ARBIREEMER D Z K
0 BARE SIS M 5228 (b) #FR ©

BHEZZT—=k=F——-—F+=H
=t+T—HBLEFE SiEmELAEER
BBRITHA B NRIBIEABEBMEE
SRBREMBEREE -

(c)

(d)

In addition to the above emoluments, certain directors of the
Company were granted share options under the share option
schemes of the Company and of HLP. Details of which are
disclosed in note 28(b).

During the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, there
were no amounts paid to directors and senior executives above
for compensation of loss of office and inducement for joining the
Group.
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8 HmEWHEKRAZBIA

(@) HEWERAZHIEAR

8 TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents:

BB BT E in HK$ Million 2013 2012
ARERIE Current tax

BEBNEH Hong Kong Profits Tax 582 448
NFFEREZ ZIR Over-provision in prior years (13) (14)
569 434
AR AT S HR China Income Tax 601 608
1,170 1,042

IRAETIR Deferred tax
KBEMHEZ N EE Change in fair value of investment properties 248 236
E)RE BRI EZ%  Other origination and reversal of temporary differences 149 101
&&t (FfaE21(b) Total (Note 21(b)) 397 337
THIEY M 4R5T Total income tax expense 1,567 1,379

ERNESHREBENRFEANZIGEE
REEANESZ TSR (ZF——F:
BOZTAER)AE - PRAMEHEER
FRGCEMSHRIEE P Z-tTRH (ZT—=
FBOZZTH) stERFRABRAER
REAREFE - BB RN PE A
OB ECEERA—TSENF—F—
HRELEZABAMEEZKREHERED
2 ABRTEIRFTEH -

(b) BE—Z—=F+-_A=+—HLHF
EzRhEECEMBELE TR
Erx (T ——F:HEXHE_-_TF
“HEL) BRFAREAELER
FA o

Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2012:
16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year. China Income
Tax mainly represents China Corporate Income Tax calculated at 25%
(2012: 25%) and China withholding income tax at the applicable
rates. A withholding tax of 5% is levied on the Hong Kong companies
in respect of dividend distributions arising from profits of foreign
investment enterprises in mainland China earned after January 1, 2008.

(b) Share of joint ventures’ tax credit for the year ended December
31, 2013 of $17 million (2012: charge of $23 million) is included
in the share of profits of joint ventures.
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8 HmEWBRAZBE @)

(c) MiIASZ I R B A A E

8 TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME

STATEMENT (continued)
BEH  (©

Reconciliation between actual tax expense and profit before

)] taxation at applicable tax rates:

ABEEBITAE in HK$ Million 2013 2012
BREL AT R A Profit before taxation 10,128 11,309
BGETADEAMABEBR R E 2518 Tax on profit before taxation at applicable rates 1,994 2,181
JEFEFRRRUMA Z FRIBR 2 Tax effect of non-taxable income (490) (822)
RS R 2 FRIETE Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 114 75
EE A 2 B EE R A A Tax effect of tax losses utilized and other deductible

AIHRE R EE R 2 FIEE temporary differences (127) (118)
RERZBBER 2 RIBRF 2 Tax effect of unrecognized tax losses 74 66
Hity Others 15 11
DEFEEREZR Over-provision in prior years (13) (14)
ERBIES H Actual tax expense 1,567 1,379

(d) R EEHME2EKETARNER

HEBIHE -
9 MKEREGHAR
B 5 1 0

Mt+AaE—-—T=a8T (=
+—EBZE—F/HE&8x) -

BARAFBRERAZ 4
= — — E'E :

comprehensive income for the year.

9 NET PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO
SHAREHOLDERS

statements of the Company.

(d) There is no tax effect relating to the components of the other

Net profit attributable to shareholders includes a profit of $1,513 million
(2012: $1,101 million) which has been dealt with in the financial
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10 BRE
@) F=FERE
KN E BT

10 DIVIDENDS
(a) Dividends attributable to the year

in HK$ Million 2013 2012

EEMMEIREDBREESR TN

(ZF—=F: +A)

Interim dividend declared and paid of 19 cents
(2012: 19 cents) per share 256 256

REEE H B ER R AR S8/~ —1l Final dividend of 61 cents (2012: 60 cents) per share

(Z2—=%F : X+

proposed after the end of the reporting period 823 810

1,079 1,066

B/\ A 4+
N 1%1:1
—+ /o
I\‘D?é-_

ZBEfE -

HHBEBMKZ MRS - WEEZR A The dividend proposed after the end of the reporting period has not
H

been recognized as a liability at the end of the reporting period.

(b) BE—_ZFT——F+—-_A=+—HI1tE (b) The final dividend of $810 million (calculated based on 60 cents

EZN\E—TETARBKE BEE per share with issued share capital as at dividend pay-out date)
A& 7S L0 IR & B 2 B 31T AR5t for the year ended December 31, 2012 was approved and paid
EYR=—_E—=F+=-_A=+—HI1t in the year ended December 31, 2013 (2012: $513 million).

FEHAEARRE(ZZE — = F:

AfE—T=E8T) °

11 BREF 11 EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) PREARREERAF JYIRA T84 (@) The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based
sHE on the following data:
NBEEBITAE in HK$ Million 2013 2012
FUTEEREARREERA 2 &5 Earnings for calculation of basic and diluted earnings
GIEY A ar)) per share (net profit attributable to shareholders) 4,557 5,262
RnHEE
Number of shares
LBEBRETE in Million 2013 2012
AT EFIREREF 2 B hnkE Weighted average number of shares used in
FEHg calculating basic earnings per share 1,350 1,349
BEBSER 2 BERD 2 FE — Effect of dilutive potential shares — share options 7 9

A HRE

PR SRR 2R 2 IR 5
Y

Weighted average number of shares used in
calculating diluted earnings per share 1,357 1,358
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11 8RER @) 11 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)
(b) PBEEEEARMF (TEIEEEWE  (b) The underlying net profit attributable to shareholders which

NEEEE - WM HEEEERIE R excluded changes in fair value of investment properties net of
FEVERR AR ) ZETEMT ¢ related deferred tax and non-controlling interests, is calculated
as follows:
B BESTHE in HK$ Million 2013 2012
PR FEAE 4L 7 Net profit attributable to shareholders 4,557 5,262
WA N EES) 252 Effect of changes in fair value of investment properties (2,651) (3,057)
HEEEERE 2 Effect of corresponding deferred tax 248 236
BETENKEMEZ Effect of change in fair value of investment properties of
NHEEH & joint ventures (243) (145)
(2,646) (2,966)
VIR Non-controlling interests 1,160 1,268
(1,486) (1,698)
% B e { EE A 4 A Underlying net profit attributable to shareholders 3,071 3,564

BB R (R BE AR AR T E 7 ER AT A ¢ The earnings per share based on underlying net profit attributable to
shareholders are:

2013 2012
HAR Basic $2.27 $2.64
by | Diluted $2.26 $2.62

171



B 75 R R P RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

12 EEEE — &8

12 FIXED ASSETS - GROUP

BRERPREME
AW Investment
Investment  properties under Hh BF
B RE T E in HK$ Million properties development Others Total
BRAESEE - Cost or valuation:
MN-—_E——F—H—H At January 1, 2012 101,833 23,613 575 126,021
bE 3 F5 3K Exchange adjustment 34 (37) (1) (4)
NE Additions 409 5614 92 6,115
He Disposals (3,054) = (19) (3,073)
AN EE Increase in fair value 3,057 - - 3,057
A /(EE) Transfer 4,708 (4,708) - -
BN BEFHECZEE Reclassification to assets
held for sale (885) = (82) (967)
R-ZE——F+-_H=+—H At December 31, 2012 and
;rE=_ZT—=F—H—H January 1, 2013 106,102 24,482 565 131,149
DEE 5, 58 X Exchange adjustment 1,602 767 6 2,375
NE Additions 752 9,951 77 10,780
HeE Disposals (11) = (4) (15)
ANFEZ DN Increase in fair value 2,651 - - 2,651
wE A /() Transfer 4,722 (4,722) = =
R-EBE—=%+=-A=+—H At December 31, 2013 115,818 30,478 644 146,940
REHTE ¢ Accumulated depreciation:
R-—ZE——F—H—H At January 1, 2012 = = 349 349
PE i 35k Exchange adjustment - - (1) (1)
REEHE Charge for the year = = 38 38
A & ] Written back on disposals = = (7) (7)
BN ERHEZEE Reclassification to assets
held for sale (69) (69)
MRZE——F+-_H=+—H At December 31, 2012 and
r—ZT—=%—H—H January 1, 2013 = = 310 310
BEE 5, A Exchange adjustment - - 2 2
NEEHE Charge for the year - - 40 40
Ffask==24E) Written back on disposals - - (3) (3)
R-B—=F+=-—B=+—H At December 31, 2013 - - 349 349
BRTESHA : Net book value:
N-—EBE—=F+-A=+—H At December 31, 2013 115,818 30,478 295 146,591
MN_E——F+-_A=+—8H At December 31, 2012 106,102 24,482 255 130,839
EEEEZKAED Cost or valuation of the fixed assets
HEDT : is made up as follows:
—ZE—-=%+-H=+—H December 31, 2013
fH1E Valuation 115,818 30,478 - 146,296
KB Cost - - 644 644
115,818 30,478 644 146,940
—E——H+=—HA=+—H December 31, 2012
HE Valuation 106,102 24,482 - 130,584
XAME Cost - - 565 565
106,102 24,482 565 131,149
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12 EEEE — &8 &)

(a) MELTFEFTE

(i) R-FEER
TREINAEEL TN EERIZAY
B EMREMERERFPREYWENE
& WAREHKFRS 13 A EZ 25T T
ATHAFEBRSEA=ARA - AT
BEZRBHETI2EGER EZFRBANE A
TEOTEBREREEM - ST :

- F—RHE: EERAE-—RBATE
EMQTE BIRFERKBHEREE
SR ERNEEM S AL HERE

- FRMEE: ERF-_RBATEE
MR E BABEENBATE  EX
ERES —AWNER . BB ABREX
TABENBATE - TABERHAT
EREMSBENBATE

- BEREE: FREATTRRBAT
EHBOATE

12 FIXED ASSETS — GROUP (Continued)
(a) Fair value measurement of properties
(i)  Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties and investment properties under development measured
at the end of the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorized
into a three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 “Fair
value measurement”. The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified and determined with reference to the observability and
significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique is as follows:

— Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs i.e.
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

— Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs i.e.
observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available

— Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs

R-B—=F+_A=+—HZRAFEFE

Fair Value measurement as December 31, 2013

E— F-W® B
B RETE in HK$ Million Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
KB Investment properties - 115,818 -
BRERPIREYE Investment properties under development - - 30,478

BAKEIZBR  EAFEBRAZELER
BT OARERR - FR - (REED+EE=-T
“HETHNEREYS - BEHBYRSNAE
FHERTRENZERZREMEIN
W B Aty N FAE JE R 5 -

AEBEZRENERBERTPEREVEER
R -=Ft+ - A=t—HHEFEF-KFH
HETHEREXRERARARZEMER
RIE (EXRE) REBELERMEESE
ETHE EEEERGEERKEEES
RNEPHRFEHRE R R S RET

A o

The Group's policy is to recognize transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy at the time in which they occur. During the year, except for the
transfer from investment properties under development to investment
properties of $4,722 million upon opening of Center 66 mall, there were
no transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy.

The investment properties and investment properties under
development of the Group were revalued as at December 31, 2013
by Mr. Charles C.K. Chan, Registered Professional Surveyor (General
Practice), of Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited, on a
market value basis. Management has discussion with the surveyors on
the valuation assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is
performed at each interim and annual reporting date.
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12 BEEE — &8 &)

(a) MELATETE (B

(i) FE=RAFETTEERZIGELE
R@ATE

"EMFEZ AFAETIRBAE AR E M

B W2ERBFsMBHEERERNELEE

ZEMIHEIE o

(iii) FE=RRA-FETTEHEL
MNRABEAENERPREDE 2 A FE
DIRER LR AE  A2EMH LA
B2y idEBRUVREREZAF
B8 RWGER - BRI TER :

- HFMH2EEFRAZFERAREZL
MERILAEK &

- BRI MS2EERFERERZVES
BT BRI o

B = 2 T AT B 2 BN BB R B AR ) %

RAKREMERZAFE-
AEEFERZEZNE=RTAEREA
TTRHINWT

AEBEZHRBDREYEBAERBRAN
FZFTNARBE_B—TRET - EH@EF
PN BN B AR IR E B R R R ISR
MM RE L RERBAER o
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12 FIXED ASSETS — GROUP (Continued)
(a) Fair value measurement of properties (Continued)

(ii) Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair value
measurements

The fair value of investment properties is determined by using income
capitalization approach with reference to current market rents and
capitalization rates using market data.

(iii) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

The fair value of investment properties under development in mainland
China is determined by using direct comparison approach, with
reference to comparable market transactions as available in the market
to derive the fair value of the property assuming it was completed and,
wherever appropriate, deducted the following items:

— Estimated development cost to be expended to complete the
properties that would be incurred by a market participant; and

— Estimated profit margin that a market participant would require to
hold and develop the property to completion.

The higher the estimated development cost or profit margin, the lower
the fair value of investment properties under construction.

The main Level 3 unobservable inputs used by the Group are as
follows:

The total estimated development costs of the Group’s investment
properties under development ranged from $3.9 billion to $21.4 billion.
The estimates are largely consistent with the budgets developed
internally by the Group based on management experience and
knowledge of market conditions.
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12 EEEE — &8 @) 12 FIXED ASSETS — GROUP (Continued)
(a) MELATETE (B (a) Fair value measurement of properties (Continued)
(iii) B=RAFEGTEHNEL (&) (iii)  Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (Continued)

FRNZESE—H AT E 2L EES  The movements during the year in the balances of these Level 3 fair

SR value measurements are as follows:

BRAREYE —

AR B A

Investment properties under

A EETETE in HK$ Million development — Mainland China
R-ZZE—=%F—H—H At January 1, 2013 24,482
M H AR Exchange adjustment 767
NE Additions 9,951
NFAEE N Increase in fair value -
EHEE R Transfer to Level 2 (4,722)
R-E—=%+=-H=+—H At December 31, 2013 30,478
Bt AlBme 2 F W iR%E Total gains for the year included in profit or loss -

IEYERERPKEYSE 2 ATEFHE  Fair value adjustments of investment properties and investment
RIEAWEERRUATIEEYE Y AFEE  properties under development is recognized in “Increase in fair value of

] —IEFER -

investment properties” in the consolidated income statement.

(b) MEZEREFEINWOT : (b) An analysis of net book value of properties is as follows:
BRPIEEYE
LAY Investment properties

Investment properties under development
LB EETHE in HK$ Million 2013 2012 2013 2012
HE R Long leases in Hong Kong 35,618 34,440 - _
EBEBIMEHAMI  Long leases outside Hong Kong 1,330 1,282 835 797
BHE A B 32 Medium term leases in Hong Kong 21,070 20,464 - =
EBBINR I Medium term leases outside Hong Kong 57,800 49916 29,643 23,685
115,818 106,102 30,478 24,482
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12 EEEE — &8 %)

12 FIXED ASSETS — GROUP (Continued)

(c) "&=EHMETEEEMFMEEIE () The net book value of other fixed assets of the Group included
MAEBN RSB ZEE s TR E long leases of $9 million (2012: $9 million) in respect of land and
SEYhagar (ZE—=—F: LA& building held in Hong Kong, medium term leases of $8 million
T0) AR BEBEINAR M RZER 2 (2012: $8 million) and long leases of $48 million (2012: $35
THREZEYNBEET(ZT—= million) in respect of land and buildings held outside Hong Kong
F: N \BEBL) MARBEEFER 2 respectively.

THwEkEEYOFNANEBEL(ZF

—ZF:=FTHASL) °

MEREWZBIRREMEZHEW Property leasing revenue includes gross rental income from
ANzt +—E—Faax (== investment properties of $7,216 million (2012: $6,711 million).
—ZF: XTEE-—F—8B8T)

(d) AEFERELEBAESHAEYE -2 (d) The Group leases out its properties under operating leases.
EHH—RYTEBA_ZRHF Hm Leases typically run for an initial period of two to five years, with
N ERGRIBEY  EREEFHEM some having the option to renew, at which time all terms are
ElEZ - RHBEY B E2HES renegotiated. Long term leases contain rent review or adjustment
SN ARES IR MAERETE clauses and the Group has a regular proportion of its leases up
HE—FEHHNELOEmERD - &F for renewal each year. Certain leases include contingent rentals
HAOBENRAL  H2BREPL 2 calculated with reference to the revenue of tenants.

AMERFE °
NEER AEBRIKEMERER At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s total future
RIREYZE  BETIREZEER minimum lease income under non-cancellable operating leases
ExVEWZ ARBSEZENT : in respect of investment properties were as follows:
B EBITAE in HK$ Million 2013 2012
—FR Within 1 year 6,006 5,294
—FREAFA After 1 year but within 5 years 8,174 7,826
hFE After 5 years 1,992 2,217
16,172 15,337
176 iEg&£m5E A7 HANG LUNG GROUP LIMITED 2013 %%k ANNUAL REPORT



13 B AR 13 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES
NS
Company
BB BEEBITHE in HK$ Million 2013 2012
JE LR - BANE Unlisted shares, at cost 181 181
I EENGIE R Amounts due from subsidiaries 15,369 14,820
15,550 15,001

TE2MB AR ZFABE R ENHIE34S

TREYBREERMEARAR ([1ERZH

|

J(AEBERETEREAIFERER)

MER - TIFHERMER AR 2HE
SHAIZ 2

Details of principal subsidiaries are set out in note 34.

The following table lists out the information relating to Hang Lung
Properties Limited (“HLP”) in which the Group has material non-controlling
interest (“NCI”). The summarized financial information presented below
represents the amounts before any inter-company elimination.

NEEBEBTHE in HK$ Million 2013 2012
NEEE R 2 IEmRER B D NCI percentage at the end of the reporting period 47.5% 49.3%
ERBEE Non-current assets 139,399 124,008
mMENEE Current assets 42,881 43,856
mEEE Current liabilities (8,267) (6,316)
FRBAE Non-current liabilities (42,846) (37,570)
BEFAE Net assets 131,167 123,978
IR FE R BR B Carrying amount of NCI 62,304 61,121
EERE Turnover 9,138 7,372
REE A Profit for the year 7,757 8,920
AEEEHE BT Total comprehensive income for the year 10,433 9,070
DB R JEEAR I S Profit allocated to NCI 3,685 4,398
B IHERERR S Dividend paid to NCI 1,623 1,169
FIRER Net cash flow:
RELKE S generated from operating activities 5,156 5,033
BRI EES used in investing activities (896) (2,524)
REME S generated from financing activities 559 5,863
(a) EUMBARZBEAEER 28 % (@) Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free

(b)

BEEERY  MARHZSZHEAR
AR+ —BAARTERE - #IIEE
MEEE °

ENHBARREREER 8 &
BEEERD  MARHZSZHEAR
AR+ —EARTEEE - #INMEE
mEBAE-

with no fixed terms of repayment and classified as non-current
assets as they are not expected to be recoverable within the next
twelve months.

(b) Amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free with
no fixed terms of repayment and classified as non-current
liabilities as they are not expected to be repaid within the next
twelve months.
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14 &L ¥RER

14 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES

£E NGl
Group Company
BB BEEBTHE in HK$ Million 2013 2012 2013 2012
IE ETRD - BKAE Unlisted shares, at cost - - 5 5
[EMREEEE Share of net assets 2,152 1,740 - _
2,152 1,740 5
JEUN A & B EEFIE Amounts due from joint ventures 846 514 2
FERtE EEFIE Amounts due to joint ventures (7) (7) (7) (7)
2,991 2,247 - _

A2 EEFRAREEM - UHHH
i B REEEERY - M REBHZEFR
EAGRAK T EARERE - BIIMEE
mEAE -

TZALRZHBAERINMHEIS - K
SERNERLTEANSELE 2 RN
BERMEBEMBEEMBRNT

Amounts due to joint ventures are unsecured, interest-bearing at market
rate with no fixed terms of repayment and classified as non-current
liabilities as it is not expected to be repayable within the next twelve
months.

Details of principal joint ventures are set out in note 35. The aggregate
financial information related to the Group’s share of joint ventures that
are not individually material are as follows:

BB EETAE in HK$ Million 2013 2012
FEMEN B EE Non-current assets 3,024 2,317
MENEEE Current assets 267 172
ERHBEE Non-current liabilities (1,067) (670)
mEaE Current liabilities (72) (79)
BEFE Net assets 2,152 1,740
BB ST E in HK$ Million 2013 2012
= Turnover 275 236
REE G N2 mWzE42%8  Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 431 276
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15 HthEE

15 OTHER ASSETS

£E
Group
BB R EITETE in HK$ Million 2013 2012
LETRE - RME Listed investments at market value
- B — Hong Kong 70 67
— BBIRIN — Outside Hong Kong 10 _
80 67
BB LEMHEREER Unlisted held-to-maturity investments
#®%E& (Mt () in Hong Kong (Note (a)) - 450
BRTFIELHIRENT] Advances to unlisted investee companies
SR less provision 20 9
mEE (M (b)) Intangible assets (Note (b)) 1,182 1,182
1,282 1,710
B BIHAE AR —E2EE  Less: Unlisted held-to-maturity investments
JEETRERIEA in Hong Kong with maturity
& (KizE(a) less than one year (Note (a)) - (452)
1,282 1,258

GEE

(a) AEEFAFLHESFKE  WRER_T—=%F
T—ARZE—=F+_AFH - KEFRTFZ
BLtE(CT——F: —HABEE_HAE) 2E

Notes:

B EGE - BEERFFIRE ° upon maturity.
(b) B EERAREAN -_ZZTNFE+LA—BHZARE (b) Intangible assets represent goodwill arising from the Group’s additions in equity

MEBAREEBEZ RAERMELZHE - N
FH - AREE DB RE R W E S R ERRE

its recoverable amount and no impairment was recorded.

(@) The Group held investments in unlisted bonds with maturity in November 2013 and
December 2013. The effective yield of the bonds was 2.7% (2012: 1.6% to 2.9%)
per annum, payable quarterly or semi-annually. All unlisted bonds were redeemed

interests in its subsidiary, HLP, for transactions before July 1, 2009. At the end of the
reporting period, an impairment test was performed by comparing the goodwill with
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16 BERBITER 16 CASH AND DEPOSITS WITH BANKS
£E
Group
BB R EITETE in HK$ Million 2013 2012
TEHATF IR Time deposits 36,890 37,474
RITEN Cash at banks 2,814 2,709
SEEBTEIRRERIRS R Cash and deposits with banks in the consolidated
IRITTER statement of financial position 39,704 40,183
B =18 B &R HIR Less: Bank deposits with maturity greater than three months (595) (8,111)
RITIFX
FEBSMERMIAE K Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated
REEEY cash flow statement 39,109 32,072

REER  A"EEZRS RIETHEZILTFE  Atthe end of the reporting period, the Group’s cash and deposits with

HFRGE_ERHE (ZZF——4F : —2Zh—  banks were interest-bearing at an average rate of 2.5% (2012: 2.2%)
B)Z 8 - EEEEES M per annum with currencies denominated in:
£H
Group
BB EITAHE in HK$ Million 2013 2012
SR Hong Kong Dollars equivalent of:
ARKEE Renminbi 37,100 36,913
ot Hong Kong Dollars 2,287 2,223
ETT United States Dollars 317 1,047
39,704 40,183

KEFZEAEARBERITEIABMENRA  The Group holds Renminbi bank deposits to meet its ongoing payment
NitrERIER BFENNREE obligations in relation to its development projects in mainland China.

HeRBRTTEANBRTEZRREMMESE  After deducting cash and deposits from bank loans and other
% NEBRGSEHZEREFE (ZE—=  borrowings, the net debt (2012: net cash) position of the Group at the

FFRE) T end of the reporting period was as follows:
£E
Group
B BESTE in HK$ Million 2013 2012
RITEFREEMEE (HizE19) Bank loans and other borrowings (Note 19) 45,024 37,645
B e RIFR Less: Cash and deposits (39,704) (40,183)
SFEE/(RE) Net Debt/(Cash) 5,320 (2,538)
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17 EWERR R H WK 17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(a) BEitAEWEEZ N EfpEl = 2 EWEE (@) Included in trade and other receivables are trade receivables

K (CABIERE AER) BRE DT ¢ (based on the due date) with the following terms:
5=
Group
NBEBEITHE in HK$ Million 2013 2012
HEA R —EA A Current and within 1 month 1,834 47
—Z==1A 1 — 3 months 14
=@EAUE Over 3 months 9 4
1,857 55

RERBEHEHBUWNEKN - KEB 215 The balance of bad and doubtful debts is insignificant. The details on

BURFFIBHE AR M EE30(c) ° the Group’s credit policy are set out in note 30(c).

(b) AEBEBHEMmEWKRZBFE=E—F (b) Included in other receivables of the Group is deposit of land
NEBT(ZE——F: =ZEBEN\A acquisition in mainland China of $318 million (2012: $308
B RPBERMEE L 2 M - million).

18 FEW* 18 PROPERTIES FOR SALE

&5
Group
BB ST E in HK$ Million 2013 2012
FERREBDYE — RHMZ  Properties under development for sale — long leases
- B — Hong Kong 1,662 1,296
FEDERYE — R HIME  Completed properties for sale — medium term leases
- &% — Hong Kong 4,051 4,839
— BB — Outside Hong Kong 4 4
4,055 4,843
5,717 6,139
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19 RITERRHMEE 19 BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS
NEER - EEFRTERREMES 2 Atthe end of the reporting period, bank loans and other borrowings
BRHEAWNE ¢ were unsecured and repayable as follows:
9L
Group
B EBITAE in HK$ Million 2013 2012
RITER (FI3E (@) Bank loans (Note (a))
—F N BNER Within 1 year or on demand 1,657 1,113
—FREZFR After 1 year but within 2 years 16,663 1,378
MEERERFRN After 2 years but within 5 years 15,186 26,915
AFRE Over 5 years 4,519 2,724
38,025 32,130
HMEE (5E (b)) Other borrowings (Note (b))
MERERFEA After 2 years but within 5 years 375 =
AERE Over 5 years 6,915 5,799
7,290 5,799
45,315 37,929
B REESE 2 BB A Less: unamortized front end fees (291) (284)
RITERREMEEHALEE Total bank loans and other borrowings 45,024 37,645
HARENBET Amount due within 1 year included under current liabilities (1,657) (1,113)
—FRE|HRFIE
43,367 36,532
BoaE - Notes:
(@) FA MARTERHREZNEZELZNE (a) All bank loans are interest-bearing at rates ranging from 0.8% to 7.9% (2012: 0.6%
(ZZ—=F : T EE/\BRE) FHEFE - to 8.5%) per annum during the year.
REB L EFREZINPEZLRE - ZZHER Certain of the Group'’s borrowings are attached with financial covenants which require
HERAREBNEMEEZEEBREAEFETS that at any time, the Group’s consolidated tangible net worth is not less than and the
BERREELMGEEREERFEZLZETEERN ratio of borrowings to consolidated tangible net worth is not more than certain required
HEKFE - FR REBE TR ETZEHLYIH levels. During the year, all these covenants have been complied with by the Group.
K o
R-E—=F+_A=+—H A&EEHH At December 31, 2013, the Group had $8,781 million (2012: $8,597 million)
NtT+EEBNTFT—EBEBT (ZE——F: \+RHE committed undrawn banking facilities.

NFEEET) RBANRITEHEE -
(b) ERMEZ —HE2EHENKB AR R —EEE (b) A wholly-owned subsidiary of HLP has a US$3 billion (2012: US$3 billion) Medium

=HEET (ZE—=—F: =+{EER) 2P HBHE Term Note Program (the “Program”). At the end of the reporting period, the bonds
BetEl ([51281)) - REER X REBEEHEEIT have been issued with coupon rates ranged from 2.95% to 4.75% (2012: 3.55% to
BTEE  ERFEEA—HHAEENE+RHE 4.75%) per annum under the Program.

(ZZ——F : ZZAAEENE+RE) -
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20 ENRFRH A AR 20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

£E

Group
LB BEETHE in HK$ Million 2013 2012
JERT RN EEHE A (MiEE(a)) Creditors and accrued expenses (Note (a)) 4,347 3,547
BlEE (BIFE (b)) Deposits received (Note (b)) 1,903 1,693
6,250 5,240

BT Notes:

(a) ENRREFEBRARERIAR—FATEENZ (a) Creditors and accrued expenses include retention money payable of $508 million
REBEFRERBEZTNBEL(ZT —Z4F: (2012: $335 million) which is not expected to be settled within one year.
—R=FHRE&T) -

(b) EIZE T+ —EBATHEBL(ZE—ZF: (b) Deposits received of $1,155 million (2012: $992 million) are not expected to be settled
NEALTFZEET) BHER—FATEENN - within one year.

Dt AEMEZREMBENI ZEMBEZ  Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors with the

BRI - following aging analysis:
£E
Group
LB BEE T in HK$ Million 2013 2012
—{E& A N EIEE Due within 1 month 2,693 2,509
=18 A& E Due after 3 months 548 367
3,241 2,876

21 RiFEaMBRRREZHIE 21 TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) FFHIE (a) Current taxation

£

Group
LB E ST in HK$ Million 2013 2012
BT BB Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax 366 207
AR TS A A Provision for China Income Tax 251 234
DREEE ZEMTBFER  Hong Kong Profits Tax payable relating to prior years 29 5
646 446
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21 REEHBERREKREZHIE @)

21 TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

(b) EFEHIE (b) Deferred taxation
£H
Group
NEEBEBITHE in HK$ Million 2013 2012
FEFRIARE Deferred tax liabilities 10,637 9,944
BIETIR B E Deferred tax assets (19) (19)
RERIEB BEFE Net deferred tax liabilities 10,618 9.925

RIEEHBRAR LR ZELEREA

The components of deferred tax liabilities/(assets) recognized in the

&/(BE) WARLRERNZ BEIT - consolidated statement of financial position and the movements during

the year are as follows:

BB BETTE in HK$ Million Rk
LRI E RABEE
Depreciation BEEZ
allowances in 18RS 25
excess of LA Future
related Revaluation benefit of Hitb 4B
RERIEEER Deferred tax arising from: depreciation  of properties tax losses Others Total
R-E——H%—HF—H At January 1, 2012 1,365 8,173 (45) 99 9,592
TABE 5 5 N F0BR Charged to exchange reserve - (2) - - (2)
BRI /(BEA) Charged/(Credited) to profit
(Fft5¥8(a)) or loss (Note 8(a)) 76 236 30 (5) 337
EX vy By Reclassification to assets/
Hj%ZQE/ Bff liabilities held for sale 8) - 6 - )
N-ZE——F+=-8 At December 31, 2012 and
=—t+—BR=-_T—=4F January 1, 2013 1,433 8,407 (9) 94 9,925
—H—H
TARE 3 E BB A Credited to exchange reserve 34 263 = (1) 296
RIEE AR Charged to profit or loss
(Hf5E8(a)) (Note 8(a)) 98 248 6 45 397
R-EBE—=F At December 31, 2013 1,565 8,918 3) 138 10,618
+=-—HA=+—H

[t EBZBEREMAIBERECEETER
M2 RABEEAMEER Z HERERIARE -
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Included in “Others” is mainly deferred tax liabilities recognized in
respect of undistributed profits of foreign investment enterprises in

mainland China.
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21 REEHBERREKREZHIE @)

(c) RERZELEREEE
REBEARE THB AR S EHHE LR
W=+ N \EZFTREELT(ZZE—Z=F:
—THEZ—BET) UBEBMEENE
EREEEFHER  AAR-ZE—=F
+ZA=+—H TREEHEEHEEEN
ARERMENDIFE - LEBBEL
BT TS B R IR B T B A AR 3 R g by -
i B A R B RS B 1B B AB R B 5t
FEBRAFIREF -

21 TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognized

The Group has not recognized deferred tax assets in respect of tax
losses of $3,825 million (2012: $3,501 million) sustained in the
operations of certain subsidiaries as the availability of future taxable
profits against which the assets can be utilized is not probable at
December 31, 2013. The tax losses arising from Hong Kong operations
do not expire under current tax legislation. The tax losses arising from
the operations in mainland China expire five years after the relevant
accounting year end date.

22 A 22 SHARE CAPITAL
2013 2012
RHEE BAESE f&inERE &N
Number of Amount of Number of Amount of
shares share capital shares share capital
(BBR) (BB (B&K) (B&7T)
(Million) ($Million) (Million) ($Million)
SETE Authorized
SREE—TT Shares of $1 each 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000
EEITREE Issued and fully paid
Rn—H—H At January 1 1,350 1,350 1,348 1,348
R 10 BRfERT &I Shares issued under share
BT 2R option scheme - _ 2 2
Wt+=—B=+—H At December 31 1,350 1,350 1,350 1,350
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23 f##E&

23 RESERVES

(a) &H (@) The Group
HibfAE
Other reserves
EERH
BR  KRESH ERE HithE
&1 FEO i Employee LA AN RE
HSE Capital Investment MERfE#  share-based S Other A ARk
Share redemption revaluation Exchange compensation  General capital #8%8  Retained Total
B RETAE in HK$ Million premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve Total profits  reserves
N-IE——F At January 1, 2012 2,435 26 (2) 3,503 294 275 1,649 8,180 50,982 59,162
—H—H
KEEGF Profit for the year - - - - - = = - 5262 5,262
FTIREAFME  Increase in fair value
-yl of listed investments - - 11 _ _ _ _ 11 _ 11
N B Exchange difference
NAEIBRIEEA arising from translation
ZIERER of overseas subsidiaries - - - 98 - - - 98 - 98
ANEFELEIZE  Total comprehensive
potc) income for the year - - 11 98 - - - 109 5262 5371
EEERERESE  Final dividends in
respect of previous
financial year - - - - - - - - (513)  (513)
AREEZHRHPESE  Interim dividends in
respect of current
financial year - - - - - - - - (256)  (256)
FITRAD Issue of shares 15 = = - - . - 15 _ 15
EEREER Employee share-based
payments 4 - - = (8) = = (4) 113 109
EAEEE—R  Change in non-controlling
HEARZ interests arising from
A& AEE AN increase of the Group’s
E IR E shareholding in a
=2 ) subsidiary - - - - - - (14) (14) - (14)
MN-TE——4F At December 31, 2012
+=-A=+—H and January 1, 2013 2,454 26 9 3,601 286 275 1,635 8,286 55,588 63,874
k=Z—=%
—H—H
NEEHF Profit for the year - - - - - - - — 4557 4557
FTIREAFE  Increase in fair value of
Z¥E 00 listed investments = _ 13 _ _ _ _ 13 _ 3
HEGINHT R Exchange difference
ARIRIBEA arising from translation
ZERER of overseas subsidiaries - - - 1,719 - - - 1,719 - 1,719
AEEEHE Total comprehensive
Was4aEg income for the year - - 13 1,719 - - - 1,732 4,557 6,289
FFERMRE  Final dividends in
respect of previous
financial year - - - - - - - - (810)  (810)
AREEZHRHALE  Interim dividends in
respect of current
financial year - - - - - - - - (256)  (256)
BT Issue of shares 2 = - - - - _ 2 _ 2
EEREER Employee share-based
payments 1 - - - 66 - - 67 22 89
HAAELEBEAE—FR  Change in non-controlling
WEBA R Z interests arising from
RELE i 2E A increase of the Group’s
IR AR shareholding in a
subsidiary - - - = = - 34 34 - 34
R-TB—=F At December 31, 2013 2,457 26 22 5,320 352 275 1,669 10,121 59,101 69,222
+=A=+-—H
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23 f#E @)

23 RESERVES (continued)

(b) AF (b) The Company
HihfEE
Other reserves
BB
AR fEREE
fxtn  FEREE Employee il RE
1B Capital ~ share-based  f###H% wmAl KA
Share redemption compensation  General #8%8  Retained Total
SR E T E in HK$ Million premium reserve reserve  reserve Total profits  reserves
R-_E——F—H—H At January 1, 2012 2,435 26 52 862 3,375 9,549 12,924
RNEFEmA R 2 E W Profit and total comprehensive
ia=g income for the year - - — - - 1,101 1,101
LFEERARKRE Final dividends in respect of
previous financial year - - - - - (513) (513)
REZHHRKRE Interim dividends in respect of
current financial year - - - - - (256)  (256)
BIThRD Issue of shares 15 = - - 15 _ 15
EEREER Employee share-based
payments 4 = 4) — _ _ _
N-E— :E At December 31, 2012 and
+=—A= January 1, 2013 2,454 26 48 862 3,390 9,881 13,271
—E—=F— ﬂ =]
RNEF A R 2 E Profit and total comprehensive
1ERE income for the year = - - - - 1513 1513
LFEERARKRE Final dividends in respect of
previous financial year - - - - - (810)  (810)
REEFHRE Interim dividends in respect of
current financial year - - - - - (256)  (256)
AT Issue of shares 2 = = - 2 - 2
EEREER Employee share-based
payments 1 - (1) = - _ _
N-EE—=% At December 31, 2013 2,457 26 47 862 3,392 10,328 13,720
+=A=+—H
rEERZTE—=F+=H :+— =] E’\M% The retained profits for the Group at December 31, 2013 included

BafepE _EBATHES T (=

F:—RBNA\TA<EBEET) E’\J#EV%‘EW%’A subsidiaries in mainland China.

CIP&- YN

$264 million (2012: $186 million) in respect of statutory reserves of the

187



B 75 R R P RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

23 f#E @)

(b) AF ()

BB H B R A A E R~ iR RIZ
BB (RAERD) EO+NZBEREN+ A
FREE  c REBHEBEOENEERR
HA N EES AT EY RS %EE
SARIEF SE1()(2) 2 & 5B R IR o (B 3
BEERESINHBARNSBREEEY
PE 248 o MM L(v) Bt 0 B E RO
(8 548 B0 38 B 1% B 14 R I8 7T 15 2 IR 1D
MY DATE - EREESRERDEF -
BAI#SIE o 8 REEE IR IR
EREBA—REANBRA R 5
WITEM K ARY A EE Y EEFE
ZEE o

RZE—=F+=-_A=+—H8 ' ARQF
AES>ETRRAR2EHRESBBLE—7B
—+—EBATET(ZE—=—F: —FEZ
tEENF=E&T) -

BEAXEH
AEENEAERRRZAZBERRE
REBREFEZE  URRRIEHERK
REMBOHERENE  BARASERAE
BSRE -

AEERBEBEERRITREEELEEANE
B NERREBEKFAIEHRNRER
RO EEFEE AR EROES MREZ
MG TE YRBRAKEZEBEGR
RBRBECEHHENGEERAE -

AEEEBRFREEL R (FERREL X
KETABRAELR) MRERENTR » AE
BRI ERKAOMEAEREREERE
B FERERTERMEMESHRR
T RIRTTFR - RE S AR RS M IFE

B iR o
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23 RESERVES (continued)
(b) The Company (Continued)

The application of the share premium account and the capital
redemption reserve are governed by Section 48B and Section 49H of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance respectively. The investment
revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative net change on the fair
value of available-for-sale securities held at the end of the reporting
period and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
in note 1(i)(2). The exchange reserve comprises the exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial statements
of overseas subsidiaries. The employee share-based compensation
reserve comprises the fair value of share options granted which are
yet to be exercised, as explained in note 1(v). The general reserve was
derived from retained profits and is distributable. The other capital
reserve represents any difference between the cost of the additional
investment and the carrying amount of the net assets acquired at the
date of exchange when acquiring an additional non-controlling interest
in a existing subsidiary.

The aggregate amount of the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to equity shareholders of the Company at December 31,
2013 was $11,190 million (2012: $10,743 million).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits to other
stakeholders, and to secure access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholders’
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes adjustments to the capital structure in the light of changes in the
Group’s business portfolio and economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure by reviewing its leveraging ratio
(net debt to equity and debt to equity) and cash flow requirements,
taking into account its future financial obligations and commitments.
Net debt represents bank loans and other borrowings less cash and
deposits with banks. Equity comprises shareholders’ equity and
non-controlling interests.
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23 f#E @)
(b) AT &)

23 RESERVES (continued)
(b) The Company (Continued)

N-F—=F+—A=+—H &A&EE> Net debt to equity ratio and debt to equity ratio as at December 31,
HEERELLERGEBRELEERD R A 2013 were 3.9% (2012: net cash position) and 33.0% (2012: 29.0%),
BROZ=—"8Nh (ZFTE——%F : FHEL/KFE) respectively. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject
EESZ=1=(=ZE—=—%F : BH 22—+ toexternally imposed capital requirements.

) o AR B SHEFA B A7) I &&= H H)

BEREANF R AR

24 FERER

24 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

IEEIRES AHEMIRERAER (R+=A Non-controlling interests represent the equity interests and the share
=+—R) FrEHEENNE AR  of profit or loss attributable to other shareholders in respect of the
= N E(E R R sk B8 - JEIE R RS v subsidiaries not wholly-owned by the Group as at December 31. Details

25 REKEXK2RE

of movement of non-controlling interests are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

25 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

NBEBEITAHE in HK$ Million 2013 2012
BR SR A Profit before taxation 10,128 11,309
TR Adjustments for:

HEREMEKRE Gain on disposal of investment properties 9) (2,149)
RITH BULA Bank interest income (967) (703)
JEEmEHERHARREFR S A Interest income from unlisted held-to-maturity investments (11) (19)
JEETIREER ZIRE WA Dividend income from unlisted investments (11) (3)
Hi5E A Finance costs 549 458
e Depreciation 40 38
HEEMETEERSE Loss on disposal of other fixed assets 1 12
WEWEZ ANTEZIEN Increase in fair value of investment properties (2,651) (3,057)
FEIERE RN Share of profits of joint ventures (431) (276)
EEREEH Employee share-based payments 164 233
FEMEZRD Decrease in properties for sale 408 20
JFE UG BR 30 N2 EL b e W 5k 2 3% 40 Increase in trade and other receivables (1,801) (23)
e R BT E R 2100 Increase in creditors and accrued expenses 559 211
2ige 7 a0 Increase in deposits received 179 168
RELEXRB RS Cash generated from operations 6,147 6,219
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26 AEE 26 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
REERZSHABERT ¢ At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities were as follows:
N
Company
LB EETHE in HK$ Million 2013 2012
T B A TS 2 RTT Guarantees given to banks to secure credit facilities
SEMmMRMHE 2 ER drawn by subsidiaries 10,080 7,960

RAmtEGHB AR ZEEREMEETT The Company has not recognized any deferred income for the
FEEIE® 7 ERERTMELEWR A - Bi%  guarantees given in respect of borrowings and other bank facilities for
CEERERBITEEZATFEE AR ST  subsidiaries as their fair value cannot be reliably measured and their

EAKXEBAE (ZE——F &) o transaction price was $Nil (2012: $Nil).
27 &I 27 COMMITMENTS
REE A MANIBHERTIRZEARAYE  Atthe end of the reporting period, capital commitments not provided for
(N in the financial statements were as follows:
e
Group
B BESBTE in HK$ Million 2013 2012
B4 Contracted for 5,252 5,527
ERERERRL Authorized but not contracted for 44,031 29,344
49,283 34,871

FHiEEFEAEGRAER AT EAMZ  The above commitments include mainly the land costs and construction
BT ERISEMESEEL Y TR A related costs to be incurred in respect of the Group’s development of its
N ESEFRRERK AN o investment properties in various cities in mainland China.
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28 EERT

(@) BRI

AEEE ARIERR T RERRERASH
B HHET2AER—MBYARER
ANEE WHEREGERER AL
B EESHES -

EBEREEHREEZEAFe2ETE
DLER BRESLIRREFEFEMAFR
TR ERENA 2 EESANEBEHEA
RUNZETE - HERRZHERTIBAGE
BES2HHERN  AEEASTHEHEHKTE
MERITABREEES CREERBAE
ERERP o AEE A #8212 ftF0Rk4
HMEZ - BFAAERIL &S X EDR
R AEEBRFRZERBERE B
—F—BER(ZE—=ZF:Z=FT—88&
L) MBAREBES 2 ZRERSEREA
B8 (ZE—=F: —B88x)°

—IEEKETRFIEAEEE ([BES
FTEl]) B W AR S
M-EEXREESHIZEEZBABHAK
AERA-ZBRTT) 2BH2AlEH®
R e KRB HRE2H K AEE
BREEBCEFPIIAREEBEFEIANCER
s  AEERFREL ZABSHER
wEANEET (CE——F :WHET) -

HRARE ZRREE—HERER
SRR & R 1) BV B SR AR KT & (B RIRET
g BEENFERABEEHEZKE
BRMER - MEEE R —RIEEE2ER
FRAFT X BEREE -

RAREFBRAMSEEB 2B AR -
HES TP BRE BT L I 2 BIKE
FMEtEl ([HBERKERETEI]) 2K E - Z
EhEANMHBARIMEREZHE—F
- DREEZXHeEZEEABSL
e) AR B AR R A8 B AT 8 R RUAE BIR IR
BAES MR HRATRAEZS
B 3 B B R Bl 2 BT BB K 2R AR AR
ZEEZERABHEML - ZERERHBH
BRARRFREL ZHRBEA=THE
BT (CT——F:-TtHERT)

28 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
(a) Retirement benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution provident fund scheme for
its employees. The assets of the scheme are held separately from those
of the Group by an independent corporate trustee and managed by
professional fund managers.

Contributions are made by both the employer and the employees at a
certain percentage of employees’ basic salaries, the percentage varying
with their length of service. When an employee leaves the scheme prior
to his or her interest in the Group’s contributions being fully vested,
forfeited contributions are credited to reserves of the fund. Depending
on the level of reserves, the Group may direct the trustee to credit
dividends to members’ accounts out of the reserves of the fund. The
Group’s contributions may be reduced by the forfeited contributions,
but there was no such reduction of the Group’s contributions during the
year. Total contributions made by the Group for the year amounted to
$21 million (2012: $21 million) and forfeited sums credited to reserves
amounted to $9 million (2012: $1 million).

A master trust Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) is operated by an independent service provider. Mandatory
contributions are made by both the employer and the employees at 5%
of the employees’ monthly relevant income, up to a limit of $25,000.
The Group’s contributions will be fully and immediately vested in the
employees’ accounts as their accrued benefits in the scheme. Total
MPF contributions made by the Group for the year amounted to $4
million (2012: $4 million).

As the Group’s provident fund scheme is an MPF Exempted
Occupational Retirement Scheme (the “ORSO Scheme”), eligibility
for membership of the ORSO and MPF schemes is identical. New
employees are offered a one-off option to join either the ORSO or the
MPF scheme.

Staff in the Company’s subsidiaries operating in mainland China are
members of a retirement benefits scheme (the “Mainland RB Scheme”)
operated by the local municipal government in mainland China. The
only obligation of the subsidiaries in mainland China is to contribute
a certain percentage of their payroll to Mainland RB Scheme to fund
the retirement benefits. The local municipal government in mainland
China undertakes to assume the retirement benefits obligations of all
existing and future retired employees of subsidiaries in mainland China.
Total contributions made by subsidiaries in mainland China for the year
amounted to $35 million (2012: $27 million).

191



B 75 R R P RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

28 EBERH )

(b) BHOHEEF

¥N/AYT|
ARARRZEEZEF+—AZ+WAMK
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FEm e
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28 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)
(b) Equity compensation benefits
The Company

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on November 24,
2000 has expired. No further options shall be offered thereunder, but
in all other respects the provisions of the scheme shall remain in full
force and effect and all options granted prior to such expiration and not
exercised at the expiry date shall remain valid.

Under the scheme, the board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company
is authorized to grant options to selected participants, including
employees and directors of any company in the Group, to subscribe for
shares of the Company as incentives or rewards for their contributions
to the Group. The exercise price of the options is determined by the
Board at the time of grant, and shall be the highest of the nominal
value of the shares, the closing price of the shares at the date of
grant and the average closing price of the shares for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant. The period open for
acceptance of the option and amount payable thereon, the vesting
period, the exercisable period and the number of shares subject to each
option are determined by the Board at the time of grant.

Hang Lung Properties Limited

The share option scheme adopted by the Company’s subsidiary,
HLP, on November 22, 2002 (the “2002 Share Option Scheme”) was
terminated upon the adoption of a new share option scheme on April
18, 2012 (the “2012 Share Option Scheme”, together with the 2002
Share Option Scheme are referred to as the “Schemes”). No further
options shall be offered under the 2002 Share Option Scheme, but
in all other respects the provisions of the 2002 Share Option Scheme
shall remain in full force and effect and all options granted prior to such
termination and not exercised at the date of termination shall remain
valid. The 2012 Share Option Scheme remains in force for a period of
10 years commencing on its adoption date and expiring on the tenth
anniversary thereof.
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(b) BRIT@EERF (&)
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28 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)
(b) Equity compensation benefits (Continued)
Hang Lung Properties Limited (Continued)

The purposes of the Schemes are to enable HLP to grant options to
selected participants as incentives or rewards for their contributions to
HLP group, to attract skilled and experienced personnel, to incentivize
them to remain with HLP group and to motivate them to strive for the
future development and expansion of HLP group by providing them with
the opportunity to acquire equity interests in HLP.

Under the Schemes, the Board of HLP is authorized to grant options
to selected participants, including employees and directors of any
company in HLP group, subject to the terms and conditions such as
performance targets as the Board of HLP may specify on a case-by-case
basis or generally. The exercise price of the options is determined by
the Board of HLP at the time of grant, and shall be the highest of the
nominal value of HLP shares, the closing price of HLP shares at the
date of grant and the average closing price of HLP shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant. The period open
for acceptance of the option and amount payable thereon, the vesting
period, the exercisable period and the number of HLP shares subject
to each option are determined by the Board of HLP at the time of grant.

As at the date of this report, the total number of HLP shares available
for issue under the 2012 Share Option Scheme is 297,224,253 shares,
representing 6.64% of the issued share capital of HLP. The total
number of HLP shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of options
(including both exercised and outstanding) granted to each participant
shall not exceed in any 12-month period 1% of HLP shares in issue.
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28 EEEF =& 28 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)
(b) RIFHERER (5 (b) Equity compensation benefits (Continued)
1. FARRGRMEAEZZBHMAT : 1.  The movements of share options of the Company during the year
are as follows:
A& RSN B
Number of share options
RZT—=%F R=-B—=%
—A—H +=A=+—8 1TEE
B AREATEE 28U/ i RAATE &1 BRfE 2 1T1E R (%)
Outstanding on EE Outstanding on Period during Exercise
LA A January 1, BT Forfeited/ December 31, which options price
Date granted 2013 Exercised Lapsed 2013 are exercisable (HK$)
—ETNFRA=+H 5,325,000 (235,000) - 5,090,000 “EERFRA-—t+HZE 9.45
May 20, 2004 —ZET—FRA+NH
May 20, 2005 to May 19, 2014
—ZEERF+—HA=+H 6,700,000 - - 6,700,000 —ET+F+—AZ+H=E 20.52
November 20, 2006 —E—XREt+—A+hH
November 20, 2007 to
November 19, 2016
425t Total 12,025,000 (235,000) - 11,790,000

LB EARE R N H B EAfEsT—2Z  All the above options may vest after one to five years of the grant date
REREE  WAREEHEBASEER  and are exercisable up to the tenth anniversary of the date of grant,
HAMITT(E - LB EAREE S L - 57  after which they will lapse. No options were cancelled during the year.
I AR AD BRRE AR 5 8 o

() WMWABETEZALNTRMEA#ESBE R ()  Movements in the number of share options of the Company outstanding

HE@METHITEEZEHNT - and their related weighted average exercise prices are as follows:
2013 2012
INREF 91T EE IR TEE

(FB%E) 8y (BH) A&7

Weighted average HiIREZE  Weighted average kg gs

exercise price Number of exercise price Number of

(HK$) options (HK$) options

R— A —HERWIT6E QOutstanding at January 1 15.62 12,025,000 15.48 13,227,000
21T7E Exercised 9.45 (235,000) 14.25 (1,152,000)
(R Cancelled - - 9.45 (50,000)
R+—BA=+—H®A#H77/E Outstanding at December 31 15.74 11,790,000 15.62 12,025,000
R+ A=+—RA F17{F Exercisable at December 31 15.74 11,790,000 15.62 12,025,000

FRNEZFWRETERMEIRE - RERN{E  No share options were exercised by the directors during the year. The
BITE 2RO PEESERETEHE 2 weighted average closing price of the shares immediately before the

A IIRE W B A+ 7sm =1l » dates of exercise by the employees during the year was $46.02.

RERNITEZ KD EARETES B 2N The weighted average share price at the dates of exercise for share

BB AN+ ST = ALl - options during the year was $46.27.

(i) MNEERMRETEZRMERE 0 (i) The weighted average remaining contractual life of options
HEEHFGBENBPAE—NE(ZF outstanding at the end of the reporting period was 1.8 years
——4F : —BENE) o (2012: 2.8 years).
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28 EEER &)
(b) BROBERH &)

2. FREBRMERMEEZZEFHUT :

(i) —FEFE_FROFETE

28 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)
(b) Equity compensation benefits (Continued)

2. The movements of share options of HLP during the year are as

follows:

(i) 2002 Share Option Scheme

figtn BARESL B
Number of share options
R-T—=F R-TB—=&
—A—H +=A=+—H 1TEE
M ARARATIE B84/ e RAAT 1B A& 17 EAHE 2 1715 HR (B%)
Outstanding on B4k  Outstanding on Period during Exercise
BHAH January 1, B171E Forfeited/ ~ December 31, which options price
Date granted 2013 Exercised Lapsed 2013 are exercisable (HK$)
—EEPNFERA=—+H 5,430,625 (140,625) - 5,290,000 “EERFRA-THE 9.20
May 20, 2004 —E-WFERATNE
May 20, 2005 to
May 19, 2014
—EERFT+—ATHEE 4,770,000 (225,000) - 4,545,000 —TT+F+—H+MHEZE 16.75-22.55
—TTtF=A+NHB —T—+t&=A+NH
November 14, 2006 to November 14, 2007 to
March 19, 2007 March 18, 2017
T+ FN\AZ+—HZE 44,296,000 (1,964,000) (708,000) 41,624,000 —TT=N\FNA=-+—HZE 17.36-27.90
—ZET)\F+=ZA=+—H —T-N\F+=A=+H
August 21, 2007 to August 21, 2008 to
December 31, 2008 December 30, 2018
—T—FTF-_ANHZE 13,780,000 - - 13,780,000 —T——F-AN\HZE 26.46-27.27
—E-THFRH-H —E-TFRAA=1T—AH
February 8, 2010 to February 8, 2012 to
June 1, 2010 May 31, 2020
—T—TF+A-FTNHEZE 38,390,000 - (2,538,000) 35,852,000 —FT——FtH=-+hHZE 30.79-36.90
—ET—%A+=H8 T —FA+=H
July 29, 2010 to July 29, 2012 to
June 13, 2011 June 12, 2021
—E——F+=RAtH 1,350,000 - (1,350,000) - —FT—=Ft+-_AtRH=E 24.10
December 7, 2011 —E-—F+=A,xAH
December 7, 2013 to
December 6, 2021
45T Total 108,016,625 (2,329,625) (4,596,000) 101,091,000

bt A R B AT R B AR AT — Bk
MERFREE YR RLBEHELTE
FhEmBETE  ERROBESS
R o G AL A 1) BRI BE o

All the above options may vest after one/two to five years of the grant
date and are exercisable up to the tenth anniversary of the date of grant,
after which they will lapse. No options were cancelled during the year.
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28 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)
(b) Equity compensation benefits (Continued)
(i) 2002 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Movements in the number of share options of HLP outstanding and their
related weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

2013 2012
IREF 91T EE IR (E
(6:-1:-)) (A%)
Weighted [iavi) Weighted &
average A average kg gs
exercise price Number of exercise price Number of
(HK$) options (HK$) options
R—H—HEAEITE QOutstanding at January 1 24.89 108,016,625 24.34 147,823,625
21T(E Exercised 19.38 (2,329,625) 12.92 (3,796,000)
(SR Cancelled - - 23.16 (32,630,000)
BRI/ B R Forfeited/Lapsed 27.20  (4,596,000) 27.61 (3,381,000)
Bw+—-—A=+—H Outstanding at December 31 2491 101,091,000 24.89 108,016,625
B AR T
N-E=H=+—H Exercisable at December 31 21.41 61,758,200 21.06 40,141,525
A FATE

F NI A ) i -

FR ARAREETRELTEZHHEAR
BUIEERMEZRDHE RFEFAEER
TEZBEOHEEE X RETER R ZA
M B E INEFHRHES =TT

RERNTEZBROBEITEE B 2 BRI
ERDINEFARES =t hThil -

RAEE B R ARRTT 2 1B 2 Ik Bl 4

ZIEFHRBKEOHRARH=F (=F
— 5 REME) o
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No share options were granted during the year.

No share options of HLP were exercised by the directors in the period
of their employment as directors of the Company during the year. The
weighted average closing price of the shares of HLP immediately before
the dates of exercise by the employees during the year was $29.00.

The weighted average share price of HLP at the dates of exercise for
share options during the year was $29.05.

The weighted average remaining contractual life of HLP options

outstanding at the end of the reporting period was 5.3 years (2012:
6.4 years).
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28 EEEA =& 28 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)
(b) RIFHERER (5 (b) Equity compensation benefits (Continued)
(i) =—ZFE—Z—FRHEHEZ (ii) 2012 Share Option Scheme
A& in ERtEE B
Number of share options
RZE—=F R-z—=%
—HA—H +=A=+—8 1TEE
H AR T B2/ 2 R AT 15 BB 2 1T6EHR (8%
Outstanding on BE&  Outstanding on Period during Exercise
REBH January 1, 2RH B17E Forfeited/ ~ December 31, which options price
Date granted 2013 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2013 are exercisable (HK$)
—F—=F,XxAWmA — 40,000,000 - (1,380,000) 38,620,000 fﬁﬁf/\ﬂ MmEZzE  28.20
June 4, 2013 —E-=F,XA=H
June 4, 2015 to
June 3, 2023
#a5t Total — 40,000,000 - (1,380,000) 38,620,000

st P B R i E S A B R AR B
EAMEAFEREE  LARNRE AL+
BEREMANITE  tERR O MERS
R o G A SR M A A ) ERRE AR 8K

RENEBEMERNEZZMERL A B
ZAMWEHES -+ EARl -

RAEE BB AREAT 2 1B E R B4
ZIEFFIRA KRS LR E -

FARR N 2 1B ER D RENE L B H
RREMEAR — SR TEBENX - &%
B B 2 R R M 2 80 Ik
Dz EFHEER ATl - AR
Rz hEF AR T

All the above options may vest after two to five years of the grant date
and are exercisable up to the tenth anniversary of the date of grant, after
which they will lapse. No options of HLP were cancelled during the year.

The closing price of HLP shares immediately before the date of grant
during the year was $27.75.

The weighted average remaining contractual life of options of HLP
outstanding at the end of the reporting period was 9.4 years

The weighted average value per share option of HLP granted during the
year estimated at the date of grant using a Black-Scholes pricing model
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted was $8.01. The weighted average assumptions used are
as follows:

R A#Z BEERE
1T1EE

B E B A K
BHERFEH ()

B IE

ARSI

HLP Share price at grant date $27.50
Exercise price $28.20
Risk-free interest rate 0.49%
Expected life (in years) 6
Volatility 0.41
Expected dividend per share $0.74

REPRERRK I IZEZHE ZKE - T)
REERLAPII—FRASAREZFHT

DITRLE - BHERRKREBEBIREM
BT o Bk AT B BRI HAFEMET
BEREATE -

The volatility measured at the standard deviation of expected share price
returns is based on statistical analysis of daily share prices over the one
year immediately preceding the grant date. Expected dividend per share
is based on historical dividend. Changes in the input assumptions could
materially affect the fair value estimate.
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RARBIRERMERTARAIES
(RETREEMENES) 2RHBA
o REMELWVQ) Bz AEEE
SABEME  BEZE—Z=F1+=H
=+—BI-FERR BB LA
(1) BRRRLEE: —FTRE—+87T
—E——F:ZFN\BEEBRL):
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(ZF—ZF:=ZFTRE=TE
TL) ¢ &
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BEEALRS
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FRAEERERTEEKB
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28 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

(b)

Equity compensation benefits (Continued)

(iii) In respect of share options of the Company and HLP granted to

the directors of the Company, who were also directors of HLP, the
related charge recognized for the year ended December 31, 2013,
estimated in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy in
note 1(v)(2) was as follows:

(1) Mr. Ronnie C. Chan, $25.1 million (2012: $28.0 million);

(2) Mr. Philip N.L. Chen, $34.5 million (2012: $36.2 million);
and

(3) Mr. H.C. Ho, $15.1 million (2012: $13.8 million).

29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Except for the transactions and balances already disclosed elsewhere

in the financial statements, the Group entered into the following related

party transactions during the year in its ordinary course of business:

(@)

(b)

B LB AR 2R HANG LUNG GROUP LIMITED

The Group has a 20% interest in a joint venture which participated
in the development of Package One of the MTRC Tung Chung
Station Development Project and a new commercial project in
Tung Chung. At December 31, 2013, the Group advanced to
this joint venture a total of $945 million (2012: $525 million). All
advances are unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no fixed
terms of repayment.

Emoluments to directors and key management has been disclosed
in notes 7 and 28(b).
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

Exposure to interest rate, liquidity, credit and currency risks arises in
the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group has policies and
practices approved by management as described below in managing
these risks.

(@) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from deposits with
banks and borrowings issued at floating rates. Interest rate trend
and movements are closely monitored and, if appropriate, existing
borrowings will be replaced with new bank facilities when favorable
pricing opportunities arise. In addition, the Group established the
Program which provides fixed interest rate facilities to the Group and
assists the Group to manage its interest rate risk.

The interest rates of interest-bearing financial assets and liabilities are
disclosed in notes 15, 16 and 19.

Based on the simulations performed at year end in relation to the
Group’s bank deposits and borrowings, it was estimated that the impact
of a 100 basis-point increase in market interest rates from the rates
applicable at the year end date, with all other variables held constant,
would increase the Group’s profit after taxation and total equity by
approximately $58 million (2012: $117 million).

This analysis is based on a hypothetical situation, as in practice market
interest rates rarely change in isolation, and should not be considered
a projection of likely future profits or losses. The analysis assumes the
following:

— changes in market interest rates affect the interest income and
interest expenses of floating rate financial instruments and bank
borrowings; and

— all other financial assets and liabilities are held constant.
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk

The Group manages its surplus cash centrally and the liquidity risk of

the Company and its subsidiaries at the corporate level. The objective

is to ensure that an adequate amount of cash and committed bank

facilities are available to meet all funding requirements. Significant

flexibility is maintained through diverse sources of committed credit

lines to respond to unforeseeable opportunities and events.

]
Group
BRRNRBERE
Contractual undiscounted cash flow
—ZEWFN ZERAFA
BRMAEE —FR Between Between AFNUE
Carrying Bt Within land?2 2and 5 Over
LA B BITatE in HK$ Million amount Total 1 year years years 5 years
RITERREMEE Bank loans and
other borrowings 45,024 51,222 2,902 17,696 17,742 12,882
JE 5T BR R N2 EL A FE 5P R Trade and other payables 6,250 6,250 4,587 1,023 571 69
H=—ZB—=%+=HA=+—H At December 31, 2013 51,274 57,472 7,489 18,719 18,313 12,951
BHRRTRESTRE
Contractual undiscounted cash flow
BREE —FR Between Between AFRE
Carrying 45t Within land?2 2and 5 Over
B EEITTE in HK$ Million amount Total 1 year years years 5 years
RITERREMEE Bank loans and
other borrowings 37,645 43,679 2,128 2,326 28,726 10,499
JEASHBR TN 2 L fth FE AT R Trade and other payables 5,240 5,240 3,913 773 465 89
R-E——F+_-_H=+—H AtDecember 31, 2012 42,885 48919 6,041 3,099 29,191 10,588

(c) FERK
AEBZEERBREEREEBKRERNRER
FERITRIRIT NS BIME 2 TR R EZ o

AEBETHRZEERR  EhREYH
MPZBEEENGRYFEXNHEHERS
MARTE - REVEHENEBIEEIIRE
ERENGIETE  HEKXNEEZS
SIMMHRTRHMBEBEHEN TN AN - RAE
BFABER2MEHEN  AEELEF U
FRERFA T AERD - ARETE R
HEWGR - WERIREEHE - #E AR E(IA8 R
ZIEERBRERE
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(c) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade receivables and
deposits and bonds held with reputable banks and financial institutions.

It maintains a defined credit policy including stringent credit evaluation
on and payment of a rental deposit from tenants. Proceeds from
property sales are receivable pursuant to the terms of the sale and
purchase agreements. In addition to the payment of rental deposits,
tenants are required to pay monthly rents in respect of leased properties
in advance. Except for sale of properties developed by the Group, it does
not hold any collateral over the receivables. Receivables are regularly
reviewed and closely monitored to minimize any associated credit risk.
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(c) Credit risk (Continued)

The Group does not engage in any derivative transactions. Surplus cash
is placed with reputable banks and financial institutions in accordance
with pre-determined limits based on credit ratings and other factors to
minimize concentration risk.

Except for the financial guarantees given by the Company as set out in
note 26, the Group does not provide any other guarantee which would
expose the Group or the Company to material credit risk.

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

(d) Currency risk

Currency risk arises when recognized assets and liabilities are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the
Group’s entities to which they related. The Group maintains certain
bank deposits denominated in United States dollars amounting to
US$41 million (2012: US$143 million) and 10-year bonds amounting to
US$500 million (2012: US$500 million). Given that Hong Kong dollars
are pegged to United States dollars, the resulting currency risk on such
deposits is considered insignificant.

The Group also engaged in property development and investments
in mainland China through its local subsidiaries whose net assets
are exposed to currency risk. In addition, the Group holds Renminbi
deposits and bonds to meet its ongoing payment obligations in relation
to its development projects in mainland China which is denominated in
Renminbi. Where appropriate, the Group seeks to minimize its exposure
to currency risk in mainland China through borrowings denominated in
Renminbi.
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

Management estimated that a 1% appreciation/depreciation of
Renminbi against Hong Kong dollar would not have a material effect
on the Group’s profit after taxation and the Group’s equity attributable
to shareholders would be increased/decreased by $511 million (2012:
$450 million).

The above analysis has been determined assuming that the change in
foreign exchange rates had occurred at the end of the reporting period
and that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.

(e) Fair value
(i)  Financial assets measured at fair value

Financial assets under recurring fair value measurement comprise listed
investments classified as available-for-sale equity securities, which are
measured using quoted prices in an active market for identical assets
(level 1). During the year, there were no transfers between levels of fair
value hierarchy.

(ii)  Fair values of financial assets and liabilities carried at other
than fair value

The fair values of held-to-maturity instruments, unlisted investments,
trade and other receivables, trade and other payables, cash and
deposits with banks, bank loans and other borrowings are considered
approximate to their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period.
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31 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Notes 12(a), 28(b) and 30 contain information about the assumptions
and their risk relating to valuation of investment properties and
investment properties under development, and fair value of share
options granted and financial instruments. Other key sources of
estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(a) Properties held for sale

The Group determines the net realizable value of unsold properties
based on estimation of future selling price less costs to be incurred in
relation to the sale, with reference to the prevailing market data and
market survey reports available from independent property valuers.

(b) Impairment of assets

The Group tests regularly whether goodwill and other assets that have
indefinite useful lives have suffered any impairment. Other assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is determined using fair value
less costs to sell or value-in-use calculations as appropriate. These
calculations require the use of estimates.

(c) Income taxes

There are transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business
and judgment is required in determining the provision for income
taxes. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the year in which such
determination is made.

(d) Recognition of deferred tax assets

The amount of the deferred tax assets included in the consolidated
statement of financial position of the Group is recognized only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary differences and unused tax losses can
be utilized. The recognition of deferred tax assets requires the Group
to make judgments or based on the assessment of future financial
performance, the amount of future taxable profits and the timing of
when these will be realized.
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32 FUTURE CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Group has not early applied the following amendments, new
standards or interpretations which have been issued by the HKICPA
but are not yet effective for the year ended December 31, 2013. The
adoption of the following amendments or standards will not result in
substantial changes to the Group’s accounting policies.
AT B Bzl bAT&
Fia 2 EEtER AR

Effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after

HKAS 32 (&3] 4%) CHTH: 27 —HKiHepmEEReHBEE —ET—mMFE—-—H—H
HKAS 32 (Amended) Financial instruments: Presentation January 1, 2014
— Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
HKAS 36 ({&£5]7%) BERE — IFeRMEENTRE B KR —E—mF—-HF—H
HKAS 36 (Amended) Impairment of assets January 1, 2014
— Recoverable amounts disclosure for non-financial assets
HKAS 39 (&5 4) CRTH: BE — TETAZERKEELH hest —E—NF—H—H
HKAS 39 (Amended) Financial instruments: Disclosures January 1, 2014
— Novation of derivatives and continuation of hedge accounting
HKFRS 10 ({85 A) - RE MK —E—mF—A—H
HKFRS 12 ({&7T4%) & Hh AR RS RER
HKAS 27 ({&5]7) BUMBEHE [REEE
HKFRS 10 (Amended), Consolidated financial statements, January 1, 2014
HKFRS 12 (Amended) and Disclosure of interests in other entities and
HKAS 27 (Amended) Separate financial statements “Investment entities”
HKFRS 9 ST A EA
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments N/A*

*RIIN-E-AF A RBZAERBHEREE -
FTHDEE £ BB RRE ©

33 BEMBHRK
EERN -2 -—MF—A-+ZBREYL
SFATUBB B -

* The original effective date of January 1, 2015 is removed and the new mandatory
effective date is to be determined.

33 APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorized for issue by the
Board of Directors on January 23, 2014.
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34 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

RZE—=F+-A=+—H At December 31, 2013
BEATIRA Ealiisnava
(%) ESEiiess NGIiESS Pk
Issued EmADL EmADL Place of
AR] Share Capital % Held by % Held by £y Incorporation
Company (HK$) The Group The Company Activity and Operations
Akihiro Company Limited 2 100 100 MEER&EE B
Property development Hong Kong
& leasing
Antonis Limited* 10,000 52.5 = YEHE B
Property leasing Hong Kong
AP City Limited 2 52.5 - YEHE B
Property leasing Hong Kong
AP Joy Limited 2 52.5 - VEERIEE B
Property development Hong Kong
& leasing
AP Properties Limited MEERKIEE B
Property development Hong Kong
& leasing
[A] B% 34 52.5 =
‘A’ shares
[BJ A% 6 52.5 -
‘B’ shares
AP Star Limited* 2 52.5 - ERIEE G
Investment holding Hong Kong
AP Success Limited 2 52.5 = LELiEN B
Property leasing Hong Kong
AP Universal Limited* 2 52.5 - MEME BE
Property leasing Hong Kong
AP Win Limited* 1,000,000 52.5 - MEME BB
Property leasing Hong Kong
AP World Limited 2 52.5 = LESE B
Property development Hong Kong
Bayliner Investment Ltd.* 1%L 100 100 ZRIGE ABERTAS
Us$1 Investment holding British Virgin
Islands
Believecity Limited* 2 100 - ERKRENESER BB
Investment holding Hong Kong
& securities trading
Bonna Estates Company Limited 1,000,000 52.5 - MERE B
Property leasing Hong Kong
EEhEERAR 4,000,000 52.5 - MERE BB
Caddo Enterprises, Limited* Property leasing Hong Kong
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34 FEMBATR @) 34 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
RZE—=F+-A=+—H At December 31, 2013
BEATIRA Ealiisnava
(%) ESEiiess NGIiESS Pk
Issued EmADL EmADL Place of
AR] Share Capital % Held by % Held by £y Incorporation
Company (HK$) The Group The Company Activity and Operations
Cititop Limited 2 52.5 - MEERREE BE
Property development Hong Kong
& leasing
Cokage Limited* 2 100 100 RIS & &
Investment holding Hong Kong
BEHERERAA BRI E B
Country Bond Development Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
[A] % 990 52.0 -
‘A’ shares
[BJ % 1 52.5 -
‘B’ share
BEPEERAA 2 100 - BRI E BB
Country First Enterprises Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
BHE P EBR AT 5,000,000 56.2 - ERIEE BB
Country Link Enterprises Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
Curicao Company Limited* 2 100 - ZERIZE BE
Investment holding Hong Kong
Dokay Limited* 2 52.5 = MERE B
Property leasing Hong Kong
Dynamia Company Limited 2 100 100 YEEREEE B
Property development Hong Kong
& leasing
TBEEERBR AR BRI E B
Ease Smart Development Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
[A] R 1 100 -
‘A’ share
[BJ % 1 52.5 -
‘B’ share
aEEERR AR 2 5205 - BRI E BE
Easegood Enterprises Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
BRAKERRAT 2 100 100 R E HE
Ever Brilliant Investment Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
Folabs Limited* 2 100 - MERE BB
Property leasing Hong Kong
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34 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

At December 31, 2013

BEATIRA Ealiisnava
(B¥%) ESEiiess NGIiESS Pk
Issued EmADL EmADL Place of
AR] Share Capital % Held by % Held by £y Incorporation
Company (HK$) The Group The Company Activity and Operations
Fu Yik Company Limited* 3 52.5 = MEMEE B
Property leasing Hong Kong
EXARAT" 2 52.5 - ZERIRE B
Gala Ruby Limited* Investment holding Hong Kong
BREXERAR" 2 100 100 MEMEE B
Glory View Properties Limited* Property leasing Hong Kong
Gowily Limited 2 52.5 - MEEE BB
Property leasing Hong Kong
Grand Centre Limited 4 52.5 - MEMEE B
Property leasing Hong Kong
Grand Hotel Group Limited 10,200 52.5 - BREAFELERER BB
Apartment operating Hong Kong
& management
RS SEERAR PRI A BB
Grand Hotel Holdings Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
[A] B 62,163,123 52.5 =
‘A’ shares
[B] & 6,000,000 52.5 =
‘B’ shares
EEERERAA 2 100 100 MEER BE
Great Cheer Development Limited Property development Hong Kong
Hang Chui Company Limited 2 52.5 = MEMEE B
Property leasing Hong Kong
Hang Far Company Limited* 2 52.5 - ZRIEE BE
Investment holding Hong Kong
BRERAE] 200 52.5 - MEEE B
Hang Fine Company Limited Property leasing Hong Kong
Hang Kwok Company Limited* 10,000 52.5 = MEMRE B
Property leasing Hong Kong
1B (1750 BRAF] 10,000 52.5 - BEER B
Hang Lung (Administration) Limited Management services Hong Kong
1B (FE) BRAF 2 100 100 IR A B
Hang Lung (China) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
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34 FEMBLAT @)
R—E—=%+_-_HA=+—H

34 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

At December 31, 2013

BEATIRA Ealiisnava
(B¥%) ESEiiess NGIiESS Pk
Issued EmADL EmADL Place of
AR] Share Capital % Held by % Held by £y Incorporation
Company (HK$) The Group The Company Activity and Operations
1B (K&E) BRAF 1 52.5 = PERRIR A BB
Hang Lung (Dalian) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
BECEERAR 2 100 100 EREE HE
Hang Lung Enterprises Limited* Investment holding Hong Kong
EREGEEEARAR 2 100 100 BE1S B
Hang Lung Financial Services Limited Financial services Hong Kong
BEKRERRAR " 2 100 100 EREE B
Hang Lung Investments Limited* Investment holding Hong Kong
B OI%) BRAF] 1 52.5 = IR E B
Hang Lung (Jiangsu) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
B (&) ARAHA 1 52.5 - IR A Bl
Hang Lung (Jinan) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
1B (28) BRAF 1 52.5 - PERRIR A& B
Hang Lung (Kunming) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
1B (GE%E) BRAF 1 52.5 - IR E B
Hang Lung (Liaoning) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
Hang Lung Park-In Limited 2 525 = YEMEE B
Property leasing Hong Kong
BETIIEREBERAR 10,000 52.5 - TIHRIBEERE B
Hang Lung Project Management Project management Hong Kong
Limited*
EEHEFR A A 4,478,895,670 52.5 - PRI E B
Hang Lung Properties Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
BEYEESEER AT 100,000 52.5 - MEER HE
Hang Lung Property Management Property management Hong Kong
Limited*
EREMEREAR AR * 2 508 - MERIE B
Hang Lung Real Estate Agency Property agencies Hong Kong
Limited*
8% C&f%) BRAA 2 52.5 - ERRE o
Hang Lung (Shenyang) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
BiE (KE) BRAF 2 52.5 - IR E BE
Hang Lung (Tianjin) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
EESERERR AR 2 100 100 Br 7% BE
Hang Lung Treasury Limited Financial services Hong Kong
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34 FENMBELQT @ 34 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

RZE—=F+-A=+—H At December 31, 2013
BEATIRA Ealiisnava
(%) ESEiiess NGIiESS Pk
Issued EmADL EmADL Place of
AR] Share Capital % Held by % Held by £y Incorporation
Company (HK$) The Group The Company Activity and Operations
B (V%) BRAF 1 52.5 = PERRIR A BB
Hang Lung (Wuhan) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
18 (&55) BRAF 1 52.5 - ZERIRE B
Hang Lung (Wuxi) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
Hantak Limited 2 100 100 ZERRIEE B
Investment holding Hong Kong
Hang Wise Company Limited* 200 100 100 MEEE B
Property leasing Hong Kong
Hebo Limited 2 100 100 MEEER B
Property development Hong Kong
HL Enterprises Limited* 2 100 100 PERRIR A B
Investment holding Hong Kong
1BfEtRiE (E2E) BRAR* 2 100 100 75 B
HL Mortgage (HTG) Limited* Financial services Hong Kong
BiEEE (BRE) BRAR 2 100 100 5 B
HL Mortgage (NH) Limited* Financial services Hong Kong
BlEEE (REXE) BRAF 2 100 100 B BB
HL Mortgage (NP) Limited* Financial services Hong Kong
BfEME (FE) BRAR 2 52.5 - IR E B
HLP (China) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
HLP Finance Limited" 17T 52.5 - B ARERRES
US$1 Financial services British Virgin
Islands
EENEMEERARAR ARE1IT 52.5 = s B
HLP Financial Services Limited RMB1 Financial services Hong Kong
HLP Fortune Limited 1 52.5 = VB R B
Property development Hong Kong
BEMERERRAA 2 52.5 = B 1S B
HLP Treasury Limited Financial services Hong Kong
HLP Treasury Services Limited* 2 52.5 = PRI E &5
Investment holding Hong Kong
Hoi Sang Limited* 2 52.5 - BERIEE B
Investment holding Hong Kong
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34 FEMBLE (@) 34 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
RZE—=F+-A=+—H At December 31, 2013
BBITIRA Zaiijava
(%) KB NEIFTHE Pk
Issued EmADL EmADL Place of
AR] Share Capital % Held by % Held by £y Incorporation
Company (HK$) The Group The Company Activity and Operations
Kindstock Limited* 2 100 = RIS & B
Investment holding Hong Kong
HHBRAF 1,000,002 52.5 - YR B
Lockoo Limited* Property development Hong Kong
BEEREGRAT 10,000 100 - ZERRIEE B
Luckyson Investments Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
iRt (FMRE) BRAR* 20 89.7 = g B
Lungsun Mortgage (PV) Limited* Financial services Hong Kong
Magic Modern International Limited* 1 525 = B a5
Advertising Hong Kong
Mansita Limited* 2 52.5 - MERE G
Property leasing Hong Kong
Modalton Limited 2 52.5 - MERE BB
Property leasing Hong Kong
Monafat Limited* 2 52.5 - MERE BB
Property leasing Hong Kong
HERABER QA 2 100 - YEMEE B
Nikco Limited Property leasing Hong Kong
Palex Limited* 2 52.5 - MERE BB
Property leasing Hong Kong
Paradot Limited* 2 100 100 YRR 0
Property development Hong Kong
Pocaliton Limited 2 52.5 - MERE BE
Property leasing Hong Kong
Promax Limited 2 89.7 = VIR a5
Property development Hong Kong
EREHR AR 1,560,000 100 100 IR E B
Prosperland Housing Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
Purotat Limited* 2 100 100 ERRIEE B
Investment holding Hong Kong
Rago Star Limited 2 52.5 - YEME B
Property leasing Hong Kong
Scotat Limited 2 89.7 = ERRIEE B
Investment holding Hong Kong
BXEEBR AT 20 100 100 MEERLEE G
Stanman Properties Limited Property development Hong Kong
& leasing
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34 FEMBLAT @)

R—E—=%+_-_HA=+—H

34 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

At December 31, 2013

BEATIRA Ealiisnava

(%) ESEiiess NGIiESS Pk

Issued EmADL EmADL Place of

AR] Share Capital % Held by % Held by £y Incorporation

Company (HK$) The Group The Company Activity and Operations

Stooket Limited 2 52.5 - MERE BE

Property leasing Hong Kong

Style Giant Limited 2 89.7 - MEER B

Property development Hong Kong

BRERERAR 2 100 100 MEEERE BB

Success Cosmos Development Property development Hong Kong
Limited*

Tegraton Limited 2 52.5 = YEHE B

Property leasing Hong Kong

Topnic Limited 2 100 100 YEHE &

Property leasing Hong Kong

Velan Limited* 2 100 100 YR B

Property development Hong Kong

BEHEXEERA A" 100,000 5255 = MEMEE BB

Wai Luen Investment Company, Property leasing Hong Kong
Limited*

Yangli Limited* 2 52.5 - YEHE &

Property leasing Hong Kong

REXEBR AR * 1,000 100 100 BRI ENFESEE B

Yee Fly Investment Limited* Investment holding Hong Kong

& securities trading
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34 FEMBLAT @)
R—E—=%+_-_HA=+—H

34 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

At December 31, 2013

Zailijava
SBATHE DRIFTHE Pk
FREAMINEEE B EmEDL  EmASH Place of
Wholly Foreign Owned Enterprises ZMEZR % Held by % Held by Evi Incorporation
in mainland China Registered Capital ~ The Group The Company Activity and Operations
NEEREMERR AR ANR#3 556,877,3557C 52.5 = LI AR B A
Dalian Hang Lung Properties Ltd. RMB3,556,877,355 Property development Mainland China
ERHAEREMERR AR AER#4,537,321,8007C 52.5 - MEER IR
Kunming Hang Ying Properties Ltd. RMB4,537,321,800 Property development Mainland China
EEEEMMERRAR AR #5,382,096,32470 52.5 - YEERNEE AR A
Liaoning Hang Lung Properties Ltd. RMB5,382,096,324 Property development Mainland China
& leasing
IEREEESR AT 385,000,0003 7T 52.5 - MEZERIEE AR i
Shandong Hang Lung Properties Ltd. US$385,000,000 Property development Mainland China
& leasing
&G EEMERR AT 349,990,000 7T 52.5 - EEREREE AR A
Shenyang Hang Lung Properties Ltd. US$349,990,000 Property development Mainland China
& leasing
KEBEREMERRAR 75#53,820,000,0007T 52.5 - L leifaspaif
Tianjin Hang Lung Properties Ltd. HK$3,820,000,000 Property development Mainland China
I EEMERR AR AR#3,837,746,2617C 52.5 - MEEREEE AR i
Wuxi Hang Lung Properties Ltd. RMB3,837,746,261 Property development Mainland China
& leasing
miEAMERR AT 75 #509,000,0007T 52.5 - LEYE B A
Wuxi Hang Ying Properties Ltd. HK$509,000,000 Property development Mainland China
HILEREEHERZEBR AR AR #3,680,000,0007T 52.5 - eI AR B
Hubei Hang Lung Property RMB3,680,000,000 Property development Mainland China
Development Co., Ltd.
EEailiinAava
HMER SEMHE NGBS o SR
(E£m) #Emaotk #Ezmasth Place of
FE RN B Registered Capital % Held by % Held by EY Incorporation
Equity Joint Venture in mainland China (US$)  The Group The Company Activity and Operations
LPEEREMEREZEERAR 167,004,736 51.7 - MEERIES H B A,
Shanghai Hang Bond Property Property development Mainland China
Development Co., Ltd. & leasing
LEEREEERAT 17,766,000 70 - ey A B A
Shanghai Heng Cheng Real Estate Property development Mainland China
Development Co., Ltd.
EEBEREMZEARAR 165,000,000 52.8 - MR REE AR B
Shanghai Kong Hui Property Property development Mainland China
Development Co., Ltd. & leasing

* R EFR G B ER
N ERBRKE

ERILBSRBEANKE BN NEE
BEAFEZIZHNBAR -
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* Not audited by KPMG
" Operated in Hong Kong

The above list gives the principal subsidiaries of the Group which in

the opinion of the directors, principally affect the profit and assets of

the Group.
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35 PRINCIPAL JOINT VENTURES
At December 31, 2013

BBITIRA Zaiijava

(%) KB NEIFTHE Pk

Issued EmADL EmADL Place of

AR] Share Capital % Held by % Held by Evs Incorporation

Company (HK$) The Group The Company Activity and Operations

HEEZERERAT 400 25 = MERE BB

Daily Win Development Limited Property leasing Hong Kong

1B ERIE (K#E) BRAA 2 50 = W B

Hang Hing Mortgage (TH) Limited Financial services Hong Kong

BERFERERRAT 519,000 50 - 12 N A B

Hang Lung-Hakuyosha Dry Dry and laundry Hong Kong
Cleaning Limited cleaning

Newfoundworld Finance Limited 100,000 20 = BT B

Financial services Hong Kong

Newfoundworld Holdings Limited 2,000,000 20 = RIS E 6

Investment holding Hong Kong

Newfoundworld Investment 1%7T 20 = RIS & NEBERRAHS

Holdings Limited US$1 Investment holding  British Virgin Islands

Newfoundworld Limited 2,000,000 20 = YRR B

Property development Hong Kong

Pure Jade Limited 1,000 20 = LE L B

Property development Hong Kong

ERZERBRAR] 3 17.5 = MERE B

Star Play Development Limited Property leasing Hong Kong

EHRRNIEEFHE

FHEM =TS

ERINLBESRRYANKRE BN MEE

BEAFEZIBELENF -

The above companies are not audited by KPMG.

The above list gives the principal joint ventures of the Group which in
the opinion of the directors, principally affect the profit and assets of

the Group.
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Ten-Year Financial Summary

- _ EE N
Z+=A +-7 HEANA=THLFE
Jan - Dec - For the year ended June 30
Jul-Dec
2013 2012 2011 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
LA B ETAE in HK$ Million (H&ED)
(BRBE=EH) (unless otherwise stated) (Note 1)
WEE Total assets 198,965 182903 163,088 155,367 126,512 98,676 93,489 76,222 66,508 58,704
WEME Investment properties 115,818 106,102 101,833 94,003 88,633 69958 66,136 52,539 43,753 39,370
HEWE Properties for sale
- 2K — Completed 4,055 4,843 5,158 5,089 5086 6954 6805 9,706 10,215 10,757
- BEH — Under development 1,662 1,296 987 905 800 760 43 41 - -
e RIRTTER Cash and deposits with banks 39,704 40,183 26,149 28274 11,852 9632 10,738 7,092 6,189 3,734
e s Total liabilities 62,557 53288 41920 35170 24,167 19907 21,432 17,733 20,182 14,738
BITER R Bank loans and
HifEE other borrowings 45,024 37,645 27694 20,901 10,790 9966 9,040 8482 11,787 6,397
FEER Floating rate notes - - - - - 1500 1500 15500 1,500 1,500
RRER Shareholders’ equity 70,572 65224 60,510 58972 52973 40,640 36,782 29,095 25,013 22,839
EEFE (B8F Net assets (including
Bzl L)) non-controlling interests) 136,408 129615 121,168 120,197 102,345 78,769 72,057 58489 46,326 43,966
EER Turnover 9,734 7,986 3,361 5714 12580 4,69 10,553 4,778 4200 7,472
B RAE(R 4R Net profit attributable to
shareholders 4,557 5,262 1,578 3529 13,139 2559 7516 4,78 2,833 4,644
BEA#R (M5E2) Underlying net profit (Note 2) 3,071 3,564 1,000 1,733 3,695 1,454 2555 1,996 950 1,869
RE Dividends 1,079 1,066 512 1,025 1,017 941 941 813 739 725
SREN Per share data
Pl Earnings
B - YiN - Basic $3.38 $3.90 $1.17 $2.62 $9.83 $1.92 $564 $359 $2.13  $3.50
- #E — Diluted $3.36 $3.87 $1.16 $2.60 $9.71 $190 $556 $356 %211 $3.48
EAXRAER (MiFE2) Underlying earnings (Note 2)
- &R — Basic $2.27 %264 $0.74  $1.29  $276 $1.09 $192 $150 $0.71 $1.41
- 88 — Diluted $2.26 $2.62 $0.74 $1.28 $2.73  $1.08 $1.89 $148 $0.71 $1.40
Jiesy Dividends
- E — Interim 19¢ 19¢ - 19¢ 19¢ 165¢ 16.5¢ 145¢ 14.5¢  14.5¢
- RH# — Final 61¢ 60¢ 38¢ 57¢ 57¢ 54¢ 54¢  46.5¢ 41¢ 40¢
- 2% /8 — Total for the year/period 80¢ 79¢ 38¢ 76¢ 76¢  70.5¢  70.5¢ 6l¢ 555¢  54.5¢
IR (MIE3) Shareholders’ equity (Note 3) $52.3  $483  $449  $437  $396 $305 $276 $21.8 $188 $17.2
BESE (B Net assets (including non-
JEIERGHEZS) (MI3E3)  controlling interests) (Note 3)  $101.0  $960  $899  $89.2  $764 $59.0 $540 $439 $348 $33.1
FEERE Net debt to equity ratio (Note 4) 3.9% 0% 1.4% 0% 0% 2.8% 0.4% 59% 16.7% 11.1%
be= (Pff3E4)
TRELE= Pay-out ratio 24% 20% 32% 29% 8% 37% 13% 17% 26% 16%
HAJRE L= (ffzX2) Underlying pay-out ratio (Note 2) 35% 30% 51% 59% 28% 65% 37% 41% 78% 39%
ERITRE Number of shares
(BEBR) issued (in Million) 1,350 1,350 1,348 1,348 1339 1334 1334 1334 1332 1,328
FfoaE - Notes:
1LRZE—F+— A EFSWEREB 2 HF 1. In November 2011, the Board of Directors approved the change of the Group’s financial
EFEHBRANA=ZTHERA T _A=+—"H- year end date from June 30 to December 31. Thus, the Group had a six-month financial

o AEBZHBAER —T——tA—B=E
TZRA=+—HIERER -

2. RMEBEAEEEBEBRENER Pt 2 EAME 2
A FRAN KRS L EHE MR REMERER
PREMEZ ATFEEPREFHRLEHARIFZE
BRI -

3 RBNAEE A 2 R E BITIRE - 8

4 FREEBIERERAMES FLRERBER 4
FES - NBRRERBITER - BIER SIEBREIE
R IR -
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period from July 1 to December 31, 2011.

To facilitate better understanding of the Group’s operational results, the underlying
net profit, earnings per share and pay-out ratio are presented by excluding the effect
of changes in fair value of investment properties and investment properties under
development and their related deferred tax and non-controlling interests.

Based on year end balance divided by number of shares issued at the end of the
reporting period.

Net debt represents bank loans and other borrowings, floating rate notes and finance
lease obligations, less cash and deposits with banks. Equity comprises shareholders’
equity and non-controlling interests.
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Corporate Information

2

BREUCR (2%5)
BREE gxEs) "
PR 4k (2 Fmicre)
LaoR
BE S 2285 - OBE - AT+
PREEAE
B CBE - AFMLT
GE3=
¢ ERITEE
* BUFNITEE

DIRECTORS

Ronnie C. Chan (chairman)

S.S. Yin (vice Chairman)*

Phi“p N.L. Chen (Managing Director)
Gerald L. Chan”

H.K. Cheng 6Bs, 0BE, JP*

Laura L.Y. Chen™

Simon S.0. Ip ¢BE, JP*

H.C. Ho

# Non-Executive Director

* Independent Non-Executive Director

BEREEE
LD CBE - AF#+ (£/)
B524 exEs  OBE - AT

RN

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Simon S.O. |p CBE, JP (Chairman)
H.K. Cheng 6Bs, 0BE, JP
Laura L.Y. Chen

RERFMEES
RS ¢ 42 E - OBE - AFHL (/)
PR&ENG

BB CBE - AT+

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

H.K. Cheng GBS, OBE, JP (Chairman)
Laura L.Y. Chen
Simon S.O. Ip ¢BE, JP

RERK AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES
Bk = 4% Philip N.L. Chen

ZLIAHK Bella P.L. Chhoa

NEME COMPANY SECRETARY

EZELYIN Bella P.L. Chhoa

TMRER REGISTERED OFFICE

BAPREEHEP U
BITIRITARNE =1+ /&
T 0 28790111
{HH : 2868 6086

28th Floor, Standard Chartered Bank Building
4 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong

Tel : 28790111

Fax : 2868 6086

HE AL

4841 : http://www.hanglunggroup.com
BEHAE : HLGroup@hanglung.com

INTERNET ADDRESS

Website: http://www.hanglunggroup.com
Email address: HLGroup@hanglung.com

BB

EHE R
CES ]

AUDITOR
KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
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Listing Information

W=—Z—=%+=H=+—8 At December 31, 2013

1,349,828,242 fx B EEE¥1.007T
EEBBMERZMARAR LT 2B

1,349,828,242 shares of HK$1.00 each listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

B 431X 5% STOCK CODE

BRBERZFT Hong Kong Stock Exchange 00010
BB Reuters 0010.HK
FAL] Bloomberg 10HK
BFEEEN (R7) BOARD LOT SIZE (SHARE) 1,000
XEIFEFERE AMERICAN DEPOSITARY RECEIPT

*—%ﬂ%% (BERZ) Sponsored Level-1 (Over the Counter)

SRR —RES / RIERR CUSIP Number/Ticker Symbol 41043E102/HNLGY
?EE%E%%%?HXT%ZH:Z?—\ ADR: Underlying Share Ratio 1:5
FrEiReT « AABRERIT Depositary Bank: The Bank of New York Mellon
A4t - Website: http://www.adrbnymellon.com
BREBERERTE SHARE REGISTRARS
BBHRBHELABR AT Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

BEBHFERRNER—A/NT=%
AL TEME

17M Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong

£ Tel: 2862 8555
B : Fax: 2865 0990
REEBRBSE INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT

Ezllps C.F. Kwan

EHE U Email address: ir@hanglung.com

R An & #

Share Information

f&(E Price f&%{& Price

&= RIE HERK AR R RIE HERK AR

High Low Total Trading Volume High Low Total Trading Volume

et B REE (FR) el B RHEE (FR)

HK$ HK$  Number of Shares ('000) HK$ HK$  Number of Shares ('000)
2013 2012
% —7 First quarter 48.25 42 .65 66,587 | Z5—= First quarter 54.95 42.60 40,513
25 =7 Second quarter 47.70 38.50 54,193 | % =% Second quarter 51.75 43.65 26,846
28 =2 Third quarter 4225  37.60 36,894 | % =2 Third quarter 51.75  45.80 22,595
ZEP9ZF Fourth quarter 4290  37.30 44,563 | ZFEPYZE Fourth quarter 51.00 41.80 203,636
REZB-—Z=ZF+-A=+—-H2ZRE: #B%39.155T | R=B—=F+=-A=+—HZRE: 7&#44.057T
Share Price as at December 31, 2013: HK$39.15 | Share Price as at December 31, 2012: HK$44.05
R-B-—=F+ZA=t+—HzmE: #5285 | R=B—=F+=-A=+—HZWE: 594,58 7T

Market Capitalization as at December 31, 2013: HK$52.85 billion

Market Capitalization as at December 31, 2012: HK$59.45 billion
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